
District Staff 
Chris Emmons 

Fire Chief 
Katie Hill 

Clerk of the Board 

District Board Members 
Blaine Maynor 
Division 1 
Nicole Johnson 
Division 2 
Randy Mendosa  
Division 3 
Eric Loudenslager – President 
Division 4 
Jason Akana - Vice President 
Division 5 

Regular Board Meeting 
September 10, 2024 

5:30 PM  
Location: 631 9th Street, Arcata 

 Arcata Station Classroom 

AGENDA 
CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

ATTENDANCE & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

PUBLIC COMMENT/ASSOCIATION REPORTS Pg. 4 

Any person may address the District Board on any subject pertaining to District 
business, which is not listed on the agenda. This comment is provided by the Ralph M. 
Brown Open Meeting Act (Government Code § 54950 et seq.) and may be limited to 
three (3) minutes for any person addressing the Board. Any request that requires 
Board action may be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff. 

1. Local 4981 Monthly Report Pg. 5 
2. Arcata Volunteer Fire Association Report Pg. 6 

CLOSED SESSION 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to 
consider existing or anticipated litigation, liability claims, real property negotiations, 
license and permit determinations, threats to security, public employee appointments, 
personnel matters, evaluations and discipline, labor negotiations, or to discuss with legal 
counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege. 

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Gode section 54956.8.)
Property: 631 9th Street, Arcata CA 95521 
Agency negotiator: District Counsel, Ryan Plotz 

1



Regular Agenda September 10, 2024        Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR         Pg. 7  
Consent calendar items are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board 
with a single action. Members of the audience wishing to provide public input may 
request that the Board remove the item from the Consent Calendar. Comments 
may be limited to three (3) 
minutes.

1. Minutes from August 13, 2024 Regular Meeting Pg. 8 

2. Minutes from August 22, 2024 Special Meeting Pg. 11 

3. August 2024 Financial Report Pg. 12 

4. Accept the GASB 75 Actuarial Report (Measured as of June 30, 2023) for Pg. 28
the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2024 Financial Reporting

a. Attachment 1 – GASB 75 Actuarial Report FYE June 30, 2023 Pg. 29 
5. Adopt Resolution 24-315 Directing Transfer of Cash From the Pg. 75 

Humboldt County Treasurer Account to the CalTrust Liquidity Fund

DISTRICT BUSINESS Pg. 76  

1. PUBLIC HEARING - Adoption of Resolution 24-316 Finalizing the Pg. 77 
Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/25

a. Attachment 1 – Draft Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Pg. 79 
b. Attachment 2 - Budget Resolution 24-316 and Exhibit A, Fiscal Pg. 83 

Year 2024/25 Budget

* Notice is hereby given that the Arcata Fire Protection District will convene a
public hearing to consider the adoption of FY 2024/25 budget

2. Adopt Resolution 24-317 Approving an Option Agreement with the Pg. 85 
Arcata Volunteer Firefighter’s Association for the potential Acquisition of
the 9th Street Station and Finding the Action Exempt from CEQA

a. Attachment 1 – Resolution 24-317 with Exhibit A Pg. 86 

3. Adopt Resolution 24-318 Approving the Form and Authorizing the Pg. 131 
Execution and Delivery of Certain Financing Documents for the Purpose of 
Financing the Acquisition of Real Property and Facilities Comprising the  
District’s Fire Headquarters Facility, and Providing for Other Matters Properly 
Relating There to 

a. Attachment 1 – Resolution 24-318 Pg. 134 
b. Attachment 2 – Loan Agreement Pg. 137 
c. Attachment 3 – Irrevocable Payment Instructions Pg. 188 

CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS Pg. 193 

1. Public Correspondence

a. Thank you poster from Tot Camp – Captain Nate Baxley and Pg. 194 
Engineer Wes Row

b. Thank you from 2024 Summer Algebra Institute Team – Prevention Pg. 195
Specialist Alyssa Alvarez, Engineer Arly Allen, Captain Marcus Lillard,
Engineer Jesus Barron, Captain Tony Freeman

2



Regular Agenda September 10, 2024        Page 3 of 3 

2. Committee Reports

a. Fire Station Ad-Hoc Committee (Maynor, Akana)

b. AVFA, L4981, AFPD Relations Ad-Hoc Committee (Maynor)

c. FY 2024/25 Budget Committee (Johnson, Loudenslager)

d. Chief’s Evaluation Committee (Loudenslager, Mendosa)

3. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report Pg. 196 

4. Director Matters
ADJOURNMENT 

Next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for October 8, 2024, Arcata Downtown 
Station Classroom, 631 9th Street in Arcata at 5:30 pm. 

Prepared by: Katie Hill, Clerk of the Board 

The Arcata Fire Protection District ("District"), in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act ("ADA"), individuals who require special accommodations to access, attend and/or participate 
in District board meetings due to a disability, shall make their request by calling (707)825-2000, 
no later than 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time. In compliance with Government 
Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt writings that are distributed to a majority of, or all, the Board 
in advance of a meeting may be viewed at 2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville, California or at the 
scheduled meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the 
agenda, please contact the Board Secretary, at (707) 825-2000.  The meeting agenda is posted at 
least 72 hours in advance of regular scheduled meetings, at the following locations: 

● District's Headquarters’ Building, 2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville, CA 95519
● Arcata Downtown Station, 631 9th Street, Arcata, CA 95521
● Mad River Station, 3235 Janes Road, Arcata, CA 95521
● The Arcata Fire Protection District website:  www.arcatafire.org

3

http://www.arcatafire.org/


Public Comment 
& Association 

Reports

4



To: The Arcata Fire District Board of Directors

RE: Local 4981 monthly report

Good evening. This monthly report will serve as an overview of activities, announcements, and
special notifications that directly involve or are of reasonable relevance to Local 4981. You all
are encouraged to ask any questions necessary to provide further clarification on any topic.

Activities:

-The Executive Board of Local 4981 and Chief Emmons started a standing weekly meeting held
on Monday mornings. These meetings are wide ranging in content, from District projects,
activities, and direction, to Labor/Management relations. This has been a great opportunity to
identify the next steps and logical course of actions for the District to take and how the Local
can support the mission.

-After the Executive Board conducted multiple candidate interviews, Local 4981 has decided to
endorse Chris Rogers for the 2nd District Assembly seat.

-Breast Cancer Awareness t-shirts are here. They will be worn in the month of October in
support of Breast Cancer Awareness. The shirt is priced at $20, and can be sold to the public.
All proceeds will be donated to a cancer charity.

-Nathan Baxley left our organization and accepted a job at HBF as a Battalion Chief.

-Arly Allen was promoted to the rank of Fire Captain from an active promotional list. Arly is a
dedicated member always looking for ways to better the District and herself. We look forward to
how she can elevate the Fire Captain rank.

-Local President and Chief Emmons had a zoom meeting with Leo Buc, a campaign manager
based out of the Ukiah area. We were granted the opportunity for this meeting as a result of the
Local’s increased efforts to be involved in state level politics. The discussion was centered
around strategies for a public education and informational campaign for the resident’s of our
district.

Respectfully submitted,

Marcus Lillard
President, Local 4981

Arcata Professional Firefighters Local 4981 | P.O. Box 2062, McKinleyville CA 95519
info@Local4981.org | www.Local4981.org

CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS - Item 1

5

mailto:info@Local4981.org
http://www.local4981.org


ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC.

2149 Central Avenue 
McKinleyville, California 95519 

(707) 825-2000
 

Date: 9/10/2024 MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT  
To:  Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From   Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association 

Mission: We exist to provide support, advocacy, and a social network for those 
Volunteering to contribute to the mission of the Arcata Fire District. 

Volunteering 

• Volunteer hours of support for August were about 30 hours.
o VLU training for August was the Cal Poly Housing annual fire drill.

• Responded to the drill with Logistics 8291 and Utility 8209

Community Outreach and Support 

• CPR and First Aid Training

• Only 6 students in August

• Grant Activity

o Berg funded the $58K grant for a slide-in pump for the Flatbed.
o The new hose grant will be resubmitted in November.
o Submitted $18K grant request to Coast Central, response expected by October.
o The Simpson Family Fund has informed us we are eligible to apply for funding during

their 2025 cycle.

Other AVFA Activities 

o Working with Redwood Capital Bank to Modify the existing mortgage on the 9th

street station.
o Working with District on the Draft Option letter concerning selling them the 9th

street station.

CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS - Item 2

6



Consent 

Calendar 

7



MINUTES 

Regular Board Meeting 
August 13, 2024 

5:30 p.m. 
Location: 631 9th Street, Arcata 
Arcata Fire Station Classroom 

Board of Directors 
Eric Loudenslager (Division 4) – President, Jason Akana (Division 5) – Vice President, 
Nicole Johnson (Division 2) – Director, Blaine Maynor (Division 1) - Director, Randy 

Mendosa (Division 3) – Director 

CALL TO ORDER 
The regular session of the Board of Directors for the Arcata Fire District was called to 
order by President Eric Loudenslager at 5:30 pm.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by President Loudenslager. 

ATTENDANCE AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
The meeting continued with a quorum and the following were present: President Eric 
Loudenslager, Vice President Jason Akana, Director Nicole Johnson, Director Blaine 
Maynor, and Director Randy Mendosa.    
Additional District administrative staff included Chief Chris Emmons, Assistant Chief 
Ross McDonald, Board Clerk Katie Hill, and Fire Prevention Specialist Alyssa Alvarez. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved to approve the agenda. 
Motion: Mendosa; Second: Akana 
Roll Call: Ayes; Akana, Johnson, Maynor, Mendosa, Loudenslager. Absent: None 
Motion carries 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
President Loudenslager verbally issued the Oath of Office to Chief Chris Emmons. 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
The following members of the public commented: 

Joanne McGarry of Arcata 
Brian Anderson of Redway 

Local 4981 – Captain Tony Freeman summarized the Local 4981 monthly report and 
spoke about a newly created District policy review group that will be reviewing District 
policies. 
AVFA - President Roy Willis provided AVFA monthly statistics. 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Item 1

8



Page 2 of 3 

CLOSED SESSION 
1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Gode section 54956.8.)

Property: 631 9th Street, Arcata CA 95521 
Agency negotiator: District Counsel, Ryan Plotz 
Negotiating parties: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters Association 
Under negotiation: Lease agreement for 631 9th Street, Arcata Station 

President Loudenslager adjourned to closed session at 5:46 pm. 
The meeting was reconvened at 6:19 pm. 
Report out of closed session by President Loudenslager; nothing to report. 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Minutes from July 9, 2024 Regular Meeting
2. July 2024 Financial Report
3. Update to District Policy 208: Travel Request & Expense Reimbursement

a. Attachment 1 – Policy 208 with Updates There were no comments from
the public or the Board.

It was moved to approve consent calendar items. 
Motion: Akana; Second: Johnson  
Roll Call: Ayes; Akana, Johnson, Maynor, Mendosa, Loudenslager. Absent: None 
Motion carries 

DISTRICT BUSINESS 
1. Review of the Board’s Response to the Civil Grand Jury Report Titled,
“Arcata Fire District – Dwindling Resources = Dwindling Services”
President Loudenslager reviewed his staff note aloud. 
There were no comments from the public. 
There was a discussion between Board members.  It was recommended to provide a 
cover letter to accompany the Board’s response and post both documents on the 
District’s website.  
No motion was made. 
2. Review the Proposed Community and Internal Surveys for the Community Risk
Assessment and Standards of Cover Expenditure
Chief Emmons read his staff note aloud. 
Directors asked questions and provided comments and feedback. 
There were no comments from the public. 
The Board was directed to provide feedback to the Chief or Business Manager by 
August 20, 2024.  

9



Page 3 of 3 

CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Public Correspondence

a. Thank you letter and pictures from Arcata Elementary School – Captain
Evan Gibbs and Engineer Tyler Sung

b. Thank you card from Redwood Day Camp – Captain Evan Gibbs and
Engineer Ja’Shawn Fields

2. Committee Reports
a. Fire Station Ad-Hoc Committee (Maynor, Akana) – nothing to report
b. AVFA, L4981, AFPD Relations Ad-Hoc Committee (Maynor) – nothing to

report
c. FY 2024/25 Budget Committee (Johnson, Loudenslager) – nothing to

report
d. Chief’s Evaluation Committee (Loudenslager, Mendosa) – nothing to

report
3. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report – Chief Emmons reviewed his staff note, providing

additional comments on incidents for a busier than normal month.  Directors
provided comments and asked questions.

4. Director Matters – there were none.
ADJOURNMENT 
Following a motion by Director Akana and a second by Director Mendosa, President 
Loudenslager adjourned the meeting at 7:06pm.  
The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for September 10, 2024, at the Arcata 
Downtown Station Classroom, 631 9th Street in Arcata at 5:30 pm. 
Respectfully submitted, 

Katie Hill, 
Clerk of the Board 

10



MINUTES 

Special Board Meeting 
August 22, 2024 

4:00 p.m. 
Location: 631 9th Street, Arcata 
Arcata Fire Station Classroom 

Board of Directors 
Eric Loudenslager (Division 4) – President, Jason Akana (Division 5) – Vice President, 
Nicole Johnson (Division 2) – Director, Blaine Maynor (Division 1) - Director, Randy 

Mendosa (Division 3) – Director 
CALL TO ORDER 
The special session of the Board of Directors for the Arcata Fire District was called to 
order by President Eric Loudenslager at 4:00 pm.  
ATTENDANCE AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
The meeting continued with a quorum and the following were present: President Eric 
Loudenslager, Vice President Jason Akana, Director Blaine Maynor, and Director 
Randy Mendosa.  Director Nicole Johnson was absent.    
Additional District administrative staff included Chief Chris Emmons, Assistant Chief 
Ross McDonald, and Board Clerk Katie Hill.  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no members from the public present. 
CLOSED SESSION 

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Gode section 54956.8.)
Property: 631 9th Street, Arcata CA 95521 
Agency negotiator: District Counsel, Ryan Plotz 
Negotiating parties: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters Association 
Under negotiation: Lease agreement for 631 9th Street, Arcata Station 

President Loudenslager adjourned to closed session at 4:00 pm. 
The meeting was reconvened at 4:51 pm. 
Report out of closed session by President Loudenslager; nothing to report. 

ADJOURNMENT  
Following a motion by Director Akana and a second by Director Mendosa, President 
Loudenslager adjourned the meeting at 4:52pm.  
The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for September 10, 2024, at the Arcata 
Downtown Station Classroom, 631 9th Street in Arcata at 5:30 pm. 
Respectfully submitted, 

Katie Hill 
Clerk of the Board 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Item 2

11



Type Date Memo Split Amount

USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY
800190 ꞏ Interest Income
Deposit 07/28/2024 Interest Contingency Fund 2,178.49
Deposit 07/28/2024 Interest PERS Contingency Fund 3,087.81
Deposit 07/28/2024 Interest Vehicle Replacement Fund 4,222.80
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest CalTRUST 11,919.03
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest CCCU Liquid Assets 150.78
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest CCCU Checking 127.16
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest RCB - Business Savings 26.23
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest RCB  - Business Checking 2.74
Deposit 08/30/2024 Interest CalTRUST 6,316.43
Deposit 08/30/2024 Interest PERS Contingency Fund 3,758.06
Deposit 08/30/2024 Interest Contingency Fund 2,689.76
Deposit 08/30/2024 Interest Vehicle Replacement Fund 4,742.33

Total 800190 ꞏ Interest Income 39,221.62

Total USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY 39,221.62

TOTAL 39,221.62

3:28 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Interest Earned Fiscal Year to Date
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 1

CONSENT CALENDAR - Item 3

12



Jul - Aug 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

TAX REVENUE
101117 ꞏ Property Tax - Current Secured 433,333.34 433,333.30 0.04 100.0%
102500 ꞏ Property Tax-Current Unsecured 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 100.0%
103500 ꞏ Property Tax-Prior Yrs Secured 0.00 9,666.70 -9,666.70 0.0%
105110 ꞏ Property Tax-Prior Yrs Unsecure 9,666.66 166.70 9,499.96 5,798.8%
800040 ꞏ Supplemental Taxes-Current 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 100.0%
105900 ꞏ Supplemental Taxes-Prior Yrs 833.34 833.30 0.04 100.0%
113100 ꞏ State Timber Tax 0.00 900.00 -900.00 0.0%
800050 ꞏ Property Assessments 620,666.66 620,666.70 -0.04 100.0%

Total TAX REVENUE 1,081,500.00 1,082,566.70 -1,066.70 99.9%

USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY
800190 ꞏ Interest Income 39,221.62 32,500.00 6,721.62 120.7%

Total USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY 39,221.62 32,500.00 6,721.62 120.7%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
525110 ꞏ Homeowners Property Tax Relief 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
800600 ꞏ Other Government Agencies

NCQUAMD 0.00 700.00 -700.00 0.0%
Proposition 172 Disbursement 0.00 8,700.00 -8,700.00 0.0%

Total 800600 ꞏ Other Government Agencies 0.00 9,400.00 -9,400.00 0.0%

800950 ꞏ Firefighting Reimbursements 19,562.40

Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL 19,562.40 9,400.00 10,162.40 208.1%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
800155 ꞏ Prevention Fees 2,379.00 2,000.00 379.00 119.0%
800156 ꞏ R1/R2 Inspection Fees 5,364.35 7,500.00 -2,135.65 71.5%
800700 ꞏ Other Services 20.21
800946 ꞏ Incident Revenue Recovery Fees 1,878.00 1,666.70 211.30 112.7%

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES 9,641.56 11,166.70 -1,525.14 86.3%

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES
800920 ꞏ Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
800940 ꞏ Other Revenue

Other Revenue Unclassified 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
800940 ꞏ Other Revenue - Other 6.00

Total 800940 ꞏ Other Revenue 6.00 1,000.00 -994.00 0.6%

800941 ꞏ Refunds 3,675.89 0.00 3,675.89 100.0%
800942 ꞏ Incident Reports 60.00 200.00 -140.00 30.0%

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 3,741.89 11,200.00 -7,458.11 33.4%

Total Income 1,153,667.47 1,146,833.40 6,834.07 100.6%

Gross Profit 1,153,667.47 1,146,833.40 6,834.07 100.6%

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District
09/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 1

13



Jul - Aug 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Expense
SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

5010 ꞏ Salaries & Wages
5010.1 ꞏ Full-Time 287,458.39 322,166.66 -34,708.27 89.2%
5010.2 ꞏ CTO  Payout 97,565.18 64,500.00 33,065.18 151.3%
5010.3 ꞏ Settlement Pay/Vacation 13,531.96 30,000.00 -16,468.04 45.1%
5010.4 ꞏ Holiday Pay 3,252.48 46,000.00 -42,747.52 7.1%
5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensation 14,600.00 9,500.00 5,100.00 153.7%
5010.6 ꞏ Part-Time (Hourly) 9,389.64 11,833.34 -2,443.70 79.3%
5010.7 ꞏ CalFire/OES Pay 5,151.21 0.00 5,151.21 100.0%
5010 ꞏ Salaries & Wages - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5010 ꞏ Salaries & Wages 430,948.86 484,000.00 -53,051.14 89.0%

5020 ꞏ Retirement
5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 85,384.57 91,000.00 -5,615.43 93.8%
5020.2 ꞏ Social Secuirty 723.88 666.66 57.22 108.6%
5020.3 ꞏ Medicare 6,670.17 4,833.34 1,836.83 138.0%
5020.4 ꞏ CalPERS UAL Payment 102,976.00 190,000.00 -87,024.00 54.2%

Total 5020 ꞏ Retirement 195,754.62 286,500.00 -90,745.38 68.3%

5030 ꞏ Group Insurance
5030.1 ꞏ Health (Current Employees) 92,251.70 108,666.66 -16,414.96 84.9%
5030.2 ꞏ Health (Retirees) 52,640.96 53,666.66 -1,025.70 98.1%
5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Health Admin Fees 504.33 416.66 87.67 121.0%
5030.4 ꞏ Dental, Vision & Life 6,939.59 8,500.00 -1,560.41 81.6%
5030.5 ꞏ Air Ambulance 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
5030.6 ꞏ Long Term Disability 1,885.00 1,333.34 551.66 141.4%

Total 5030 ꞏ Group Insurance 154,221.58 175,583.32 -21,361.74 87.8%

5033 ꞏ Unemployment Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5035 ꞏ Worker's Compensation
5035.1 ꞏ Primary 0.00 43,000.00 -43,000.00 0.0%
5035.2 ꞏ Excess 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%
5035.3 ꞏ Admin Fee 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%

Total 5035 ꞏ Worker's Compensation 0.00 88,000.00 -88,000.00 0.0%

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Other 66,550.39

Total SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 847,475.45 1,034,083.32 -186,607.87 82.0%

SERVICE & SUPPLIES
5050 ꞏ Clothing & Personal Supplies

5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 2,124.34 20,000.00 -17,875.66 10.6%
5050.2 ꞏ Station Boots 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
5050.3 ꞏ PPE - Structure 426.18 12,000.00 -11,573.82 3.6%
5050.4 ꞏ PPE - Wildland 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5050.5 ꞏ VLU Team 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5050.6 ꞏ Shields & Badges 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 5050 ꞏ Clothing & Personal Supplies 2,550.52 42,000.00 -39,449.48 6.1%

5060 ꞏ Communications
5060.1 ꞏ Phones - Landline & Cellular 3,645.64 2,333.34 1,312.30 156.2%
5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring

McKinleyville Station 14.74
5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring - Other 0.00 583.34 -583.34 0.0%

Total 5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 14.74 583.34 -568.60 2.5%

5060.3 ꞏ Communications - Miscellaneous 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5060.4 ꞏ HCFCA Radio System 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
5060.5 ꞏ Cable TV & Internet 2,312.48 2,250.00 62.48 102.8%

Total 5060 ꞏ Communications 5,972.86 7,166.68 -1,193.82 83.3%

5080 ꞏ Food
5080.1 ꞏ Food & Rehab Supplies 437.19 1,000.00 -562.81 43.7%
5080.2 ꞏ Drinking Water 535.99 1,000.00 -464.01 53.6%
5080 ꞏ Food - Other 67.92

Total 5080 ꞏ Food 1,041.10 2,000.00 -958.90 52.1%

5090 ꞏ Household Expenses
5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies

Arcata Station 250.12
Mad River Station 268.50
McKinleyville Station 681.34

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District
09/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 2

14



Jul - Aug 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies - Other 0.00 833.30 -833.30 0.0%

Total 5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies 1,199.96 833.30 366.66 144.0%

5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service
Arcata Station 73.64
Mad River Station 73.64
McKinleyville Station 302.75
5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service - Other 0.00 833.30 -833.30 0.0%

Total 5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service 450.03 833.30 -383.27 54.0%

5090.3 ꞏ Station Furniture
Mad River Station 2,194.23
McKinleyville Station 433.12
5090.3 ꞏ Station Furniture - Other 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Total 5090.3 ꞏ Station Furniture 2,627.35 5,000.00 -2,372.65 52.5%

Total 5090 ꞏ Household Expenses 4,277.34 6,666.60 -2,389.26 64.2%

5100 ꞏ Liability Insurance
5100.1 ꞏ Liability Insurance 61,214.00 52,000.00 9,214.00 117.7%

Total 5100 ꞏ Liability Insurance 61,214.00 52,000.00 9,214.00 117.7%

5120 ꞏ Maintenance - Equipment
5120.1 ꞏ Vehicles

215 ꞏ 2016 Chevy 1500 208.08
214 ꞏ 2020 Chevy 1500 803.76
210 ꞏ 2010 F-150 18.43
212 ꞏ 2015 Spark 81.35
108 ꞏ 2007 Ferrara 11,319.57
113 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (1) 177.35
112 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (2) 2,436.40
116 ꞏ 2022 Pierce 1,489.02
5120.1 ꞏ Vehicles - Other 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

Total 5120.1 ꞏ Vehicles 16,533.96 100,000.00 -83,466.04 16.5%

5120.2 ꞏ Hose & Ladder Testing 0.00 6,500.00 -6,500.00 0.0%
5120.3 ꞏ Hose Repair 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.4 ꞏ SCBA 0.00 8,000.00 -8,000.00 0.0%
5120.5 ꞏ Hydraulic Rescue Tools 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
5120.6 ꞏ Power Tools 386.69 2,000.00 -1,613.31 19.3%
5120.7 ꞏ AED & LUCAS 0.00 8,100.00 -8,100.00 0.0%
5120.8 ꞏ Fire Extinguishers 318.89 1,000.00 -681.11 31.9%
5120.9 ꞏ Miscellaneous Equipment 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5120.10 ꞏ Small Instrument Repair & Test 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Total 5120 ꞏ Maintenance - Equipment 17,239.54 132,600.00 -115,360.46 13.0%

5121 ꞏ Maintenance - Electronics
5121.1 ꞏ Computers 3,651.97 1,000.00 2,651.97 365.2%
5121.2 ꞏ Radios, Pagers & FireCom 226.84 1,000.00 -773.16 22.7%
5121.3 ꞏ Batteries (non-household) 390.00 1,500.00 -1,110.00 26.0%

Total 5121 ꞏ Maintenance - Electronics 4,268.81 3,500.00 768.81 122.0%

5130 ꞏ Maintenance-Buildings & Grounds
5130.1 ꞏ General Structure

McKinleyville Station 84.02
5130.1 ꞏ General Structure - Other 825.00 46,000.00 -45,175.00 1.8%

Total 5130.1 ꞏ General Structure 909.02 46,000.00 -45,090.98 2.0%

5130.2 ꞏ Grounds
Bayside Property 250.00
McKinleyville Station 14,312.37
5130.2 ꞏ Grounds - Other 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%

Total 5130.2 ꞏ Grounds 14,562.37 10,000.00 4,562.37 145.6%

5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

5130.4 ꞏ Pest Control
Arcata Station 190.00
Mad River Station 190.00
McKinleyville Station 170.00
5130.4 ꞏ Pest Control - Other 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District
09/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 3

15



Jul - Aug 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 5130.4 ꞏ Pest Control 550.00 500.00 50.00 110.0%

Total 5130 ꞏ Maintenance-Buildings & Grounds 16,021.39 59,500.00 -43,478.61 26.9%

5140 ꞏ Medical Supplies
5140.1 ꞏ EMS 677.05 1,000.00 -322.95 67.7%
5140.2 ꞏ AED & Lucas 0.00 83.30 -83.30 0.0%

Total 5140 ꞏ Medical Supplies 677.05 1,083.30 -406.25 62.5%

5150 ꞏ Memberships
5150.1 ꞏ Dues

CalChiefs 1,008.00
FDAC 375.00
5150.1 ꞏ Dues - Other 166.50 3,000.00 -2,833.50 5.6%

Total 5150.1 ꞏ Dues 1,549.50 3,000.00 -1,450.50 51.7%

Total 5150 ꞏ Memberships 1,549.50 3,000.00 -1,450.50 51.7%

5160 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expense
5160.1 ꞏ Uncategorized Misc. Expense 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

Total 5160 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

5170 ꞏ Office Expense
5170.1 ꞏ Office Supplies 73.15 666.70 -593.55 11.0%
5170.2 ꞏ Postage 155.01 2,000.00 -1,844.99 7.8%
5170.3 ꞏ Software

CAD Interface 2,400.00 2,000.00 400.00 120.0%
eDispatches 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Miscellaneous 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
Parcel Quest 2,399.00 2,400.00 -1.00 100.0%
Quickbooks 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Records Management 0.00 4,700.00 -4,700.00 0.0%
Scheduling Program 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0%

Total 5170.3 ꞏ Software 4,799.00 17,100.00 -12,301.00 28.1%

5170.4 ꞏ Subscription Periodicals 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
5170 ꞏ Office Expense - Other 111.91

Total 5170 ꞏ Office Expense 5,139.07 19,866.70 -14,727.63 25.9%

5180 ꞏ Professional & Special Services
5180.1 ꞏ Legal 3,052.50 3,333.30 -280.80 91.6%
5180.2 ꞏ Human Resources 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5180.3 ꞏ Medical Exam & Drug Screening 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%
5180.4 ꞏ Background Checks 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5180.5 ꞏ Audit (Financial) 0.00 11,000.00 -11,000.00 0.0%
5180.6 ꞏ Accountant & Bookkeeping 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5180.7 ꞏ GASB Reporting 1,750.00 7,000.00 -5,250.00 25.0%
5180.8 ꞏ IT 2,980.00 5,833.30 -2,853.30 51.1%
5180.9 ꞏ Webpage Hosting 5,172.00 866.70 4,305.30 596.7%
5180.10 ꞏ Subscriptions 30.00 2,700.00 -2,670.00 1.1%

5180.11 ꞏ Miscellaneous 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5180.12 ꞏ Financial Consulting 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5180.13 ꞏ Video Production 165.00 166.70 -1.70 99.0%

Total 5180 ꞏ Professional & Special Services 13,149.50 81,400.00 -68,250.50 16.2%

5190 ꞏ Publications & Legal Notices
5190.1 ꞏ Publications & Notices 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

Total 5190 ꞏ Publications & Legal Notices 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

5200 ꞏ Rent & Leases - Equipment
5200.1 ꞏ Copier 1,411.73 1,383.30 28.43 102.1%

Total 5200 ꞏ Rent & Leases - Equipment 1,411.73 1,383.30 28.43 102.1%

5210 ꞏ Rent & Leases - Structures
5210.1 ꞏ 631 9th Street 30,000.00 20,000.00 10,000.00 150.0%

Total 5210 ꞏ Rent & Leases - Structures 30,000.00 20,000.00 10,000.00 150.0%

5230 ꞏ Special District Expense
5230.1 ꞏ Property Tax Admin Fee 0.00 80,000.00 -80,000.00 0.0%
5230.2 ꞏ Tax Roll Direct Charge Fee 0.00 14,000.00 -14,000.00 0.0%
5230.3 ꞏ LAFCO Annual Fee 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%
5230.4 ꞏ Assessment Adjustments/Refunds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District
09/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 4

16



Jul - Aug 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5230.5 ꞏ Public Education Supplies 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
5230.6 ꞏ Certifications 166.28 1,000.00 -833.72 16.6%
5230.7 ꞏ Recruitment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5230.8 ꞏ Bank Fees 70.00 4,200.00 -4,130.00 1.7%
5230.9 ꞏ Recognition Awards 80.00 2,000.00 -1,920.00 4.0%
5230.10 ꞏ Health & Wellness 0.00 5,300.00 -5,300.00 0.0%
5230.11 ꞏ Public Outreach 1,100.47 1,000.00 100.47 110.0%
5230.13 ꞏ HCFCA  Air Trailer Annual Fee 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5230.14 ꞏ Staff Training 1,359.00 15,000.00 -13,641.00 9.1%
5230.15 ꞏ Training Supplies 205.81 1,000.00 -794.19 20.6%
5230.16 ꞏ Grant Management 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5230 ꞏ Special District Expense 2,981.56 130,000.00 -127,018.44 2.3%

5250 ꞏ Transportation & Travel
5250.1 ꞏ Fuel

Mad River Station
Diesel 6,038.68

Total Mad River Station 6,038.68

McKinleyville Station 472.48
5250.1 ꞏ Fuel - Other 792.87 12,333.30 -11,540.43 6.4%

Total 5250.1 ꞏ Fuel 7,304.03 12,333.30 -5,029.27 59.2%

5250.2 ꞏ Lodging 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
5250.3 ꞏ Per Diem Reimbursement 0.00 7,000.00 -7,000.00 0.0%
5250.4 ꞏ Travel Costs 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%

Total 5250 ꞏ Transportation & Travel 7,304.03 32,333.30 -25,029.27 22.6%

5260 ꞏ Utilities
5260.1 ꞏ PG & E

Arcata Station 2,207.53
Mad River Station 747.54
McKinleyville Station 2,939.84
5260.1 ꞏ PG & E - Other 0.00 5,950.00 -5,950.00 0.0%

Total 5260.1 ꞏ PG & E 5,894.91 5,950.00 -55.09 99.1%

5260.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer
Arcata Staton 209.16
Mad River Station 430.64
McKinleyville Station 484.32
5260.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer - Other 0.00 1,066.70 -1,066.70 0.0%

Total 5260.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer 1,124.12 1,066.70 57.42 105.4%

Total 5260 ꞏ Utilities 7,019.03 7,016.70 2.33 100.0%

5370 ꞏ Minor Equipment Purchases
5370.1 ꞏ Fire Hose 0.00 6,500.00 -6,500.00 0.0%
5370.2 ꞏ Fire Equipment & Fabrication 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%
5310.3 ꞏ Computers & Electronics 872.75 8,000.00 -7,127.25 10.9%
5370.4 ꞏ Small Tools 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5370.5 ꞏ Power Tools 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

Total 5370 ꞏ Minor Equipment Purchases 872.75 20,500.00 -19,627.25 4.3%

Total SERVICE & SUPPLIES 182,689.78 625,516.58 -442,826.80 29.2%

OTHER EXPENDITURES
Capital Expense

Equipment/Vehicles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Capital Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service
2021 UAL Refinance - Interest 57,882.50 119,437.00 -61,554.50 48.5%
2021 UAL Refinance - Principal 276,000.00 268,000.00 8,000.00 103.0%
2022 Engine Purchase - Interest 7,365.73 15,000.00 -7,634.27 49.1%
2022 Engine Purchase- Principal 50,380.09 100,183.00 -49,802.91 50.3%
Debt Issue Costs 254.50

Total Debt Service 391,882.82 502,620.00 -110,737.18 78.0%

Reserve Fund Transfers - Out
Contingency Fund 0.00 200,000.00 -200,000.00 0.0%
PERS Rate Contingency Fund 0.00 261,816.00 -261,816.00 0.0%
Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00 200,000.00 -200,000.00 0.0%

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District
09/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 5

17



Jul - Aug 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total Reserve Fund Transfers - Out 0.00 661,816.00 -661,816.00 0.0%

Total OTHER EXPENDITURES 391,882.82 1,164,436.00 -772,553.18 33.7%

Total Expense 1,422,048.05 2,824,035.90 -1,401,987.85 50.4%

Net Ordinary Income -268,380.58 -1,677,202.50 1,408,821.92 16.0%

Net Income -268,380.58 -1,677,202.50 1,408,821.92 16.0%

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District
09/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through August 2024

Page 6

18



Aug 24

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 140,472.88
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1200 ꞏ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -2,520.44
Acct. Recv. - County Treasury -540,750.00
2000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -46,577.94
US BANK:Hill 2,152.03
US BANK:Emmons 349.27
US BANK:Evenson 677.05
US BANK:Freeman 2,473.00
US BANK:Lillard 312.04
US BANK:R. McDonald 1,685.40
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities -5,375.83
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities:457 Deduction -4,320.20
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities:CA Withholding -4,770.70
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities:Federal Withholding -8,872.46
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities:Medicare - Both -2,625.80
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities:Social Security - Both -248.74
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities:Survivor Benefit -25.11

Net cash provided by Operating Activities -467,965.55

Net cash increase for period -467,965.55

Cash at beginning of period 9,820,179.99

Cash at end of period 9,352,214.44

3:29 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Statement of Cash Flows
August 2024

Page 1

19



Aug 31, 24

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
RCB - Business Savings 119,711.77
RCB  - Business Checking 248,904.01
CalTRUST 1,088,730.35
CCCU Checking 165,403.08
CCCU Liquid Assets 150.78
CCCU Savings 25.00
Contingency Fund 680,822.60
County Treasury 4,973,623.53
PERS Contingency Fund 943,283.78
Vehicle Replacement Fund 1,131,559.54

Total Checking/Savings 9,352,214.44

Accounts Receivable
1200 ꞏ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 75,726.36

Total Accounts Receivable 75,726.36

Other Current Assets
Acct. Recv. - County Treasury -293,426.63
Interest Receivable 15,000.00
Prepaid Expense 21,606.18

Total Other Current Assets -256,820.45

Total Current Assets 9,171,120.35

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation -2,505,291.00
Buildings & Improvements 2,395,484.62
Equipment 3,597,743.56
Land 224,630.00

Total Fixed Assets 3,712,567.18

Other Assets
Deferred Outflows - OPEB 1,178,335.00
Deferred Outflows - PENSION 4,376,216.00

Total Other Assets 5,554,551.00

TOTAL ASSETS 18,438,238.53

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 73,163.68

Total Accounts Payable 73,163.68

3:30 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2024

Page 1

20



Aug 31, 24

Credit Cards
US BANK 10,043.48

Total Credit Cards 10,043.48

Other Current Liabilities
Suspense -1,985.38
Accounts Payable 2 21,606.18
Accrued Expenses - OTHER 33,011.08
Accrued Interest Expense 58,542.11
Compensation Time Off (CTO) 32,458.40
WAGES PAYABLE 52,884.91
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities

Survivor Benefit 39.99
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities - Other 8,824.52

Total 2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities 8,864.51

Total Other Current Liabilities 205,381.81

Total Current Liabilities 288,588.97

Long Term Liabilities
West America Bank - Engine loan 634,618.89
Accrued Employee Benefits 123,790.80
Deferred Inflows - OPEB 3,843,418.00
Deferred Inflows - PENSION 3,947,843.00
Net Pension Liability 2,704,068.00
OPEB Liability 8,414,987.00
Webster Bank 4,493,000.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 24,161,725.69

Total Liabilities 24,450,314.66

Equity
32000 ꞏ *Retained Earnings 1,712,030.79
Investment in Fixed Assets 3,077,948.29
3900 ꞏ RETAINED EARNINGS -10,533,674.63
Net Income -268,380.58

Total Equity -6,012,076.13

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 18,438,238.53

3:30 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2024

Page 2

21



Type Date Memo Account Amount Balance

707 PEST SOLUTIONS
Bill 08/02/2024 April and June... Arcata Station 190.00 190.00
Bill 08/02/2024 April and June... Mad River Station 190.00 380.00
Bill 08/02/2024 April and June... McKinleyville Station 170.00 550.00

Total 707 PEST SOLUTIONS 550.00 550.00

ACCESS HUMBOLDT
Bill 08/02/2024 July 9, 2024 B... 5180.13 ꞏ Video Prod... 55.00 55.00

Total ACCESS HUMBOLDT 55.00 55.00

ALBER'S TRACTOR & AG WORK
Bill 08/06/2024 General field ... Bayside Property 250.00 250.00

Total ALBER'S TRACTOR & AG WORK 250.00 250.00

ALYSSA M ALVAREZ
Bill 08/08/2024 Unform Reimb... 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 47.95 47.95

Total ALYSSA M ALVAREZ 47.95 47.95

AMAZON
Credit Card Charge 08/07/2024 Uniform shirt f... 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 17.23 17.23
Credit Card Charge 08/07/2024 Blood pressur... 5140.1 ꞏ EMS 167.83 185.06
Credit Card Credit 08/15/2024 Return of A. A... 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms -17.23 167.83
Credit Card Charge 08/20/2024 Dishes and lo... McKinleyville Station 88.95 256.78
Credit Card Charge 08/21/2024 Uniform Shirts... 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 31.83 288.61
Credit Card Charge 08/26/2024 Dishes and pa... McKinleyville Station 88.95 377.56
Credit Card Charge 08/27/2024 White board fo... 5170.1 ꞏ Office Suppl... 47.51 425.07
Credit Card Credit 08/30/2024 (2) uniform shi... 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms -31.83 393.24

Total AMAZON 393.24 393.24

ARCATA PROF. FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 4981
Bill 08/14/2024 (3) District shirts 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 61.00 61.00

Total ARCATA PROF. FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 4981 61.00 61.00

ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC.
Bill 08/01/2024 September rent 5210.1 ꞏ 631 9th Street 10,000.00 10,000.00

Total ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC. 10,000.00 10,000.00

AT&T- CAL NET 3
Bill 08/19/2024 Service Period... 5060.1 ꞏ Phones - La... 394.23 394.23

Total AT&T- CAL NET 3 394.23 394.23

AT&T MOBILITY (FIRSTNET)
Credit Card Charge 08/23/2024 Cellular, phon... 5060.1 ꞏ Phones - La... 440.01 440.01

Total AT&T MOBILITY (FIRSTNET) 440.01 440.01

CAL PERS
Liability Check 08/02/2024 Employer Paid... 5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS R... 28,065.20 28,065.20
Bill 08/14/2024 GASB 68 Rep... 5180.7 ꞏ GASB Repo... 1,750.00 29,815.20
Liability Check 08/16/2024 Employer Con... 5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS R... 29,555.61 59,370.81
Liability Check 08/30/2024 Employer Paid... 5010.1 ꞏ Full-Time 26,408.89 85,779.70

Total CAL PERS 85,779.70 85,779.70

3:31 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2024

Page 1

22



Type Date Memo Account Amount Balance

CALIFORNIA FIRE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION
Credit Card Charge 08/19/2024 Regular Agen... CalChiefs 1,008.00 1,008.00

Total CALIFORNIA FIRE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION 1,008.00 1,008.00

CalPERS 457 PLAN
Liability Check 08/02/2024 Employer Mat... 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Co... 2,900.00 2,900.00
Liability Check 08/16/2024 Employer Mat... 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Co... 2,800.00 5,700.00
Liability Check 08/30/2024 Employer Mat... 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Co... 2,600.00 8,300.00

Total CalPERS 457 PLAN 8,300.00 8,300.00

CENTRAL SANDWICH
Credit Card Charge 08/14/2024 Sandwiches fo... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 127.02 127.02

Total CENTRAL SANDWICH 127.02 127.02

CHRIS EMMONS
Bill 08/03/2024 Rotary Memb... 5150.1 ꞏ Dues 166.50 166.50

Total CHRIS EMMONS 166.50 166.50

CITY OF ARCATA
Bill 08/07/2024 Service Period... Mad River Station 344.95 344.95

Total CITY OF ARCATA 344.95 344.95

CJS FIRE SUPPORT
Bill 08/12/2024 Rebuilt and re... 108 ꞏ 2007 Ferrara 1,052.90 1,052.90

Total CJS FIRE SUPPORT 1,052.90 1,052.90

COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC
Bill 08/16/2024 Copier and (2)... 5200.1 ꞏ Copier 737.43 737.43

Total COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC 737.43 737.43

CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE
Bill 08/08/2024 Air Leaks 108 ꞏ 2007 Ferrara 918.37 918.37
Bill 08/12/2024 Faulty Air Tan... 108 ꞏ 2007 Ferrara 1,445.17 2,363.54

Total CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE 2,363.54 2,363.54

DAN'S AUTO ELECTRIC
Credit Card Charge 08/22/2024 Engine 8219 ... 116 ꞏ 2022 Pierce 1,131.97 1,131.97
Bill 08/26/2024 Installation of ... 116 ꞏ 2022 Pierce 357.05 1,489.02

Total DAN'S AUTO ELECTRIC 1,489.02 1,489.02

El Dorado Hills Fire District
Credit Card Charge 08/22/2024 Executive Chi... 5230.14 ꞏ Staff Traini... 475.00 475.00

Total El Dorado Hills Fire District 475.00 475.00

EUREKA HUMBOLDT FIRE EXTINGUISHER CO. INC
Bill 08/22/2024 Annual Mainte... 5120.8 ꞏ Fire Extingu... 318.89 318.89

Total EUREKA HUMBOLDT FIRE EXTINGUISHER CO. INC 318.89 318.89

FDAC
Credit Card Charge 08/13/2024 FDAC Membe... FDAC 375.00 375.00

Total FDAC 375.00 375.00

3:31 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2024

Page 2

23



Type Date Memo Account Amount Balance

FELDFIRE
Credit Card Charge 08/27/2024 (2) EMS BAGS 5140.1 ꞏ EMS 509.22 509.22

Total FELDFIRE 509.22 509.22

FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS
Bill 08/13/2024 Assembly Dip... 113 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (1) 342.94 342.94
Credit 08/13/2024 Credit for Ass... 113 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (1) -489.30 -146.36

Total FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS -146.36 -146.36

Fire Line Equipment
Credit Card Charge 08/20/2024 Pump panel t-... 113 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (1) 44.98 44.98

Total Fire Line Equipment 44.98 44.98

FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Bill 08/09/2024 September 20... 5030.4 ꞏ Dental, Visi... 3,149.09 3,149.09

Total FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES 3,149.09 3,149.09

HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS
Credit Card Charge 08/23/2024 Locks for traini... 5230.15 ꞏ Training S... 106.79 106.79

Total HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS 106.79 106.79

HENSELS
Bill 08/26/2024 Hardware 113 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (1) 0.75 0.75
Bill 08/29/2024 Cobweb brush... Mad River Station 17.99 18.74

Total HENSELS 18.74 18.74

HOOVEN & CO., INC.
Bill 08/27/2024 Re-sealing of f... McKinleyville Station 14,312.37 14,312.37

Total HOOVEN & CO., INC. 14,312.37 14,312.37

INFINITE CONSULTING SERVICES
Bill 08/19/2024 Network Refre... 5121.1 ꞏ Computers 2,439.78 2,439.78
Bill 08/19/2024 Firewall Refresh 5121.1 ꞏ Computers 1,212.19 3,651.97

Total INFINITE CONSULTING SERVICES 3,651.97 3,651.97

JOES GREEN BARN
Credit Card Charge 08/09/2024 Food for crew ... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 38.01 38.01
Credit Card Charge 08/29/2024 Lunch with ba... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 45.75 83.76

Total JOES GREEN BARN 83.76 83.76

LES SCHWAB TIRE
Bill 08/28/2024 Six batteries r... 112 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (2) 2,117.80 2,117.80

Total LES SCHWAB TIRE 2,117.80 2,117.80

LOS BAGELS
Credit Card Charge 08/16/2024 Bagels for En... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 30.25 30.25

Total LOS BAGELS 30.25 30.25

LUBE CENTRAL
Bill 08/21/2024 Oil Change 212 ꞏ 2015 Spark 81.35 81.35

Total LUBE CENTRAL 81.35 81.35

3:31 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2024

Page 3

24



Type Date Memo Account Amount Balance

LUZMILA'S
Credit Card Charge 08/05/2024 Working lunch... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 74.09 74.09

Total LUZMILA'S 74.09 74.09

MCK. COMM. SERVICES DISTRICT
Bill 08/14/2024 McK DVC Ser... McKinleyville Station 25.76 25.76
Bill 08/14/2024 Service Period... McKinleyville Station 228.22 253.98

Total MCK. COMM. SERVICES DISTRICT 253.98 253.98

MCKINLEYVILLE ACE HARDWARE
Bill 08/18/2024 Lithium batter... McKinleyville Station 57.05 57.05
Bill 08/20/2024 Weed Feed F... Mad River Station 56.01 113.06
Bill 08/23/2024 Locks for traini... 5230.15 ꞏ Training S... 84.02 197.08

Total MCKINLEYVILLE ACE HARDWARE 197.08 197.08

MCKINLEYVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY
Bill 08/27/2024 Faxes for Voy... 5170.1 ꞏ Office Suppl... 8.50 8.50

Total MCKINLEYVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY 8.50 8.50

MIDAMERICA
Bill 08/30/2024 2Q24 Adminis... 5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Hea... 378.00 378.00

Total MIDAMERICA 378.00 378.00

MIDAMERICA HRA
Bill 08/22/2024 September HRA 5030.2 ꞏ Health (Reti... 22,579.66 22,579.66

Total MIDAMERICA HRA 22,579.66 22,579.66

NORTH COAST APPLIANCE
Credit Card Charge 08/05/2024 Washer and D... Mad River Station 1,998.00 1,998.00

Total NORTH COAST APPLIANCE 1,998.00 1,998.00

OFFICE DEPOT
Bill 08/08/2024 Ajax, paper to... Arcata Station 182.00 182.00
Bill 08/08/2024 Febreeze Air ... Arcata Station 11.52 193.52
Bill 08/13/2024 Towels, AA ba... Mad River Station 57.70 251.22
Bill 08/14/2024 Fbrz air freshner Mad River Station 11.52 262.74

Total OFFICE DEPOT 262.74 262.74

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
Bill 08/07/2024 Service Period... Arcata Station 1,092.82 1,092.82
Bill 08/20/2024 Service Period... Mad River Station 367.89 1,460.71

Total PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC 1,460.71 1,460.71

PARCEL QUEST
Bill 08/07/2024 ParcelQuest A... Parcel Quest 2,399.00 2,399.00

Total PARCEL QUEST 2,399.00 2,399.00

PER
Credit Card Charge 08/19/2024 PER MEMBE... 5180.10 ꞏ Subscriptio... 10.00 10.00

Total PER 10.00 10.00

3:31 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2024

Page 4

25



Type Date Memo Account Amount Balance

PERS / HEALTH
Bill 08/22/2024 PA BIlling Acti... 5030.1 ꞏ Health (Curr... 44,460.22 44,460.22
Bill 08/22/2024 PA Billing Em... 5030.2 ꞏ Health (Reti... 3,740.82 48,201.04
Bill 08/22/2024 Admin Fee for... 5030.1 ꞏ Health (Curr... 106.70 48,307.74
Bill 08/22/2024 Admin Fee for... 5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Hea... 62.09 48,369.83

Total PERS / HEALTH 48,369.83 48,369.83

RECOLOGY
Bill 08/06/2024 Service Period... Arcata Station 73.64 73.64
Bill 08/06/2024 Service period... Mad River Station 73.64 147.28

Total RECOLOGY 147.28 147.28

REDWOOD COAST FUELS (RELADYNE)
Bill 08/19/2024 250 Gallons of... Diesel 1,240.76 1,240.76
Bill 08/27/2024 415 gallons of ... Diesel 2,223.30 3,464.06
Bill 08/27/2024 85 gallons of d... McKinleyville Station 472.48 3,936.54

Total REDWOOD COAST FUELS (RELADYNE) 3,936.54 3,936.54

ROBOTRONICS
Credit Card Charge 08/09/2024 Parts for Plug... 5121.3 ꞏ Batteries (n... 56.00 56.00

Total ROBOTRONICS 56.00 56.00

SAFEWAY
Credit Card Charge 08/13/2024 Coffee and lun... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 39.85 39.85

Total SAFEWAY 39.85 39.85

SECURITY LOCK AND ALARM
Credit Card Charge 08/12/2024 Duplicate key ... 214 ꞏ 2020 Chevy 15... 229.43 229.43

Total SECURITY LOCK AND ALARM 229.43 229.43

SHASTA COLLEGE
Credit Card Charge 08/16/2024 Ethical Leader... 5230.14 ꞏ Staff Traini... 175.00 175.00

Total SHASTA COLLEGE 175.00 175.00

SILKE COMMUNICATIONS
Bill 08/05/2024 Faceplate 3" ... 5121.2 ꞏ Radios, Pag... 226.84 226.84

Total SILKE COMMUNICATIONS 226.84 226.84

THE DONUT MILL
Credit Card Charge 08/14/2024 Donuts for AC... 5080.1 ꞏ Food & Reh... 34.00 34.00

Total THE DONUT MILL 34.00 34.00

THE STANDARD
Bill 08/27/2024 August LTD 5030.6 ꞏ Long Term ... 580.00 580.00

Total THE STANDARD 580.00 580.00

TYLER SUNG
Bill 08/27/2024 EMT Recertifi... 5230.6 ꞏ Certifications 89.28 89.28

Total TYLER SUNG 89.28 89.28

3:31 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2024

Page 5

26



Type Date Memo Account Amount Balance

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
Credit Card Charge 08/15/2024 Postage for B... 5170.2 ꞏ Postage 29.20 29.20

Total UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 29.20 29.20

WESTERN CHAINSAW
Bill 08/06/2024 Flushed fuel s... 5120.6 ꞏ Power Tools 11.00 11.00

Total WESTERN CHAINSAW 11.00 11.00

ZIPS
Credit Card Charge 08/07/2024 REPLACEME... 113 ꞏ 2011 Ferrara (1) 277.98 277.98

Total ZIPS 277.98 277.98

TOTAL 222,513.33 222,513.33

3:31 PM Arcata Fire Protection District

09/04/24 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2024

Page 6

27



CONSENT CALENDAR Item 4 

Date: September 10, 2024  
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 
Subject: Accept the GASB 75 Actuarial Report (Measured as of June 30, 2023) 

for Fiscal Year End June 30, 2024 

DISCUSSION: 
GASB 75 information provides a consistent format and content for state and local governmental 
employers about financial support for OPEB and provides decision-useful information, 
supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional 
transparency. GASB 75 establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. 
The valuation report identifies the GASB 75 compliant methods and assumptions used to project 
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and 
attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Differences in results from the prior 
fiscal year end report are identified, quantified and explained. The report also summarizes the 
underlying employee data and plan provisions used to prepare the benefit and liability 
projections. 
The primary purpose of this report is to provide information required by GASB 75 (“Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension [OPEB]”) to be 
reported in the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. The 
information included in the report reflects that the District is currently financing its OPEB liability 
on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
The exhibits presented are based on a roll forward of the results of the June 30, 2024, valuation, 
and on the employee and plan data provided by District staff for the valuation. The only 
assumption change reflected in this report is an update to the discount rate, in keeping with the 
change in applicable municipal bond index on which it is based. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Board accept the Actuarial Valuation and GASB 75 Report FYE June 30, 
2024, as prepared by MacLeod Watts, Inc. If necessary, the item can be pulled from the consent 
calendar for discussion or questions and, if necessary, can be placed on the October agenda for 
discussion with Cathy MacLeod.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
☒ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Included in Budget:
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested:
☐ Unknown/Not Yet Identified

ALTERNATIVES: 
Board Discretion 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – GASB 75 Actuarial Report FYE June 30, 2024 

28



Attachment 1

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



Page 1 of 1 

Resolution Number: 24-315 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DIRECTING TRANSFER OF CASH FROM THE HUMBOLDT COUNTY TREASURY 

ACCOUNT TO THE CALTRUST LIQUIDITY FUND 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Arcata Fire Protection District at the December 2022 Regular Board 
meeting authorized the District to become a participant agency with CalTRUST; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Arcata Fire Protection District hereby finds it appropriate to 
transfer $3,165,392.88 in operating cash held at the County Treasury General Fund account 
2010000 the following amounts into CalTRUST’s Liquidity Fund; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of the Arcata Fire Protection District finds it suitable to keep 
approximately $500,000 in the County Treasury General Fund account 2010000; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Arcata Fire Protection District directs the cash be invested in 
CalTRUST’s Liquidity Fund. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Board of the Arcata Fire Protection District 
hereby authorizes the transfer of cash from County Treasury, in the amount of $3,165,392.88 to 
the CalTRUST Liquidity Fund. 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Arcata Fire Protection District by the following polled vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  

DATED: September 10, 2024 
Signed: 

_____________________________ 
Eric Loudenslager, President 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Katie Hill, Board Clerk/Secretary 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Item 5

75



District 
Business 

76



DISTRICT BUSINESS Item 1 
 PUBLIC HEARING 

Date: September 10, 2024
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 
Subject: CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING to Consider Adoption of Resolution 

24-316 Finalizing the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/25

Background 
Pursuant to Government Code 13895, the Board is required to adopt a final budget, 
after making any changes to the preliminary budget, no later than October 1. The Board 
adopted the preliminary FY2024/25 budget via the consent calendar on the June 13, 
2024, Regular Board meeting. Since that meeting, staff have been able to refine 
projections to reflect more exact revenue and expenditure calculations for this fiscal 
year. The following is a summary of changes to be included in the final budget.  

TOTAL REVENUES: $7,168,000 Estimated to be 15% lower than FYE 23/24

$6,652,000 in Tax Revenues: The revenue amounts have been adjusted from the 
preliminary projections.  The staff has applied a conservative 1.5% growth 
factor on the property tax revenue from the prior fiscal year end.  According to 
the County, they are projecting a 5.0% growth countywide for FY 24/25, but it 
is best practice to keep our projections below the 2% rate that property tax 
can adjust.   
The revenue for the District property assessments is calculated using the 
Assessor parcel list and applying the 2020 Special Tax and 2006 Benefit 
Assessment values.  There is also a 3% reduction to each fund to account for 
parcels that go uncollected during the fiscal year.  The 2020 Special Tax is 
projected to generate $2.28 million with the ‘06 Benefit Assessment at $1.43 
million.   
The rest of the tax revenue items are projected based on the 10-year 
average.  

$ $250,000  in Use of Money & Property: This category is estimated based on 
funds kept in the County Treasury, Redwood Capital Bank, and 
CalTrust.  Money held at CalTrust has been earning over 5% monthly. 

$34,000 in Intergovernmental: As of August 24, 2023, the money received is 
primarily from Property Owner Tax relief, Air Quality Reimbursement and 
Proposition 172 disbursements.  

$92,000 in Charges for Service:  We incurred a 17% decrease based on the 
amount collected from the previous year. This is an anomaly for FY 23/24 and 
not anticipated to be what is averaged. 

$140,200 in Miscellaneous Revenue: The significant change from this category is 
from the sale of a pick up truck and receipt of disbursement from the 

77



Orvamae Emmerson Endowment Fund. FY 23/24 we received the loan for 
the engine and in FY 24/25 we received the second installment out of seven. 

TOTAL EXPENSES: $7,009,000 Estimated to be 4% lower than FYE 23/24

$4,503,000 in Salaries & Benefits:  The subcategories were adjusted to reflect 
actual projected costs based on the current staffing levels.  Overall, the 
salaries and benefits category increased by 3% from the amount in the 23/24 
FYE.        

$1,226,000 in Service and Supplies:  Overall, the services and supplies category 
increased by 25% from the amount in the 23/24 FYE. Items that were 
significant increases are: Turnout maintenance and testing, apparatus 
maintenance from previous deferred maintenance issues, deferred station 
maintenance including painting of the McKinleyville Station, purchase of a 
needed Records Management System to replace the soon to be unsupported 
system, legal services and financial consultant services. We are also adding a  
behavioral health component to the Health and Wellness program. 
Transportation and travel is a conservative cost projection due to increases in 
fuel costs and attendance at training. The Minor Equipment category has a 
significant increase to replace hose and nozzles that have exceeded their life 
span. 

$1,280,000 in Other Expenditures:  In this section, the budget was updated with an 
increase over the Preliminary Budget to cover the cost of a command vehicle 
and new rescue tools (Jaws). The overall category is down from FY 23/24 but 
increases from what the Preliminary Budget indicated.  

SURPLUS FUNDS: $159,000 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board hold the public hearing and adopt the FY 2024/25 Budget 
as presented. 

District Funds Requested/Required 
☐ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☒ Included in Budget
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested
☐ Unknown/Not Yet Identified

Alternatives 
The Board has the following alternatives: 

1. Take no action
2. With direction, refer the topic back to staff for further consideration

Attachments 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Final Budget  
Attachment 2 – Resolution 24-316 and Exhibit A, Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget 

78



Attachment 1

79



80



81



82



Page 1 of 2 

Resolution Number: 24-316 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024/25 BUDGET   

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed and considered the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/25, 
Exhibit A, hereinafter referred to as the “Budget”; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget provides a comprehensive plan of financial operations for the District including 
an estimate of revenues and the anticipated requirements for expenditures, appropriations, and 
reserves for the forthcoming fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, the Budget establishes the basis for incurring liability and making expenditures on behalf of 
the District; and 

WHEREAS, section 13895 of the Health and Safety Code provides that on or before October 1 of each 
year, the Board must adopt a final budget which conforms to the accounting and budgeting procedures 
for special districts, and  

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget was adopted at the June 13, 2024, Regular Board 
Meeting by a consent calendar roll call vote, and the date of the public hearing set for the September 
Regular Board Meeting; and  

WHEREAS, the September 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting agenda in which the proposed budget for 
Fiscal Year 2024/25 was noticed pursuant to the notice provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, as codified 
in section 54950 et seq. of the California Government Code; and  

WHEREAS, the September 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, the public was offered an opportunity to 
comment on the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2024/25, prior to the Board taking action on the 
matter.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Arcata Fire Protection District Board of Directors hereby 
approves and adopts the Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Fire Chief or designee shall transmit a certified copy of this 
resolution with Exhibit A, the adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2024/25 to the Office of the Humboldt 
County Auditor Controller as required pursuant to section 13895 of the Health and Safety Code.  

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the Arcata Fire 
Protection District by the following polled vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  

DATED: September 10, 2024 

Signed: _____________________________ Attest: _________________________________ 
  Eric Loudenslager, President Katie Hill, Board Clerk/Secretary 

Attachment 2

83



Resolution No. 24-316         Page 2 of 2 

Arcata Fire Protection District 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/25 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5010 · SALARIES AND WAGES $2,586,000 
5020 · RETIREMENT  $740,000 
5030 · GROUP INSURANCE  $1,086,500 
5035 · WORKER'S COMPENSATION $90,000 

TOTAL SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $4,503,000 

SERVICE & SUPPLIES 
5050 · CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES  $43,400 
5060 · COMMUNICATIONS  $33,000 
5080 · FOOD  $1,000 
5090 · HOUSEHOLD EXPENSE $18,000 
5100 · LIABILITY INSURANCE $61,214 
5120 · MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT  $163,600 
5121 · MAINTENANCE-ELECTRONICS $12,500 
5130 · MAINTENANCE-STRUCTURE $44,000 
5140 · MEDICAL SUPPLIES  $6,500 
5150 · MEMBERSHIPS $3,000 
5160 · MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE  $2,500 
5170 · OFFICE EXPENSE $41,000 
5180 · PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES $217,700 
5190 · PUBLICATIONS & LEGAL NOTICES  $1,000 
5200 · RENTS & LEASES-EQUIPMENT $8,000 
5210 · RENT & LEASES - STRUCTURES  $130,000 
5230 · SPECIAL DISTRICT EXPENSE $177,700 
5250 · TRANSPORTATION & TRAVEL $102,000 
5260 · UTILITIES $42,300 
5370 · MINOR EQUIPMENT PURCHASE $118,000 

TOTAL SERVICE & SUPPLIES $1,226,000 

OTHER EXPENDITURES 
CAPITAL EXPENSE  $115,000 
DEBT SERVICE $503,000 
RESERVE FUND TRANSFERS - OUT $662,000 

TOTAL OTHER EXPENDITURES $1,280,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $7,009,000 
TOTAL REVENUE $7,168,000 
BUDGET CONTINGENCY (Funded/Underfunded) $159,000 

Exhibit A

84



 

 

DISTRICT BUSINESS Item 2 
Date:  August 22, 2024  
To:   Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:   Chris Emmons, Fire Chief  
Subject:  Adopt Resolution 24-317, Approving an Option Agreement with the 

Arcata Volunteer Firefighter’s Association for the Potential 
Acquisition of the 9th Street Station and Finding the Action Exempt 
from CEQA 

  

DISCUSSION: 
The Arcata Fire Protection District Board of Directors have been in discussions 
regarding a potential Option to Purchase Agreement with the Arcata Volunteer 
Firefighter’s Association for the 9th Street Fire Station and property. Through direction 
to the Board ad-hoc committee, staff, and District Counsel, a resolution approving the 
Option Agreement with the AVFA has been drafted.  
 
The Option Agreement grants the District the right to purchase the property from AVFA 
at any time between execution and August 31, 2026, for the then-current balance on the 
mortgage (currently ~ 1,565,000). During the term of the Option Agreement, the District 
will continue to lease the property from AVFA under the terms and conditions of the 
existing lease agreement. If the District purchases the property, the District will lease 
back to AVFA portions of the property so that AVFA can continue to operate and 
provide educational opportunities to the community.  
 
The draft resolution for the Option Agreement of the 631 9th Street Fire Station states 
that the action is exempt from CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) 
requirements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Board, take public comment, discuss and approve Resolution 24-
317, approving an option agreement with the Arcata Volunteer Firefighter’s Association 
for the potential acquisition of the 9th Street Station and finding the action exempt from 
CEQA. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
☐ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable 
☒ Included in Budget:  
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested: 
☐ Unknown/Not Yet Identified 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Board Discretion 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Resolution 24-317 with Exhibit A 

 
  

 

85



RESOLUTION NO. 24-317 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT APPROVING AN OPTION AGREEMENT WITH THE ARCATA VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC. FOR THE ACQUISITION OF AN OPTION TO 

PURCHASE THE DOWNTOWN ARCATA STATION; AND DETERMINING THE ACTION TO 
BE EXEMPT FROM CEQA 

WHEREAS, the Arcata Fire Protection District is a duly fire protection district 
pursuant to the Fire Protection District Law of 1987, and, as such, has the power to 
acquire property by any means pursuant to Section 13861(b) of the Health and Safety 
Code; and 

WHEREAS, since 1975, the District has leased from the Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ 
Association, Inc. (“AVFA”), a California non-profit corporation, that certain real 
property located at 631 9th Street, Arcata, CA 95521 (“Downtown Station”), for the 
operation of a fire station; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to acquire an option to purchase the Downtown Station 
from AVFA on the terms and conditions set forth in the Option Agreement attached 
hereto as Exhibit A for the continued operation of a fire station; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors believes that acquiring the Downtown Station will 
be in the best interest of the District; and 

WHEREAS, by way of this Resolution, the Board approves the proposed Option 
Agreement and authorizes the Fire Chief of the District and/or the President of the 
Board of Directors to execute the Option Agreement on behalf of the District.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board approves the Option Agreement and authorizes the Fire Chief and/or
President of the Board of Directors to execute the Option Agreement; and

2. Prior to execution of the Option Agreement, the Board authorizes the Fire Chief,
in consultation with and approval of District Counsel, to make any non-substantive
edits to the Option Agreement; and

3. The approval of the Option Agreement is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section
15061(b)(3), exempting project approvals where “it can be seen with certainty
that there is no possibility that that the activity in question may have a significant
effect on the environment.”  The approval of the Option Agreement is further
exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15301, exempting project approvals
for the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor

Attachment 1

86



Page 2 of 3 
Resolution No. 24-317 

alteration of existing public or private structures and facilities. The District will 
continue to utilize the real property in the same way it has utilized the property 
for at least 10 years.  Any potential improvement, project and/or activity on the 
real property will be fully evaluated in compliance with CEQA when and if such a 
project is planned.   

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of September 2024, by the following 
roll call vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

__________________________________ 
Eric Loudenslager, President 

Attest: 

____________________ 
Katie Hill, Board Clerk/Secretary 

87



Page 3 of 3 
Resolution No. 24-317 

EXHIBIT A 

[FOLLOWS THIS PAGE] 

88



OPTION AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE 

OF  

ARCATA FIRE STATION PROPERTY 

BETWEEN 

ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS’ 

ASSOCIATION, INC. 

AND 

 ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Exhibit A

89



Page 2 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Option Agreement………………………………………………………………..3 

Exhibit A – Legal Description of Property………………………………8 

Exhibit B – Memorandum of Option…………………………………….10 

Exhibit 1 - Legal Description of Property………………………...13 

Exhibit C – Purchase Agreement………………………………………...15 

Exhibit 1 Legal Description of the Property…………………...31 

Exhibit 2 Lease and License Agreement……………………….32 

Exhibit 1 - Description of the Property……………………40 

Exhibit 2 - First Floor Footprint…………………………...41 

90



Page 3 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

OPTION AGREEMENT 

This Option Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of _________________, 2024, by and 

between the ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC., a California 

nonprofit corporation (“Optionor”), and the ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, a 

California fire protection special district (“Optionee”). Optionor and Optionee are also referred to 

herein, individually, as a “party” and, collectively, as the “parties”.  

Recitals 

A. WHEREAS, Optionor is a non-profit public benefit corporation that exists to

promote and support fire protection services within the boundaries of the Arcata Fire Protection 

District. 

B. WHEREAS, Optionee is a duly formed and operating fire protection district that

provides fire protection and other emergency services to residents and businesses within its 

boundaries. 

C. WHEREAS, Optionor is the owner of certain improved real property located in the

City of Arcata, County of Humboldt, State of California, commonly known as 631 9th Street, 

Arcata, CA 95521 (Humboldt County APN 021-041-002-000), and more particularly described in 

Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”). 

D. WHEREAS, Optionor currently leases the Property to Optionee under the terms

and conditions of the Commercial Rental Agreement dated May 10, 2016, as amended by that 

Amendment to Commercial Rental Agreement dated June 20, 2017, that Notice of Rent Increase 

dated July 23, 2021, and that Second Amendment to Commercial Rental Agreement dated October 

___, 2023 (collectively the “Lease”), under which Optionee continues to operate a fire station on 

the Property.   

E. WHEREAS, in order to better ensure the financial stability of Optionee to allow it

to carry out its mission, Optionor desires to grant to Optionee the exclusive right to purchase the 

Property at an agreed price and under the specific terms in this Agreement and the Exhibits 

attached hereto, which are incorporated herein by this reference.    

Agreement 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. OPTION TO PURCHASE. Optionor grants to Optionee an option to purchase the 

Property on the terms and conditions of this Agreement and in the Real Estate Purchase and Sale 

Agreement attached as Exhibit C and incorporated by reference (“Purchase Agreement”). 

Section 2. CONSIDERATION FOR OPTION. Concurrently with the execution of this 

Agreement, Optionee has paid to Optionor as consideration the sum of One Thousand Dollars 

91



Page 4 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

($1,000) for the option. If the option granted under this Agreement is exercised by Optionee, 

Optionor agrees to credit the full amount of the option consideration to the purchase price of the 

Property. 

Section 3. TERM. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of this Agreement and shall 

expire at 11:59 PM (local time) on August 31, 2026 (“Option Term”). 

Section 4. EXERCISE. Provided Optionee is not in default under this Agreement, this option may 

be exercised by Optionee’s delivering to Optionor before the expiration of the Option Term written 

notice of the exercise (“Exercise Notice”), which shall state that the option is exercised without 

condition or qualification. The Exercise Notice must be accompanied by two (2) copies of the 

Purchase Agreement executed by Optionee, with the first paragraph of the Purchase Agreement 

completed by insertion of the date on which the Exercise Notice is given. 

Section 5. EXECUTION OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT. On receipt by Optionor of the 

Exercise Notice and two (2) copies of the Purchase Agreement executed by Optionee, Optionor 

shall promptly execute the Purchase Agreement and deliver an executed copy to Optionee. 

Optionor’s failure to execute and deliver a copy of the Purchase Agreement in accordance with 

this Section shall not affect the validity of the Purchase Agreement. The Purchase Agreement shall 

be immediately effective and binding on both Optionor and Optionee without further execution by 

the parties, on exercise of the option in accordance with Section 4 hereof. 

Section 6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. Optionor warrants that Optionor is 

the owner of the Property and has marketable and insurable fee simple title to the Property clear 

of restrictions, leases, liens, and other encumbrances (excluding the current Redwood Capital Bank 

mortgage), except as permitted in the Purchase Agreement. If this option is exercised by Optionee, 

Optionor will convey title to the Property by grant deed. During the Option Term and until the 

Property is conveyed to Optionee, if this option is exercised, Optionor will not further encumber 

the Property in any way nor grant any property or contract right relating to the Property without 

the prior written consent of Optionee. 

Section 7. TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for this Option Agreement. If the option 

is not exercised in the manner provided in Section 4 hereof before the expiration of the Option 

Term, Optionee shall have no interest in the Property and the option may not be revived by any 

subsequent payment or further action by Optionee. 

Section 8. QUITCLAIM DEED. If this Agreement is terminated, Optionee agrees, if requested 

by Optionor, to execute, acknowledge, and deliver a quitclaim deed to Optionor within ten (10) 

days after termination and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver any other documents required by 

any title company to remove the cloud of this option from the Property. 

Section 9. NOTICES. All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be either (i) 

personally delivered; (ii) sent via certified or registered mail, postage prepaid; (iii) overnight 

courier (such as Federal Express, DHL, etc.); (iv) by electronic scan and transfer by e-mail; or (v) 

by telecopy transmittal. If sent via certified or registered mail, receipt shall be deemed effective 

forty-eight (48) hours after being deposited in the United States mail. If sent via telecopy 

transmission, a confirming copy shall be sent to the sender, and receipt of the telecopy transmittal 

shall be deemed effective at the time the telecopy is transmitted from the location where the 

92



Page 5 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

transmission originates. If sent via overnight courier, receipt shall be deemed effective twenty-four 

(24) hours after the sending thereof. If sent via certified mail, registered mail, prepaid postage, or

overnight courier, Optionee will clearly print “ATTN. PURCHASE OPTION” on the outside of

the envelope. Once received at the Optionor’s mailing address, Optionee’s business manager will

send email notifications to the Optionor stating that Purchase Option documents have been

received. Receipt will be deemed effective at the time the email notification is sent to Optionor. If

sent via electronic scan and transfer by e-mail, receipt shall be deemed effective at the time the e-

mail correspondence is transmitted from the location where the transmission originates; if the

electronic scan and transfer by e-mail occurs on a Saturday, Sunday or Holiday (recognized by the

California State Legislature), the transmission will not be deemed delivered until the next

following business day. All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given to the

parties at the following respective address.

 To Optionor: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association, Inc. 

Attn: Board of Directors 

2149 Central Avenue 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 

Email: _rbwillisii@gmail.com 

Email:   rjnakamoto@gmail.com 

Email:  davewhite@sbcglobal.net 

Email:   woodfive150@outlook.com 

To Optionee: Arcata Fire Protection District 

Attn: Fire Chief 

2149 Central Avenue 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 

With copy to: Ryan T. Plotz 

The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP 

426 First Street 

Eureka, CA 95501 

E-mail:rplotz@mitchelllawfirm.com

These addresses may be changed by written notice to the other party, provided that no notice of a 

change of address shall be effective until actual receipt of that notice. Copies of notices are for 

informational purposes only, and a failure to give or receive copies of any notice shall not be 

deemed a failure to give notice. 

Section 10. TRANSFER. Optionee may not assign or transfer this Agreement and the rights under 

it without Optionor’s prior written consent. 

Section 11. LITIGATION COSTS. If any legal action or any other proceeding, including 

arbitration or action for declaratory relief, is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or 

because of an alleged dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with this 

Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees and other 

costs, in addition to any other relief to which the party may be entitled. “Prevailing party” shall 

93

mailto:_rbwillisii@gmail.com
mailto:rjnakamoto@gmail.com
mailto:davewhite@sbcglobal.net


Page 6 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

include without limitation:(a) a party who dismisses an action in exchange for sums allegedly 

due;(b) the party who receives performance from the other party of an alleged breach of covenant 

or a desired remedy where that is substantially equal to the relief sought in an action; or(c) the 

party determined to be the prevailing party by a court of law. 

Section 12. MEMORANDUM OF OPTION. Immediately following the execution of this 

Agreement by Optionor, the Memorandum of Option Agreement attached to this Agreement as 

Exhibit B shall be recorded by Optionor with the official records of Humboldt County, California. 

Section 13. SURVIVAL. The terms of this Agreement shall survive the close of escrow of the 

Property unless there is a contradiction between the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement and 

this Agreement, in which event the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement shall control. 

Section 14. SUCCESSORS. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective 

heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assignees of the parties to this Agreement. 

Section 15. WAIVERS. No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision in this Agreement 

shall be deemed a waiver of any other covenant or provision in this Agreement, and no waiver 

shall be valid unless in writing and executed by the waiving party. 

Section 16. CONSTRUCTION. Section headings are solely for the convenience of the parties 

and are not a part of and shall not be used to interpret this Agreement. The singular form shall 

include the plural and vice versa. This Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been prepared 

by one of the parties, but rather as if both parties have prepared it. Unless otherwise indicated, all 

references to sections are to this Agreement. 

Section 17. FURTHER ASSURANCES. Whenever requested by the other party, each party shall 

execute, acknowledge, and deliver all further conveyances, agreements, confirmations, 

satisfactions, releases, powers of attorney, instruments of further assurance, approvals, consents, 

and all further instruments and documents as may be necessary, expedient, or proper to complete 

any conveyances, transfers, sales, and agreements covered by this Agreement, and to do all other 

acts and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all requested documents to carry out the intent and 

purpose of this Agreement. 

Section 18. THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is 

intended to confer on any person, other than the parties to this Agreement and their respective 

successors and assigns, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement. 

Section 19. INTEGRATION. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, 

and expressly supersedes all previous or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, 

representations, or statements between the parties respecting this Option Agreement for the 

Property. 

Section 20. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

Section 21. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may not be amended or altered except by a written 

instrument executed by Optionor and Optionee. 

94



 

 Page 7 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

Section 22. PARTIAL INVALIDITY. Any provision of this Agreement that is unenforceable or 

invalid or the inclusion of which would adversely affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of 

this Agreement shall be of no effect, but all the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall 

remain in full force. 

Section 23. EXHIBITS. All attached exhibits are incorporated in this Agreement by this 

reference. 

Section 24. AUTHORITY OF PARTIES. All persons executing this Agreement on behalf of 

any party to this Agreement warrant that they have the authority to execute this Agreement on 

behalf of that party. 

Section 25. GOVERNING LAW. The validity, meaning, and effect of this Agreement shall be 

determined in accordance with California laws. 

Section 26. AMENDMENT TO LEASE.  Conditioned upon the full execution and non-

repudiation of this Agreement by Optionor, Optionee hereby agrees that it will not exercise 

its right to terminate the Lease pursuant to the second paragraph of Section 2 of that Second 

Amendment to Commercial Rental Agreement dated October ___, 2023, which paragraph 

provides:  

Notwithstanding anything in this Amendment or the Lease to the contrary, Tenant 

shall have the unqualified right to terminate the Lease, upon the giving of 180 days’ 

advance written notice, if Tenant determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, 

that the Adjusted Rent is not acceptable. In such event, Tenant shall send written 

notice of its election to terminate the Lease on or before November 15, 2024. For 

the avoidance of doubt, Tenant shall be obligated to pay Landlord the Adjusted 

Rent through the effective date of the termination. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS THIS PAGE]  

95



Page 8 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set 

forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 

SIGNATURES 

OPTIONOR: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association Inc. 

BY: 

Name: Roy Willis 

Its: President  

OPTIONEE: Arcata Fire Protection District 

BY: 

Name:  

Its: 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the Property 

Exhibit B Memorandum of Option  

Exhibit C Purchase Agreement 

96



 

 Page 9 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

Exhibit “A” 

Legal Description 

 

 

 

[TO BE INSERTED] 

 

 

  

97



 

 Page 10 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

Exhibit “B” 

Memorandum of Option  

 

 

 

[Follows this page] 

 

  

98



Page 11 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Recording Requested By: 

Arcata Fire Protection District 

and When Recorded Return To: 

The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP 

Attn: Ryan T. Plotz 

426 1st Street 

Eureka, CA 95501 

APN:021-041-002-000 Space Above this Line for Recorder’s Use Only 

MEMORANDUM OF OPTION AGREEMENT 

This Memorandum of Option Agreement (this “Memorandum”) is made as of 
, 2024 (the “Effective Date”) and executed by the Arcata Volunteer 

Firefighters’ Association Inc. (hereinafter “Optionor”).  Pursuant to that certain written “Option 
Agreement” dated     , 2024, and entered and executed by and between 
Optionor and the Arcata Fire Protection District, a California special district (“Optionee”), 
Optionor has granted Optionee an option and right to purchase certain real property owned by 
Optionor situated in Humboldt County, California, commonly known as 631 9th Street, Arcata, 
California, and more particularly described in attached Exhibit 1, incorporated herein by reference 
(“Property”).  This Memorandum is recorded for the express purpose of imparting actual and 
constructive notice of the existence of the Option Agreement to all persons and entities which may 
seek or take any subsequent interest(s) in the Property. 

Section 1. Term 

The term of the Option begins on , 2024, and ends on August 31, 2026, 
(“Term”), unless terminated sooner in accordance with the Option Agreement. 

Section 2. Termination 

The Option Agreement shall automatically terminate and shall have no further force upon 
the first of the following events to occur: 

(a) The purchase of the Property by Optionee;

(b) The assignment or attempt to assign by Optionee of Optionee's rights under the Option
Agreement in contravention of the Option Agreement; or 

(c) The end of the Term.

Section 3. Price and Terms 

The parties have executed and recorded this instrument to give notice of the Option 
Agreement and the respective rights and obligations of Optionee and Optionor. The price and other 
terms are in the unrecorded Option Agreement, which is incorporated by reference in its entirety 

99



Page 12 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

in this Memorandum. In the event of any inconsistency between this Memorandum and the Option 
Agreement, the Option Agreement shall control. 

Section 4. Assignment 

Optionee's rights and obligations under the Option Agreement shall not be assigned without 
Optionor's prior written consent. 

Section 5. Successors and Assigns 

This Memorandum and the Option Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 
parties and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns, subject, however, to the provisions of 
the Option Agreement on assignment. 

Section 6. Governing Law 

This Memorandum and the Option Agreement are governed by California law.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Optionor has signed this Memorandum as of ____________. 

OPTIONOR: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association Inc. 

BY: 

Name:  

Its: 

100



Page 13 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

State of ___________________  ) 

County of ___________________ ) 

On __________________________, before me, _______________________________________, 
personally appeared __________________________ who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and 
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of ______________ that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature _______________________________________ (Seal) 

101



 

 Page 14 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

 

Exhibit “1” 

Legal Description 

 

 

 

[TO BE INSERTED] 

 

 

 

  

102



 

 Page 15 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

Exhibit “C” 

Purchase Agreement 

 

 

 

[FOLLOWS THIS PAGE] 

  

103



Page 16 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE AND 

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 

This AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE AND JOINT ESCROW 

INSTRUCTIONS (this “Purchase Agreement”) is made as of the _____day of____________, 

202___(the “Effective Date”), by and between ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS’ 

ASSOCIATION, INC., a California nonprofit corporation(“Seller”), and the ARCATA FIRE 

PROTECTION DISTRICT, a California fire protection special district(“Buyer”). Buyer and 

Seller are also referred to herein, individually, as a “party” and, collectively, as the “parties”.  

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain improved real property located in the

City of Arcata, County of Humboldt, State of California, commonly known as 631 9th Street, 

Arcata, CA 95521 (Humboldt County APN 021-041-002-000), and more particularly described in 

Exhibit 1 hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”). 

B. WHEREAS, reference is made hereto to that certain Deed of Trust recorded in

Humboldt County on August 14, 2019, as Document No. 2019-014092, securing a Promissory 

Note made by Seller to Redwood Capital Bank in the principal amount of $1,779,191(the “Loan”). 

As of its July 2024 Loan Statement from Redwood Capital Bank, the current balance of the Loan 

is $_________________. 

C. WHEREAS, Seller currently leases the Property to Buyer under the terms and

conditions of the Commercial Rental Agreement dated May 10, 2016, as amended by that 

Amendment to Commercial Rental Agreement dated June 20, 2017, that Notice of Rent Increase 

dated July 23, 2021, and that Second Amendment to Commercial Rental Agreement dated October 

___, 2023, under which Buyer continues to operate a fire station.  

D. WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell the Property to Buyer, and Buyer desires to

purchase the Property from Seller, all on the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including, 

without limitation, Seller’s continuing rights of possession to portions of the Property pursuant to 

that certain License and Lease Agreement attached as Exhibit 2 hereto and incorporated herein 

(the “License”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which are material to 

the terms of this Agreement and the covenants and agreements of the parties contained herein, the 

parties hereto agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. PURCHASE AND SALE.  Seller agrees to sell the Property to Buyer, and Buyer agrees

to purchase the Property from Seller, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth in this

Purchase Agreement.

104



Page 17 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

2. PURCHASE PRICE.  The total purchase price for the Property shall be as set forth below

in Paragraph 2(a), payable by Buyer as set forth in Paragraphs 2(b) and2(c), below.

(a) The Purchase Price shall be the amount necessary to pay off the Loan, in full,

including any bank, escrow or government fees, as of the date of the Close of Escrow, less any late 

payment penalties applied to the Loan or the amount of any delinquent Loan payment(s) that 

became delinquent prior to the Close of Escrow (“Purchase Price”).   

(b) Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date, Buyer shall deliver to Escrow

Holder (as defined in Paragraph 12.1 below), the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) (the 

“Deposit”) by good check or wire transfer of immediately available funds.  The Deposit shall be 

deemed to constitute adequate consideration for Buyer’s right to terminate this Purchase 

Agreement at any time during the term of any Contingency (as defined in Paragraph 4.1 of this 

Agreement, below).  The Seller expressly deems the Deposit to constitute adequate consideration 

in support of the enforceability of this Purchase Agreement, in its entirety. Upon Buyer’s failure 

to terminate this Agreement within the time period permitted for Buyer to so terminate with respect 

to each contingency set forth in said Paragraph 4.1, or upon Buyer’s express waiver of Buyer’s 

right to terminate this Agreement with respect to any such contingency, the Deposit shall be 

deemed vested and shall be released to Seller upon Buyer’s failure to Close Escrow for any reason 

other than Seller’s default. 

(c) The balance of the Purchase Price (i.e., the Purchase Price less the Deposit and

Buyer’s $1,000 option consideration held by Seller) shall be deposited in Escrow by Buyer prior 

to Close of Escrow for delivery to Seller by way of wire transfer of immediately available funds 

at the Close of Escrow. Buyer intends to finance all or a portion of the Purchase Price in its sole 

and absolute discretion. 

3. TITLE / SURVEY.

3.1 Title.  Title to the Property shall be conveyed to Buyer upon the Close of Escrow 

by a Grant Deed with title to the Property evidenced by the commitment of the Escrow Holder to 

issue a standard ALTA policy of title insurance with liability in the amount of the Purchase Price 

showing title to the Property vested in Buyer (“Title Commitment”).Within twenty (20) days of 

the Effective Date, Seller shall provide to Buyer a  preliminary title report (“Preliminary Report”) 

from a national title insurance company of Buyer’s choice (“Title Company”), together with copies 

of all exceptions and the documents supporting exceptions shown in such Preliminary Report. 

Within ten (10) days of receipt of the Preliminary Report, Buyer shall review the Preliminary 

Report and notify Seller in writing (the “Title Objection Notice”) of any title exceptions to which 

Buyer objects (“Title Objections”). Within ten (10) business days of receipt of the Title Objection 

Notice (“Seller’s Title Response Date”), Seller shall notify Buyer as to which Title Objections, if any, 

Seller will cure prior to Close of Escrow (as defined in Paragraph 12.2 below).  All monetary 

liens/encumbrances affecting the Property (including, without limitation, the Loan) shall be deemed 

objected to by Buyer without further Title Objection Notice. If Seller does not respond to the Title 

Objection Notice within ten (10) business days, then Seller shall be deemed to have elected to cure 

no Title Objections.  If Seller does not elect to cure all Title Objections prior to Close of Escrow, then, 

at the option of Buyer, Buyer may (i) terminate this Purchase Agreement by providing written notice 

105



Page 18 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

of such termination to Seller prior to 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on the date that is ten (10) business days 

following Seller’s Title Response Date, or (ii) proceed to close and take title subject to such Title 

Objections.  In the event of termination as provided here in, the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, 

the option consideration shall be returned to Seller, Buyer shall be responsible for the escrow costs, 

and the parties shall have no further rights, duties, liabilities or obligations hereunder, except for those 

matters that specifically survive termination of this Purchase Agreement.  Any and all exceptions to 

title to which Buyer does not object or which upon such objection, Seller does not agree to cure and 

Buyer does not elect to terminate this Purchase Agreement shall be deemed “Permitted Exceptions”. 

4. CONTINGENCIES.

4.1 Buyer's obligation to purchase the Property is subject to the following 

contingencies described in subparagraphs (a) through (e) below in this Paragraph 4.1 

(“Contingencies”).  Each and all of the following Contingencies are for the sole benefit of Buyer 

and may be waived or deemed satisfied by Buyer in Buyer's sole and absolute discretion.    

(a) Inspection/Due Diligence Contingency. Buyer's inspection and examination of the

Condition of the Property (as defined in Paragraph 9.1 below).  Buyer shall have access to the 

Property at reasonable times and shall have the right to conduct, at Buyer's expense, environmental 

investigations and such other studies with respect to the Condition of the Property as Buyer may 

desire.  Buyer shall have until 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on the date which is ninety (90) days 

following the Effective Date(the “Inspection Period”), to conduct such tests and studies, and to 

give written notice to Seller of any conditions unacceptable to Buyer. Buyer shall hold and save 

Seller harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, damage, liability, injury or expense, arising 

out of or in any way related to damage to property, injury to or death of persons, or the assertion 

of lien claims caused by such entry, inspection and implementation of environmental 

investigations and other studies with respect to the Condition of the Property.  If Buyer elects to 

terminate this Purchase Agreement by reason of failure of the Contingency set forth in this 

subparagraph (a), Buyer shall promptly upon such election deliver to Seller all written reports, 

studies and information prepared by third parties for Buyer which pertain to the Condition of the 

Property. 

(b) Financing Contingency. Within ninety (90)days from the Effective Date, Buyer

shall have obtained, in a form and of a type approved by Buyer in its sole and absolute discretion, 

financing for all or a portion of the Purchase Price as determined by Buyer (“Financing 

Period”).Buyer shall have the right, in its sole discretion, and, upon written notice to Seller, to 

extend the Financing Period for an additional forty-five (45) days in the event Buyer has not 

secured the necessary financing. 

(c) Secured Financing.  Buyer shall have secured, within the Financing Period, actual

financing for the portion of the Purchase Price Buyer desires to finance, in its sole and absolute 

discretion and upon securing such financing within the Financing Period, the contingency shall be 

deemed waived.  The contingency set forth in this paragraph shall remain in place up to the time 

of Close of Escrow subject to the following:  In the event Buyer shall fail to Close Escrow in a 

timely manner upon Buyer’s waiver of the Financing Contingency for any reason other than 

Seller’s default, the Deposit shall be deemed vested with respect to this Contingency. 

106



 

 Page 19 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

 

(d) CEQA. Buyer’s compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and 

expiration of any applicable statute of limitations regarding the same prior to Closing. The 

contingency set forth in this paragraph shall remain in place up to the time of Close of Escrow 

provided, upon the expiration of such statute of limitations prior to the time of Close of Escrow 

this condition shall be deemed waived and the Deposit shall be vested. 

 

(e) Appraisal Contingency. A written appraisal of the Property by a licensed or 

certified appraiser be obtained and the Appraisal Contingency shall be deemed waived and the 

Deposit vested if the appraised value shall be equal to or more than the Purchase Price.  Buyer 

shall have until 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on the date which is ninety (90) days following the 

Effective Date (the “Appraisal Contingency Period”), to obtain such an appraisal, and to give 

written notice to Seller of the failure of this contingency.  Buyer shall procure any desired 

appraisals at its sole cost and expense and, within the Appraisal Contingency Period, shall provide 

Seller with a copy of such written appraisal of the Property.   

 

4.2 If Buyer disapproves of the satisfaction of any Contingency within the applicable 

time periods provided above, Buyer's sole remedy shall be to terminate this Purchase Agreement 

and Seller shall have no obligation to remedy any Contingency which Buyer disapproves.  If this 

Purchase Agreement terminates as a result of the failure of the satisfaction of any of the 

Contingencies, all sums (other than the Deposit which shall remain the property of the Seller) and 

documents deposited in Escrow shall be returned to the parties who respectively deposited the 

same, and Buyer shall pay the Escrow costs, and the parties shall have no further rights, duties, 

liabilities or obligations hereunder, except for those matters that specifically survive termination of 

this Agreement. If the Deposit has become vested with respect to such Contingencies the 

Liquidated Damages provisions of Section 10, below, shall survive such termination and shall be 

applicable to the disposition of the Deposit. 

 

4.3 If Buyer fails to give written notice to Seller of its disapproval of any Contingency 

within the respective applicable time limit set forth above in Paragraph 4.1, it shall conclusively 

be deemed that Buyer has waived such Contingency and such Contingency shall conclusively be 

deemed satisfied. 

 

5. [Intentionally Omitted.] 

 

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY SELLER. 

 

6.1 Seller makes the representations and warranties in this Paragraph 6, each and all of 

which shall survive any and all inquiries and investigations made by Buyer and shall survive the 

Close of Escrow and recordation of the Grant Deed. 

 

6.1.1 The individual(s) signing this Purchase Agreement on behalf of Seller has 

the power and authority to enter into this Purchase Agreement and to consummate the 

transactions contemplated hereby.  

 

107



Page 20 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

6.1.2 To the best of Seller's knowledge, neither the entering into this Purchase 

Agreement nor the performance of any of Seller's obligations under this Agreement will 

violate the terms of any contract, agreement or instrument to which Seller is a party. 

6.1.3 To Seller’s actual knowledge (which shall mean the actual knowledge of 

the current members of Seller’s Board of Directors, without necessity of an investigation 

of these matters by any member of such Board) Seller has not been served (by means of 

formal, legal service of process as required by law) or formally notified in writing by any 

governmental or quasi-governmental authority (i) that the Property or any adjoining 

property, contains or may contain any “Hazardous Materials” in violation of any 

“Environmental Regulations” (as those terms are defined in this Paragraph 6.1.3, below); 

or (ii) that the Seller has stored, used or maintained Hazardous Materials or suffered, 

permitted, allowed or acquiesced in any storage, use or maintenance of Hazardous 

Materials on, in or under the Property in violation of any Environmental Regulations. As 

used in this Purchase Agreement, the terms “Environmental Regulations” and “Hazardous 

Materials” shall have the following meanings: 

(a) “Environmental Regulations” shall mean all applicable statutes,

regulations, rules, ordinances, codes, licenses, permits, orders, approvals, plans, 

authorizations, and similar items, of all governmental agencies, departments, 

commissions, boards, bureaus or instrumentalities of the United States, states and 

political subdivisions thereof and all applicable judicial and administrative and 

regulatory decrees, judgments and orders relating to the protection of human health 

or the environment, including, without limitation: (i) all requirements, including 

but not limited to those pertaining to reporting, licensing, permitting, investigation 

and remediation of emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of 

Hazardous Materials, whether solid, liquid or gaseous in nature, into the air, surface 

water, groundwater or land, or relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, 

use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials, 

whether solid, liquid or gaseous in nature; and (ii) all requirements pertaining to the 

protection of the health and safety of employees or the public. 

(b) “Hazardous Materials” shall mean (i) any flammables, explosive or

radioactive materials, hazardous wastes, toxic substances or related materials 

including, without limitation, substances defined as “hazardous substances,” 

“hazardous materials”, “toxic substances” or “solid waste” in the Comprehensive 

Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 

U.S.C. Sec. 9601, et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. 

Section 1801, et seq.; the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C., Section 2601 

et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C. Section 

6901 et seq.; and in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant 

to said laws; (ii) those substances listed in the United States Department of 

Transportation Table (49 C.F.R. 172.101 and amendments thereto) or by the 

Environmental Protection Agency (or any successor agency) as hazardous 

substances (40 C.F.R. Part 302 and amendments thereto); (iii) those substances 

defined as “hazardous wastes,” “hazardous substances” or “toxic substances” in 

108

http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=42USCAS9601&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=42USCAS9601&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=15USCAS2601&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=15USCAS2601&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=42USCAS6901&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=42USCAS6901&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=49CFRS172.101&db=1000547&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw


Page 21 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

any similar federal, state or local laws or in the regulations adopted and publications 

promulgated pursuant to any of the foregoing laws or which otherwise are regulated 

by any governmental authority, agency, department, commission, board or 

instrumentality of the United States of America, the State of California or any 

political subdivision thereof, (iv) any pollutant or contaminant or hazardous, 

dangerous or toxic chemicals, materials, or substances within the meaning of any 

other applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, ordinance, or requirement 

(including consent decrees and administrative orders) relating to or imposing 

liability or standards of conduct concerning any hazardous, toxic or dangerous 

waste, substance or material, all as amended; (v) petroleum or any by-products 

thereof; (vi) any radioactive material, including any source, special nuclear or by-

product material as defined at 42 U.S.C. Sections 2011 et seq., as amended, and in 

the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to said law; (vii) 

asbestos in any form or condition; and (viii) polychlorinated biphenyls. 

6.1.4 Until the Close of Escrow, the Property will continue to be operated in 

substantially the same manner as operated as of the Effective Date. Seller will not do or 

cause anything to be done that would change, alter or modify the operation of the Property 

without the prior written consent of Buyer. 

6.1.5 Seller has the right to consult or contract with a real estate agent to seek 

professional assistance at the sole cost of the Seller. Seller shall pay, and shall hold Buyer 

harmless from and against, any commission or finder's fee payable to any agent or broker 

who represents or claims to represent Seller. 

6.1.6 Seller will not alter the physical condition of the Property from and after the 

date of this Purchase Agreement, reasonable wear and tear excepted. If, through no fault 

of Seller, the physical condition of the Property is different on the date scheduled for the 

Close of Escrow as of the date of this Purchase Agreement, the terms and conditions of 

Paragraph 6.2, below shall apply.  

6.1.7 On or before the fifteenth (15th) day following the Effective Date, Seller 

shall disclose to Buyer in writing and provide Buyer all information actually known to 

Seller and in the physical possession of Seller’s Board of Directors as of that date which 

may be reasonably necessary to evaluate the condition or market desirability of the 

Property, other than matters that would be obvious and apparent to Buyer from a limited 

inspection of the property.  

6.1.8 Seller is not in default in regard to the Loan, including all loan documents 

relating thereto with Redwood Capital Bank, and has not received any notification from its 

lender in which the lender contends a default has occurred. 

6.1.9 Seller will remain current on its Loan and not commit any act or omission 

that would constitute a default on its Loan prior to the Close of Escrow. 

109

http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=42USCAS2011&db=1000546&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw


Page 22 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

6.1.10 Seller has not leased to any person or entity (other than its existing lease 

with Buyer) all or any portion of the Property that will extend beyond the Close of Escrow, 

and (excepting Seller’s rights under the attached Lease and License Agreement), Seller 

shall ensure that any leases or other consents to any third party for the occupancy or use of 

the Property will be terminated prior to the Close of Escrow and that the Property will 

convey to Buyer free and clear of any such leases or other use agreements. 

6.2 If, prior to the Close of Escrow, new events have occurred which were beyond the 

control of Seller and which render any previously true representation or warranty untrue, Seller 

shall, within ten (10) days thereafter (but in no event after the Close of Escrow), disclose those 

matters by written notice to Buyer. Buyer shall have ten (10) days after the earlier of (i) such 

disclosure; or (ii) Buyer's independent discovery that such representation or warranty has become 

untrue, to elect, in its sole and absolute discretion, and as its sole remedy, by written notice to 

Seller within said ten (10) day period, whether (1) to purchase the Property or (2) terminate this 

Purchase Agreement. If Buyer elects to terminate this Purchase Agreement pursuant to this 

Paragraph 6.2, Escrow shall immediately terminate upon Seller's receipt of Buyer's notice of 

election to terminate this Purchase Agreement and all sums and documents deposited in Escrow 

shall be returned to the parties who deposited the same and Buyer shall pay all of Escrow costs. If 

Buyer fails to notify Seller and Escrow Holder of its election to terminate this Purchase Agreement 

within said ten (10) business day time period provided above, Buyer shall be deemed to have 

accepted the modified representations and warranties and elected to purchase the Property. 

6.3 Other than those express representations and warranties contained in Paragraphs 

6.1 through 6.2 of this Purchase Agreement, above, Seller makes no warranty or representation, 

express or implied, including but not limited to, implied warranties of merchantability and fitness 

for a particular purpose, and all such other warranties are expressly disclaimed. 

6.4 Except to the extent Seller has made a specific representation and warranty with 

respect thereto, no document or information provided by Seller to Buyer shall constitute a 

representation as to the completeness or accuracy of such documents or information.  

7. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY BUYER.

7.1 Buyer makes the following representations and warranties in this Paragraph 7, each 

and all of which shall survive any and all inquiries and investigations made by Seller and shall 

survive the Close of Escrow and recordation of the Grant Deed. 

7.1.1 Each and all of the information, including without limitation the Lending 

Commitment and any financial statement, if any, delivered by Buyer to Seller is true and 

correct. 

7.1.2 Buyer has neither engaged nor dealt with any broker or finder in connection 

with the sale contemplated by this Purchase Agreement.  Buyer shall pay any commission 

or finder’s fee payable to any other party who represents or claims to represent Buyer.  

110



Page 23 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

7.1.3 Buyer is a California special district, duly organized, validly existing and in 

good standing under the laws of the State of California, and has the power and authority to 

enter into this Purchase Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated 

hereby. The Buyer, and the specific, individual parties signing this Purchase Agreement on 

behalf of Buyer represent and warrant that the parties signing this Purchase Agreement on 

behalf of the Buyer have the full legal power, authority and right to execute and deliver 

this Purchase Agreement. 

7.1.4 Buyer has made or will make its own investigation concerning the 

Condition of the Property (as said term is defined in Paragraph 9.1 of this Purchase 

Agreement, below), the condition of title or any other matter pertaining to the Property, 

and, other than the specific representations and warranties made by Seller pursuant to 

Paragraphs 6.1 through 6.2 of this Purchase Agreement, above, Buyer is not relying on any 

representations, warranties or inducements of Seller with respect to the Condition of the 

Property. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION.

8.1 Subject to any other provisions of this Purchase Agreement to the contrary, each 

party (“Indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify and hold the other party (“Indemnitee”) harmless from 

and against any claim, loss, damage or expense, including any reasonable attorneys’ fees 

(including attorneys’ fees on appeal), asserted against or suffered by the Indemnitee resulting from: 

(a) Any breach by the Indemnitor of this Purchase Agreement; (b) Any liability of the Indemnitor

with respect to the Property, as further provided in Paragraphs 9.1 through 9.2, below; or (c) The

inaccuracy or breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants made by the

Indemnitor.

8.2 Indemnitee shall submit any claim for indemnification under this Purchase 

Agreement to the Indemnitor in writing within a reasonable time after Indemnitee determines that 

an event has occurred which has given rise to a right of indemnification under this Paragraph 8 

and shall give Indemnitor a reasonable opportunity to investigate and cure any default of 

Indemnitor under this Purchase Agreement and eliminate or remove any claim by a third party. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the nature of Indemnitor's default or the third party claim is such 

that it would be impractical or unreasonable to give Indemnitor an opportunity to investigate and 

cure such default and remove such claim, Indemnitee need not give Indemnitor such opportunity. 

8.3 If such claim for indemnification relates to a claim or demand presented in writing 

by a third party against Indemnitee, Indemnitor shall have the right to employ counsel reasonably 

acceptable to Indemnitee to defend any such claim or demand, and Indemnitee shall make available 

to Indemnitor, or its representatives, all records and other materials in its possession or under its 

control reasonably required by Indemnitor for its use in contesting such liability. If Indemnitor 

does not elect to defend any such claim or demand, Indemnitee may do so at its option, but shall 

not have any obligation to do so. 

Buyer’s Initials:   //  Seller’s Initials: _____________ 

111



Page 24 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

9. “AS-IS” SALE; ASSUMPTION OF RESPONSIBILITIES.

9.1 “As Is” Sale.  Buyer and its representatives, prior to the Close of Escrow, will have 

been afforded the opportunity to make such inspections of the Property and matters related thereto 

as Buyer and its representatives desire, including, without limitation, governmental laws and 

regulations and actions to which the Property is subject, and Buyer shall accept the Property upon 

the basis of its review and determination of the applicability and effect of such laws and 

regulations(the “Condition of the Property”).  Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Property is 

to be sold and conveyed to and accepted by Buyer in an “AS IS” condition with all faults.  Except 

for those limited representations and warranties stated in Paragraphs 6.1 through 6.4 of this 

Purchase Agreement, above, Seller does not make any representations or warranties, oral or 

written, past, present or future, of any kind whatsoever, either express or implied with respect to 

either the Property or the condition, value, or quality of the Property 

9.2 Effective as of the Close of Escrow and except for the limited representations and 

warranties and obligations of Seller contained in this Purchase Agreement, Buyer shall be deemed 

to have assumed any and all risks, obligations and liabilities relating to the Property, expressly 

including, without limitation any and all risks, obligations and liabilities relating to the Condition 

of the Property.  

10. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.IF BUYER FAILS TO COMPLETE THE PURCHASE OF

THE PROPERTY AS HEREIN PROVIDED BY REASON OF ANY DEFAULT OF BUYER, IT

IS AGREED THAT THE DEPOSIT ACTUALLY MADE PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 2(a)

OF THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT (I.E., $10,000.00 USD) SHALL BE NON-

REFUNDABLE AND SELLER SHALL BE ENTITLED TO SUCH DEPOSIT, WHICH

AMOUNTS SHALL BE ACCEPTED BY SELLER AS LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND NOT

AS A PENALTY AND (TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO RECEIVE ATTORNEYS' FEES

AS PROVIDED IN THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT) SHALL BE SELLER'S SOLE AND

EXCLUSIVE REMEDY. IT IS AGREED THAT SAID AMOUNT CONSTITUTES A

REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF THE DAMAGES TO SELLER PURSUANT TO

CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 1671 ET SEQ. BUYER AND SELLER AGREE THAT

IT WOULD BE IMPRACTICAL OR IMPOSSIBLE TO PRESENTLY PREDICT WHAT

MONETARY DAMAGES SELLER WOULD SUFFER UPON BUYER'S FAILURE TO

COMPLETE ITS PURCHASE OF THE PROPERTY. BUYER DESIRES TO LIMIT THE

MONETARY DAMAGES FOR WHICH IT MIGHT BE LIABLE HEREUNDER AND BUYER

AND SELLER DESIRE TO AVOID THE COSTS AND DELAYS THEY WOULD INCUR IF

A LAWSUIT WERE COMMENCED TO RECOVER DAMAGES OR OTHERWISE ENFORCE

SELLER'S RIGHTS. IF FURTHER INSTRUCTIONS ARE REQUIRED BY ESCROW

HOLDER TO EFFECTUATETHE TERMS OF THIS PARAGRAPH 10, BUYER AND SELLER

AGREE TO EXECUTE THE SAME. THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THIS PROVISION BY

PLACING THEIR INITIALS BELOW:

Buyer’s Initials:   //  Seller’s Initials: 

11. BUYER'S RIGHT TO COMPEL SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. In the event of any

breach or violation of this Agreement by Seller, Buyer expressly reserves the right to seek specific

112

http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=CACIS1671&db=1000200&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw


Page 25 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

performance of the sale and conveyance of the Property to Buyer, without limitation on any and 

all other rights and remedies available to Buyer at law or in equity. 

12. ESCROW AND CLOSING.

12.1 As soon as possible after the Effective Date, Buyer and Seller shall open an escrow

for the purpose of consummating the purchase and sale contemplated by this Purchase Agreement 

(“Escrow”) by depositing an executed copy of this Purchase Agreement with Fidelity National 

Title Company, 515 J St, Eureka, CA 95501 (“Escrow Holder”). This Purchase Agreement shall 

constitute escrow instructions to Escrow Holder. Seller and Buyer shall, promptly upon request by 

Escrow Holder, execute such additional escrow instructions as may be reasonably required by 

Escrow Holder, including Escrow Holder's standard printed conditions and stipulations with 

respect to escrows concerning the purchase and sale of real property; provided, however, that if 

there is any conflict between the provisions of this Purchase Agreement and the provisions of any 

such additional instructions, the provisions of this Purchase Agreement shall prevail. Upon 

delivery to Escrow of a fully executed copy of this Purchase Agreement by both parties, Escrow 

shall be deemed opened on the terms and conditions set forth in this Purchase Agreement. 

12.2 Escrow shall close, and the Grant Deed shall be recorded in the Office of the County 

Recorder of Humboldt County, California on or before the date which is thirty(30) days following 

the expiration of the Inspection Period or the Financing Period, which ever expires later (“Close 

of Escrow”). 

12.3 Within the time set forth below, or if none is specified, prior to the Close of Escrow, 

Seller shall deliver to Escrow Holder, or if so indicated, to Buyer, the following documents and 

items: 

(a) At least one (1) day prior to the Close of Escrow, the duly executed and

acknowledged Grant Deed. 

(b) At least one (1) day prior to Close of Escrow, Seller shall deliver such certifications,

declarations or other documents as may be required under Internal Revenue Code §1445 and 

California Revenue and Tax Code §18662, together with any and all other documents required by 

law pertaining to foreign or out-of-state sellers. 

(c) Two duly executed copies of the Lease and License Agreement attached hereto as

Exhibit 2, which Lease and License Agreement shall become effective as of the Close of Escrow. 

12.4 Buyer shall deliver to Escrow Holder prior to the Close of Escrow the following 

documents and items: 

(a) The balance of the cash portion of the Purchase Price set forth in Paragraph 2(c),

together with an additional sum sufficient to cover Buyer's closing costs as set forth in Paragraph 

12.7.1, below. 

113

http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=26USCAS1445&db=1012823&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tf=-1&rs=WLW8.03&fn=_top&sv=Split&tc=-1&findtype=L&docname=CARTS18662&db=1000222&vr=2.0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&mt=Westlaw


 

 Page 26 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

(b) Two duly executed copies of the Lease and License Agreement attached hereto as 

Exhibit 2, which Lease and License Agreement shall become effective as of the Close of Escrow. 

 

12.5 On the Close of Escrow, the Escrow Holder shall record the Grant Deed and shall 

deliver the monies and instruments to which each party is entitled pursuant to this Purchase 

Agreement, only when the Title Company is in a position to issue its ALTA policy of title 

insurance subject only (i) to the Permitted Exceptions; and (ii) Title Company's standard pre-

printed exceptions, with liability in the amount of the Purchase Price, showing title to the Property 

vested in Buyer (or as designated by Buyer) (“Title Policy”). 

 

12.6 Upon Close of Escrow, the Property shall be delivered to Buyer subject only to the 

Permitted Exceptions and the following items, documents and monies shall be delivered to the 

parties by Escrow Holder as set forth below: 

 

(a) To Seller: the Purchase Price as set forth in Paragraph 2(b) as a direct payment to 

Redwood Capital Bank to pay off, in full, the Loan. 

 

(b) To Buyer: the Title Policy. 

 

(c) To Buyer and Seller: to each, one fully executed Lease and License Agreement. 

 

12.7 Upon Close of Escrow, Escrow and title charges shall be paid in the manner 

provided below.  

 

12.7.1 Seller shall pay:  

 

(a) None, except as set forth in Paragraph 12.8, below. 

 

12.7.2 Buyer shall pay: 

 

(a) All recording fees; and 

 

(b) The cost of any and all documentary transfer tax or stamps or other 

sales tax; and  

 

(c) Escrow fees; and 

 

(d)        The cost of the Title Policy.  

 

12.8 If Escrow fails to close as a result of the default of this Purchase Agreement by a 

party, the defaulting party shall pay all title and escrow charges; provided, however, that nothing 

in this Paragraph 12.8 shall be deemed to limit, and the provisions of this Paragraph 12.8 shall be 

in addition to, all other rights and remedies of the non-defaulting party pursuant to this Purchase 

Agreement. 

 

 

114



Page 27 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

13. PRORATIONS AND POST-CLOSING OBLIGATIONS.

13.1 Prorations shall be made as of the Close of Escrow. All prorations shall be made

on the basis of a thirty (30) day month and shall be paid in cash to Seller if it is entitled thereto, or 

shall be credited against the cash portion of the Purchase Price if Buyer is entitled thereto. Such 

prorations shall be made by Escrow Holder on the basis of a statement(s) approved by Buyer and 

Seller and deposited into the Escrow prior to the Close of Escrow. The date used for prorations is 

hereinafter referred to as the “Proration Date.” 

(a) All real estate taxes and all personal property taxes due and owing as of the

Proration Date, and all penalties and interest thereon, shall be paid by Seller. Current real estate 

taxes, special assessments and personal property taxes which are not yet due and owing shall be 

prorated based upon the most recent tax bill, so that the portion of current taxes allocable to the 

period from the beginning of such tax year through the Proration Date shall be charged to and paid 

by Seller and the portion of the current taxes allocable to the portion of such tax year from the 

Proration Date to the end of such tax year shall be charged to and paid by Buyer. Proration of taxes 

and assessments shall be final as of the Proration Date, regardless of the amount of taxes or 

assessments that actually are, or subsequently become, due. 

(b) Expenses of operating the Property (other than insurance premiums, taxes and

utility charges) which were prepaid by Seller for a period beyond the Proration Date. 

13.2 Buyer shall be responsible for obtaining and paying for utility services from and 

after Close of Escrow. 

14. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION PRIOR TO CLOSE OF ESCROW.

If any of the improvements on the Property are destroyed or materially damaged between

the date of this Purchas Agreement and the Close of Escrow, Buyer may terminate this Purchase 

Agreement upon notice to Seller. If Buyer, however, elects to accept the Property, all proceeds of 

insurance payable to Seller by reason of the destruction, damage shall be paid or assigned to Buyer; 

Seller shall also pay to Buyer the amount of any deductible and coinsurance under any policy. In 

the event of nonmaterial damage to either of the Property, which damage Seller is unwilling to 

repair prior to the Close of Escrow, Buyer shall have the right either to terminate this Purchase 

Agreement or accept such Property in its then existing condition, in which case Buyer shall be 

entitled to a reduction in the Purchase Price to the extent of the cost of repairing the damage. If 

Buyer elects to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Paragraph, Title Company shall 

immediately return the Deposit, together with all accrued interest, to Buyer, and neither party shall 

have any further duties or responsibilities under this Purchase Agreement. 

15. EMINENT DOMAIN.

15.1 The words “condemnation” or “condemned” as used in this Paragraph 15 shall

mean the exercise of, or intent to exercise, the power of eminent domain expressed in writing, as 

well as the filing of any action or proceeding for such purpose, by any person, entity, body, agency 

or authority having the right or power of eminent domain (the “condemning authority”). 

115



Page 28 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

15.2 If Seller receives written notice from a condemning authority advising of a 

condemnation of all or any portion of the Property (“Condemnation Notice”), Seller shall 

immediately advise Buyer of same in writing and deliver therewith a copy of the Condemnation 

Notice. Within ten (10) days after Buyer's receipt of the Condemnation Notice, Buyer shall notify 

Seller of its election to either (i) terminate this Purchase Agreement and the Escrow or (ii) purchase 

the Property. If Buyer elects to terminate this Purchase Agreement, Escrow shall immediately 

terminate upon Seller's receipt of Buyer's notice of election to terminate this Purchase Agreement 

and Escrow Holder shall thereupon promptly return all documents, items and monies in its 

possession to the party who shall have deposited same with Escrow Holder. In the event of such 

termination, Buyer shall pay the Escrow fees. If Buyer elects to purchase the Property, Seller shall 

transfer to Buyer at the Close of Escrow all proceeds from condemnation or Seller's right to receive 

all such proceeds. If Buyer fails to notify Seller of its election under this Paragraph 15, Buyer shall 

be deemed to have elected to purchase the Property. 

16. SURVIVAL OF CLOSE OF ESCROW.  All representations and warranties of the parties

contained in or relating to this Agreement shall, except as expressly stated in this Agreement,

survive the Close of Escrow and the recordation of the Grant Deed and shall not merge therein

unless specifically stated otherwise in this Agreement for a period of five (5) years from the Close

of Escrow after which they shall be of no further force and effect.

17. NOTICES.  All notices to be given pursuant to this Purchase Agreement shall be either (i)

personally delivered; (ii) sent via certified or registered mail, postage prepaid; (iii) overnight

courier (such as Federal Express, DHL, etc.); (iv) by electronic scan and transfer by e-mail; or (v)

by telecopy transmittal. If sent via certified or registered mail, receipt shall be deemed effective

forty-eight (48) hours after being deposited in the United States mail. If sent via telecopy

transmission, a confirming copy shall be sent to the sender, and receipt of the telecopy transmittal

shall be deemed effective at the time the telecopy is transmitted from the location where the

transmission originates. If sent via overnight courier, receipt shall be deemed effective twenty-four

(24) hours after the sending thereof. If sent via electronic scan and transfer by e-mail, receipt shall

be deemed effective at the time the e-mail correspondence is transmitted from the location where

the transmission originates; if the electronic scan and transfer by e-mail occurs on a Saturday,

Sunday or Holiday (recognized by the California State Legislature), the transmission will not be

deemed delivered until the next following business day. All notices to be given pursuant to this

Purchase Agreement shall be given to the parties at the following respective address.

 To Seller: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association, Inc. 

Attn: Board of Directors 

2149 Central Avenue 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 

Email:  rbwillisii@gmail.com 

Email:   rjnakamoto@gmail.com 

Email:   davewhite@sbcglobal.net 

Email:   woodfive150@outlook.com  

To Buyer: Arcata Fire Protection District 

116

mailto:davewhite@sbcglobal.net


Page 29 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Attn: Fire Chief 

2149 Central Avenue 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 

With copy to: Ryan T. Plotz 

The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP 

426 First Street 

Eureka, CA 95501 

E-mail:rplotz@mitchelllawfirm.com

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Purchase Agreement, and the Exhibits attached hereto,

represent the entire Agreement between the parties in connection with the transactions

contemplated hereby and the subject matter hereof and this Purchase Agreement supersedes and

replaces any and all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understandings and communications

between the parties, whether oral or written, with regard to the subject matter hereof. There are no

oral or written agreements, representations or inducements of any kind existing between the parties

relating to this transaction which are not expressly set forth herein. This Purchase Agreement may

not be modified except by a written agreement signed by both Buyer and Seller. Without limiting

the foregoing, Buyer and Seller expressly acknowledge and agree that they have not relied on any

written or oral statements made by the other party's real estate broker in entering into this Purchase

Agreement.

19. BINDING EFFECT. This Purchase Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the

benefit of the parties hereto, their respective heirs, legal representatives, administrators, successors

in interest and assigns.

20. WAIVER.  No waiver by any party at any time of any breach of any provision of this

Purchase Agreement shall be deemed a waiver or a breach of any other provision herein or a

consent to any subsequent breach of the same or another provision. If any action by any party shall

require the consent or approval of another party, such consent or approval of such action on any

one occasion shall not be deemed a consent to or approval of such action on any subsequent

occasion or a consent to or approval of any other action.

21. CAPTIONS AND HEADINGS.  The captions and paragraphs numbers appearing in this

Purchase Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and do not define, limit, construe,

or describe the scope or intent of this Purchase Agreement.

22. COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES.  This Purchase Agreement

may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original and all of which

taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Electronic scan signatures and/or

facsimile signatures shall be deemed to constitute originals.

23. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement has been prepared, negotiated and executed in,

and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of California. Any action or

proceeding relating to or arising out of this Agreement shall be filed, if a State action, in the

117



Page 30 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Humboldt, or if a Federal action, in the 

District of the United States District Court in which the Property is located. 

24. ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  If either party named herein brings an action or proceeding to

enforce the terms hereof or declare rights hereunder, the prevailing party in any such action (or

proceeding), on trial or appeal, shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys' fees to be paid by the

losing party as fixed by the Court.

25. TIME OF ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence with respect to all matters contained in this

Purchase Agreement.

26. DATE OF AGREEMENT.  All references in this Purchase Agreement to the “Effective

Date”, “the date of this Purchase Agreement” or “the date hereof” shall be deemed to refer to the

date set forth in the first paragraph of this Purchase Agreement.

27. INVALIDITY OF ANY PROVISION.  If any provision (or any portion of any provision)

of this Purchase Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction under present or future laws effective during the term of this Purchase Agreement, the

legality, validity, and enforceability of the remaining provisions (or the balance of such provision)

shall not be affected thereby.

28. NO RECORDATION.  Buyer shall not record this Purchase Agreement, any

memorandum of this Purchase Agreement, any assignment of this Purchase Agreement, or any

other document which would cause a cloud on the title to the Property.

29. DRAFTING OF AGREEMENT.  Buyer and Seller acknowledge that this Purchase

Agreement has been negotiated at arm's length, that each party has been represented by

independent counsel and that this Purchase Agreement has been drafted by both parties and no one

party shall be construed as the draftsperson.

30. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY RIGHTS.  This Purchase Agreement is entered

into for the sole benefit of Buyer and Seller and no other parties are intended to be direct or

incidental beneficiaries of this Purchase Agreement and no third party shall have any right in,

under or to this Purchase Agreement.

31. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS.  Each and all of the exhibits attached to this

Purchase Agreement are incorporated herein as if set forth in full in this Purchase Agreement.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS THIS PAGE 

118



Page 31 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Purchase Agreement as of the 

date set forth in the first paragraph of this Purchase Agreement. 

SIGNATURES 

SELLER: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association Inc. 

BY: 

Name: Roy Willis 

Its:  President  

BUYER:  Arcata Fire Protection District 

BY: 

Name: 

Its: 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1 Legal Description of the Property 

Exhibit 2 Lease and License Agreement 

119



Page 32 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Exhibit “1” 

Legal Description 

[TO BE INSERTED] 

120



Page 33 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Exhibit “2” 

Lease and License Agreement 

LEASE AND LICENSE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Lease”) is entered into as 

of___________________[TO BE INSERTED BY ESCROW OFFICER](“Commencement 

Date”) between the ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, a California special district 

(“Landlord”), and ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC., a 

California nonprofit corporation (“Tenant”). 

Recitals 

A. Landlord is the owner of certain land, buildings, and improvements located in Arcata,

California, commonly known as 631 9th Street, Arcata, CA 95521 (Humboldt County APN 021-

041-002-000) and more particularly described in attached Exhibit 1 (“Property”).  A floor plan of

the 1st floor of the building (“Building”) located on the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

B. Reference is made hereto to that certain Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Joint

Escrow Instructions dated ________________________, to which this Lease is attached as Exhibit 

B, between Landlord, as buyer, and Tenant, as Seller, through which Landlord purchased the 

Property from Tenant. 

C. Prior to Landlord’s acquisition of the Property, Landlord leased the Property from

Tenant for the operation of a fire station.  Landlord intends to continue to operate the Property as 

a fire station and further desires to grant to Tenant certain rights to use the Property, as set forth 

below.   

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

Article I. Exclusive Use of the Office 

1.1. Lease of the AVFA Office.  Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant leases from 

Landlord on the terms and conditions in this Lease, the Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association 

Office, as that space is generally depicted on Exhibit 2 hereto and incorporated herein (“AVFA 

Office”), for the permitted uses (defined in Section 1.3, below).  Tenant shall have the exclusive 

right to use and occupancy of the AVFA Office during the Term (defined in Section 3.1, below) 

which AVFA Office Includes exclusive use of the CPR closet and storage cabinet, as shown and 

depicted in Exhibit 2. In addition to access to and permitted use of the AVFA Office, all Arcata 

Volunteer Firefighters’ Association (AVFA) memorabilia located in other areas of the building is 

the property and will remain the property of the AVFA. 

1.2. Non-Exclusive Access to the AVFA Office.  In addition to the exclusive right to 

occupy and use the AVFA Office, Landlord also grants to Tenant the non-exclusive right of ingress 

and egress to and from the AVFA Office utilizing the entrances to the Building shown on Exhibit 

2 as the “Main Entrance to the AVFA Office” and the “Secondary Entrance to the AVFA Office”. 

1.3. Permitted Uses.  Tenant shall use the AVFA Office solely and exclusively as office 

space for the conduct of Tenant’s own operations as a non-profit public benefit corporation and 

for no other purpose without Landlord’s prior written consent.   

Article 2. Non-Exclusive Use of Common Areas. 

121



 

 Page 34 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

 2.1 Non-Exclusive Right to Use Common Areas.  Landlord grants to Tenant a non-

exclusive license to use those additional portions of the first floor of the Building depicted within 

the blue-dashed line on Exhibit 2(“Common Areas”), for the permitted uses (defined in Section 

2.2, below) and subject to prior scheduling with Landlord pursuant to Section 2.3, below.  Tenant 

shall not have any rights or access to the second floor of the Building.   

 2.2 Permitted Uses. Tenant shall use the Commons Areas only for purposes that align 

with and promote Tenant’s purpose as a volunteer firefighters’ association, which purposes may 

include AVFA meetings, community events, and educational classes. In addition, Tenant is 

granted the right to have access to and shall have the right to replace as Tenant deems necessary 

all AVFA owned tables, chairs, and video equipment located in the storage closet and any and all 

AVFA memorabilia now located or hereafter placed by tenant in the display cabinets located in 

the meeting space adjacent to the kitchen and also including all historical AVFA items and photos 

located throughout the building. Tenant will also have access to all currently existing and 

replacement kitchen utensils, dishes, pots and pan including cooking material now owned or 

hereafter purchased by Tenant. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, 

Tenant shall not have the right to rent or otherwise grant to any third party the right to use the 

Common Areas without Landlord’s prior written consent.  

 2.3 Scheduling.  In the event Tenant requires use of the kitchen, the conference room, 

or the meeting space adjacent to the kitchen, Tenant shall schedule such use with Landlord in 

advance.  Landlord shall have priority use over such space for purposes of scheduling with respect 

to events that have been scheduled by Landlord. 

Article 3. Provisions Common to Articles I and II. 

  

3.1 Term.  The term (“Term”) of this Lease shall commence on the Commencement 

Date and shall extend for such time as Landlord maintains fee title ownership of the Property, 

unless sooner terminated according to this Lease.  

3.2 Rent. In recognition of the ongoing partnership between Landlord and Tenant, as 

well as the significant efforts by Tenant, during the period of its ownership of the Property, to fund 

and facilitate improvements to the Property and Building for its continued use as a fire station, as 

well as Tenant’s agreement to sell the Property to Landlord for the then current balance on its 

mortgage, Landlord and Tenant agree that Landlord will not charge Tenant rent for its continued 

use of the Property pursuant to this Lease during the Term. 

 3.3 Use.  In addition to the use limitations set forth in Sections 1.3 and 2.2 above: 

(a) Tenant agrees not to use the Property, or any portion thereof, for any immoral 

or unlawful purpose.   

(b) Tenant shall not commit any acts on the Property, nor use the Property in any 

manner that will increase the existing rates for or cause the cancellation of any fire, liability, 

or other insurance policy insuring the Property or the improvements on the Property. 

Tenant shall, at Tenant’s own cost and expense, comply with all requirements of 

Landlord’s insurance carriers that are necessary for the continued maintenance at 

reasonable rates of fire and liability insurance policies on the Property and the 

improvements on the Property. 

(c) Tenant shall not commit any waste or any public or private nuisance upon the 

122



Page 35 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Property. 

(d) Tenant shall comply with all laws, rules, and orders of all federal, state, and

municipal governments or agencies that may be applicable to use of the Property. 

(e) Tenant shall not possess, use, or consume, or allow any person to whom it allows

entry to possess, use, or consume, any alcohol or other controlled substances on the 

Property or any portion thereof.   

(f) Tenant shall implement reasonable policies and controls, which policies and

controls shall be approved by Landlord, to ensure access to the Building is limited to 

authorized officers, directors, or members of Tenant who are performing official business 

on behalf of Tenant or other invitees who are attending an official function of Tenant in 

the classroom.   

3.4. Utilities.  Landlord shall provide Tenant, at its own cost, with garbage, water, 

sewer, gas, and electrical utility service to the Property. 

3.5 Taxes. Tenant shall pay as due all taxes on its personal property located on the 

Property or otherwise.  As a public entity, Landlord does not pay property taxes, but Tenant may 

be assessed directly by the County a possessory use tax on the leasehold premises pursuant to 

California Revenue and Taxation Code sections 107 et. seq.  Tenant is hereby given notice of the 

possessory use tax as required by Revenue and Taxation Code section 107.6. 

3.6 Condition of Property. Tenant acknowledges that as of the date of this Lease, 

Tenant has inspected the Property and all improvements on the Property and that the Property and 

improvements are in good order, repair, and condition. 

3.7 Repairs and Maintenance.  

(a) Landlord agrees, at its own expense, to keep the Property (including without

limitation, the sidewalks, the parking lot, and the landscaping that are part of the Property) 

in good condition and repair, except to the extent the need for repair is due to the fault of 

Tenant or any of its invitees, in which case Tenant agrees, at its expense, to conduct the 

necessary repairs.  

(b) Tenant shall deliver to Landlord physical possession of the AVFA Office at

the end of the Term, or any extension of the Term, in good condition and repair, reasonable 

wear and tear and use and loss by fire or other casualty or by earthquake or other act of 

God excepted. 

3.8  Alterations. Without Landlord’s prior written consent, Tenant shall not make any 

alterations to the Property or the Building, including any Common Areas or the AVFA Office. 

3.9 Entry. Tenant shall permit Landlord or Landlord’s agents, representatives, or 

employees to enter the AFVA Office at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice to inspect 

the AVFA Office to determine whether Tenant is complying with the terms of this Lease and to 

do other lawful acts that may be necessary to protect Landlord’s interest in the Property under this 

Lease or to perform Landlord’s duties under this Lease. 

3.10 Surrender of Property; Holding Over. 

(a) On the Termination Date or the end of any extension or renewal of this Lease,

Tenant shall promptly surrender and deliver the Property to Landlord in as good condition 

as they are now at the date of this Lease, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

123



Page 36 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

(b) At the end of the Term, or any extension, should Tenant hold over for any

reason, it is agreed that in the absence of a written agreement to the contrary, that tenancy 

shall be from month-to-month only and not a renewal of this Lease, nor an extension for 

any further term. The month-to-month tenancy shall be subject to every other term, 

covenant, and condition in this Lease that is consistent with and not contrary to a month-

to-month tenancy. 

3.11 Indemnity. Tenant agrees to indemnify and defend Landlord from any claims, 

demands, and causes of action of any nature and any expense incident to the defense, for injury to 

or death of persons or loss of or damage to property occurring on or about the Property that grow 

out of or are connected with Tenant’s use and occupation of the Property or the condition of the 

Property (unless the condition is one for which Landlord has expressly assumed the responsibility 

for remedying and the condition is not caused by Tenant), during the Term. 

3.12 Insurance. 

(a) Tenant agrees to procure and maintain public liability insurance, including

products and completed operations insurance, from a responsible insurance company 

authorized to do business in California, with a combined single limit of not less than 

$1,000,000 for injury or death to any person or damage to property and $2,000,000 excess 

umbrella coverage for injury or death or property damage, for any claims, demands, or 

causes of action of any person arising out of accidents occurring on the Property during the 

Term or arising out of Tenant’s use of the Property; provided, however, that if in the 

opinion of Landlord’s insurer, the policy limits set forth above are determined to be 

inadequate, Tenant shall increase the policy limits in accordance with the recommendation 

or requirements of Landlord’s insurer after written notice from Landlord. 

(b) The policy of insurance shall be issued by a responsible insurance company

authorized to do business in California, and shall be issued in the names of Landlord, 

Tenant, and any beneficiary under any deed of trust covering the Property, if required by 

the deed of trust, as their respective interests may appear. Tenant shall deliver a certificate 

for the insurance policy to Landlord with all relevant endorsements. The policy of 

insurance shall be primary and noncontributory with any policies carried by Landlord and, 

to the extent obtainable, any loss shall be payable notwithstanding any act or negligence of 

Landlord that might otherwise result in forfeiture of insurance. The insurance policy shall 

provide that a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation and of any material modification of 

coverage shall be given to all named insureds. The insurance coverage required under this 

Section may be carried by Tenant under a blanket policy insuring other locations of 

Tenant’s business, provided that the Property covered by this Lease are specifically 

identified as included under that policy. Tenant agrees that upon the failure to insure as 

provided in this Lease, or to pay the premiums in the insurance, Landlord may contract for 

the insurance and pay the premiums, and all sums expended by Landlord for the insurance 

shall be considered additional rent under this Lease and shall be immediately repayable by 

Tenant. 

(c) At all times during the Term and any extensions or renewals, Tenant agrees to

keep and maintain, or cause Tenant’s agents, contractors, or subcontractors to keep and 

maintain, workers’ compensation insurance and other forms of insurance as may from time 

to time be required by law or may otherwise be necessary to protect Landlord and the 

Property from claims of any person who may at any time work on the Property, whether as 

124



Page 37 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

a servant, agent, or employee of Tenant or otherwise. This insurance shall be maintained 

at the expense of Tenant or Tenant’s agents, contractors, or subcontractors and not at the 

expense of Landlord.  

3.13 Signs. Tenant shall not place, maintain, nor permit on any exterior door, wall, or 

window of the Property any sign, awning, canopy, marquee, or other advertising without the 

express written consent of Landlord. Furthermore, Tenant shall not place any decoration, lettering, 

or advertising matter on the glass of any exterior show window of the Property without the written 

approval of Landlord. If Landlord consents to any sign, awning, canopy, marquee, decoration, or 

advertising matter, Tenant shall maintain it in good appearance and repair at all times during this 

Lease. At the Termination Date, any of the items mentioned in this section that are not removed 

from the Property by Tenant may, without damage or liability, be destroyed by Landlord. 

3.14 Condemnation. If, during the Term or any renewal or extension, the whole (or any 

portion thereof) of the Property shall be taken pursuant to any condemnation proceeding, this Lease 

shall terminate as of 12:01 a.m. of the date that actual physical possession of the Property is taken, 

and after that, both Landlord and Tenant shall be released from all obligations under this Lease. If 

the whole or any part of the Property are taken pursuant to any condemnation proceeding, then 

Landlord shall be entitled to the entirety of any condemnation award except that portion allocable 

to Tenant’s unsalvageable Trade Fixtures. 

3.15 Assignment and Subletting. Tenant shall not assign or sublease this Lease without 

the prior written consent of Landlord, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion.  

Any assignment or sublease of any right under this Lease shall be void and constitute a material 

violation of this Lease. 

3.16 Default. Any of the following events or occurrences shall constitute a material 

breach of this Lease by Tenant and, after the expiration of any applicable grace period, shall 

constitute an event of default (each an “Event of Default”): 

(a) The failure by Tenant to pay any amount in full when it is due under the Lease

if the failure has continued for a period of ten (10) days after Landlord demands in writing 

that Tenant cure the failure; 

(b) The failure by Tenant to perform any obligation under this Lease, which by its

nature is both material and for which Tenant has no capacity to cure; 

(c) The failure by Tenant to perform any other obligation under this Lease, if the

failure has continued for a period of ten (10) days after Landlord demands in writing that 

Tenant cure the failure. If, however, by its nature the failure cannot be cured within ten 

(10) days, Tenant may have a longer period as is necessary to cure the failure, but this is

conditioned upon Tenant’s promptly commencing to cure within the ten (10) day period

and thereafter diligently completing the cure. Tenant shall indemnify and defend Landlord

against any liability, claim, damage, loss, or penalty that may be threatened or may in fact

arise from that failure during the period the failure is uncured;

(d) Any of the following: A general assignment by Tenant for the benefit of

Tenant’s creditors; any voluntary filing, petition, or application by Tenant under any law 

relating to insolvency or bankruptcy, whether for a declaration of bankruptcy, a 

reorganization, an arrangement, or otherwise; the abandonment, vacation, or surrender of 

the Property by Tenant without Landlord’s prior written consent; or the dispossession of 

Tenant from the Property (other than by Landlord) by process of law or otherwise; 

125



Page 38 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

(e) The appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of all or substantially

all of Tenant’s assets; or the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of all or 

substantially all of Tenant’s assets located at the Property or of Tenant’s interest in this 

Lease, unless the appointment or attachment, execution, or seizure is discharged within 

thirty (30) days; or the involuntary filing against Tenant, or any general partner of Tenant 

if Tenant is a partnership, of 

(i) a petition to have Tenant declared bankrupt, or

(ii) a petition for reorganization or arrangement of Tenant under any law

relating to insolvency or bankruptcy, unless, in the case of any involuntary filing, 

it is dismissed within sixty (60) days; 

(f) The abandonment of the Property by Tenant.

3.17 Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Landlord, in addition to 

any other rights or remedies available to Landlord at law or inequity, shall have the right to 

terminate this Lease and all rights of Tenant under this Lease by giving Tenant written notice that 

this Lease is terminated. 

3.18 Waiver of Breach.  Any express or implied waiver of a breach of any term of this 

Lease shall not constitute a waiver of any further breach of the same or other term of this Lease. 

3.19 Security Deposit.  No Security deposit shall be required. 

3.20 Authority.  All individuals executing this Lease on behalf of Tenant represent that 

they are authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on its behalf. 

3.21 Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, all notices or other 

communications required or permitted by this Lease or by law to be served on or given to either 

party to this Lease by the other party shall be in writing All written communications from Landlord 

will be sent via personal delivery, certified mail, registered mail, prepaid postage, or overnight 

courier, to Tenant at 2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville, CA and will bear “ATTN. LEASE 

MANAGEMENT” on the outside of the envelope. Upon receipt of notices bearing the 

aforementioned label, the Landlord’s business manager will immediately send email notification 

to Tenant that a Lease Management document has been received. Receipt of notices shall be 

deemed effective at the time the email notifications from the Landlord’s business manager are sent. 

To Tenant: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association, Inc. 

Attn: Board of Directors 

2149 Central Avenue 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 

Email: _rbwillisii@gmail.com 

Email:   rjnakamoto@gmail.com_ 

Email:   davewhite@sbcglobal.net 

Email:   woodfive150@outlook.com  

To Landlord: Arcata Fire Protection District 

Attn: Fire Chief 

2149 Central Avenue 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 

126

mailto:rjnakamoto@gmail.com_
mailto:davewhite@sbcglobal.net


Page 39 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

With copy to: Ryan T. Plotz 

The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP 

426 First Street 

Eureka, CA 95501 

E-mail:rplotz@mitchelllawfirm.com

Either party, Tenant or Landlord, may change the address for the purpose of this Section by giving 

written notice of the change to the other party in the manner provided in this Section.   

3.22 Partial Invalidity.  Should any provision of this Lease be held by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be either invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Lease 

shall remain in effect, unimpaired by the holding. 

3.23 Entire Agreement. This instrument constitutes the sole agreement between 

Landlord and Tenant respecting the Property, the leasing of the Property to Tenant, and the 

specified lease term, and correctly sets forth the obligations of Landlord and Tenant. Any 

agreement or representations respecting the Property or their leasing by Landlord to Tenant not 

expressly set forth in this instrument are void. 

3.24 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Lease. 

3.25 Amendments.  This Lease may be modified only in writing and only if signed by 

the parties at the time of the modification. 

3.26 Subordination. This Lease shall be subordinate to any ground lease, mortgage, 

deed of trust, or any other hypothecation for security now or later placed upon the Property and to 

any advances made on the security of it or Landlord’s interest in it, and to all renewals, 

modifications, consolidations, replacements, and extensions of it. However, if any mortgagee, 

trustee, or ground landlord elects to have this Lease have priority to the lien of its mortgage or 

deed of trust or have priority to its ground lease, and gives notice of that to Tenant, this Lease shall 

be deemed prior to the mortgage, deed of trust, or ground lease, whether this Lease is dated prior 

or subsequent to the date of the mortgage, deed of trust, or ground lease, or the date of recording 

of it. If any mortgage or deed of trust to which this Lease is subordinate is foreclosed or a deed in 

lieu of foreclosure is given to the mortgagee or beneficiary, Tenant shall attorn to the purchaser at 

the foreclosure sale or to the grantee under the deed in lieu of foreclosure. If any ground lease to 

which this Lease is subordinate is terminated, Tenant shall attorn to the ground landlord. Tenant 

agrees to execute any documents, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to Tenant, required 

to for the subordination, to make this Lease prior to the lien of any mortgage or deed of trust or 

ground lease, or to evidence the attornment. 

3.27  [Intentionally Omitted.] 

3.28 Governing Law. This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with California law. 

3.29 Accessibility Requirements. The following requirements are included herein by 

Landlord to comply with Civ. Code, § 1938:The Premises have not undergone inspection by a 

Certified Access Specialist (CASp). Tenant acknowledges and agrees that a Certified Access 

Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject premises and determine whether the subject premises 

comply with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility standards under state law. 

Although state law does not require a CASp inspection of the subject premises, the commercial 

127

mailto:rplotz@mitchelllawfirm.com
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000200&cite=CACIS1938&originatingDoc=I85abdf024cc611daa468d9f8fafd78a4&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Category)


 

 Page 40 of 42  

 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

 

property owner or lessor may not prohibit the lessee or tenant from obtaining a CASp inspection 

of the subject premises for the occupancy or potential occupancy of the lessee or tenant, if 

requested by the lessee or tenant. The parties shall mutually agree on the arrangements for the time 

and manner of the CASp inspection, the payment of the fee for the CASp inspection, and the cost 

of making any repairs necessary to correct violations of construction-related accessibility standards 

within the premises. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the date first above written. 

SIGNATURES 

 

TENANT: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association Inc. 

 

BY:         

 

Name: Roy Willis        

 

Its: President         

 
LANDLORD: Arcata Fire Protection District 

 

BY:         

 

Name:         

 

Its:         

 

Exhibit List: 

 1. Description of the Property 

 2. First Floor Footprint  

 

  

128



Page 41 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Exhibit “1” 

Description of the Property 

[TO BE INSERTED] 

129



Page 42 of 42 

Buyer’s Initials:__________; Seller’s Initials: __________ 

Exhibit “2” 

First Floor Footprint 

130



DISTRICT BUSINESS Item 3 
Date: September 10, 2024  
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Chris Emmons, Fire Chief  
Subject: Adopt Resolution 24-318, Approving the Form and Authorizing the 

Execution and Delivery of Certain Financing Documents for the 
Purpose of Acquiring the Fire Headquarters Building and Facilities, 
and Authorizing Other Related Actions in Connection 

DISCUSSION: 
The Arcata Fire Protection District Board of Directors have been in discussions regarding 
a potential Option to Purchase Agreement with the Arcata Volunteer Firefighter’s 
Association for the 9th Street Fire Station and property (the “9th Street Station”). Through 
direction to the Board ad-hoc committee, staff, and District Counsel, a resolution 
approving the Option Agreement with the AVFA has been drafted.  

FINANCING TEAM 
Staff has consulted with Weist Law and California Municipal Advisors, the consultants 
that have assisted the District with previous transactions. The team also includes the 
utilization of the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”), a 
municipal contracting agency serving local government agencies in California, to provide 
the requisite financing for this undertaking. The Authority offers a wide range of 
competitively procured products, equipment, and service opportunities, enabling 
participating local government agencies to leverage the benefits of cooperative financing 
to reduce procurement costs. 

FINANCING PARAMETERS 
After discussion with the Board and consultants, Staff is recommending a 20-year fully 
amortizing repayment structure with annual debt service payments of approximately 
$130,000. By purchasing the 9th Street Station, the District will save approximately 
$122,500 annually in rent expenses. The 20-year loan will be prepayable without penalty 
after 5 to 7 years, giving the District the option to partially or fully prepay the loan using 
surplus funds, should the Board choose to do so. 

Measure F is set to expire in 2030, which will create a projected structural deficit of 
approximately $1 million annually starting in fiscal year 2029-30 (the "Structural Deficit"). 
While the District is actively working on a long-term plan to address this deficit, lenders 
will require assurances that debt service payments will continue to be made in full and on 
time.  

To address this, staff recommends setting aside approximately $1.25 million in a special 
reserve fund dedicated solely to ensuring debt service payments in case of future 
shortfalls. This fund, which will remain District-owned and invested at the best available 
rates, will only be accessible for debt service payments in the event of a shortfall. 

131



The special reserve fund will be released from these restrictions and revert to unrestricted 
District funds upon the earlier of: (i) resolution of the Structural Deficit, or (ii) full repayment 
of the financing used to purchase the 9th Street Station. 

The exact terms of the financing will not be known until after the Authority undertakes a 
formal bid process on behalf of the District. The bid process ensures that the District is 
receiving the best possible terms and conditions in the current municipal marketplace. 
Once the Authority receives the bids, the Chief, with the help of Weist Law and CalMuni, 
will be able to select the proposal with the best terms and conditions. This process takes 
about three weeks to complete. If the Chief selects one of the bids, the financing should 
be able to be completed in October.  

INSTALLMENT PURCHASE FINANCING 
To facilitate the financing process the Authority will sell the Project to the District pursuant 
to an Installment Loan Purchase Agreement between the Authority and the District. The 
District under the Loan Agreement agrees to purchase the Project from the Authority in 
the exact amount of the semi-annual debt service on the Loan. Title remains with the 
District at all times. The Authority is merely a conduit facilitator of the loan financing 
arrangement (the “Loan”) and does make money by taking a spread on the interest rate. 
The Authority charges a flat fee of $12,500, which covers its internal costs as well as its 
regulatory compliance fees. The Authority also charges an annual fee of the greater of (i) 
50 basis points times the aggregate principal components of the Loan Payments 
outstanding on the first day of the month in which the anniversary of the closing date 
occurs, or (ii) $750. These charges cover the Authority’s annual cost to administrate the 
Loan, including required accounting and regulatory filing work. 

SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
Resolution 24-318 authorizes and approves the form of a Series 2024B Installment Loan 
Purchase Agreement (the “2024 Loan Agreement”) and Irrevocable Payment Instructions 
(the “Instructions”) which are necessary to provide for the successful consummation of 
the Project purchase. The 2024 Loan Agreement and Instructions are each briefly 
described as follows: 

1. 2024 Loan Agreement:  This is an agreement between the District and the Authority,
which sets forth the covenants and specifics of the Loan obligation, including the District’s
promise to make future semi-annual debt service payments, the right to purchase the
asset, the District’s duties, repayment mechanisms and the financial institution’s rights
and remedies in the event of default. The 2024 Loan Agreement also includes details of
the financing being secured on equal parity with the District’s (i) Series 2022 Loan
Obligation (Equipment Acquisition Project of 2022), (ii) Series 2021 Taxable Revenue
Obligations (CalPERS UAL Prepayment Project), and (i) Series 2024A Loan Obligation
(Equipment Acquisition Project of 2024). The District shall pledge and grant a security
interest, to the extent permitted by law, in all Gross Revenues to secure the obligations
of the District under the Loan Agreement.

2. Irrevocable Payment Instructions:  This is an agreement between the District, the
Authority and the winning bidder for the Financing, which constitutes irrevocable
instructions by the District authorizing and directing the Authority to transfer the Loan
proceeds in accordance with the Instructions.

132



SUMMARY OF THE OPPORTUNITY 
If the Board correspondingly adopts the subject Resolutions, staff, with the aid of the 
financing team, will work with the Authority and the selected financial institution to close 
the transaction at first possible opportunity, with the present target closing date being 
October, 2024.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution 24-318 approving the Form and 
Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Certain Financing Documents for the Purpose 
of Acquiring the District’s Fire Headquarter Building and Facilities and Authorizing Other 
Related Actions in Connection Therewith. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
☐ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☒ Included in Budget:
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested:
☐ Unknown/Not Yet Identified

ALTERNATIVES: 
Board Discretion 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Resolution 24-318 
Attachment 2 – Loan Agreement 
Attachment 3 – Irrevocable Payment Instructions 

133



Page 1 of 3 

Resolution Number: 24-318 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT APPROVING THE FORM AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

OF CERTAIN FINANCING DOCUMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE 
ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY AND FACILITIES COMPRISING THE DISTRICT’S FIRE 

HEADQUARTERS FACILITY, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY 
RELATING THERETO 

WHEREAS, the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”) is a fire protection district duly organized 
and existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to work with the California Municipal Public Financing Authority, a nonprofit 
entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the 
“Authority”), for the purpose of, among other things, financing the acquisition of the real property and 
facilities comprising the District’s present fire headquarters facility, all as more particularly described in 
Exhibit A to the hereinafter described Loan Agreement (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority was formed pursuant to a joint exercise of powers agreement, dated as of June 
24, 2020 (the “JPA Agreement”) and Article I (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 or Division 7 of 
Title I of the Government Code of the State of California (the “State”) for the purpose of, among other 
things, assisting California government agencies with the issuance of non-recourse debt, which may include 
bonds, loans, certificates of participation, notes, leases, installment sale or other evidences of 
indebtedness, and to otherwise undertake financing programs under the applicable provisions of the laws 
of the State to accomplish its public purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the District has the power, under and by virtue of the laws of the State, to (i) purchase real and 
personal property, (ii) enter into installment sale contracts in order to finance the purchase of real and 
personal property used, or to be used, for public purposes, and (iii) grant a security interest in some or all 
of the property purchased to secure repayment of the purchase price; and 

WHEREAS, to facilitate the financing of the Project the Authority proposed a cost-effective installment 
sale financing arrangement pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in a Series 2024B Installment 
Loan Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2024, by and between the Authority and the District (the 
“Loan Agreement”), the proceeds of which will be administered pursuant to certain Irrevocable Payment 
Instructions, dated as of October 1, 2024, by and between the Authority, the District and the assignee of 
the financing arrangement (the “Irrevocable Payment Instructions”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”), after due investigation and deliberation, has determined 
that it is in the public interests of the District at this time to undertake tax-exempt municipal financing for 
the purchase of the Project accordance with the Loan Agreement (the “Financing”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board, with the aid of its staff, has reviewed the form of the Loan Agreement and 
Instructions, the forms of which are on file with the Secretary to the Board, and the Board wishes at this 
time to approve the foregoing documents as being within the public interests of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 5852.1, certain good faith information relating to the 
Financing is set forth herein and made public; and 

Attachment 1

134



DRAFT

Resolution No. 24-318       Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to designate the Loan Agreement as a “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation;” for 
purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes at this time to authorize all proceedings relating to the Financing as well as 
the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and all other agreements and documents relating 
thereto; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State to exist, to have happened and 
to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the consummation of such financing 
authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by law, and the District is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and 
every requirement of law, to consummate such financing for the purpose, in the manner and upon the 
terms herein provided. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ARCATA FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT THAT:

Section 1.  Recitals. The Board hereby specifically finds and declares that each of the statements, 
findings and determinations of the District set forth in the recitals set forth above are true and correct. 

Section 2. Authorized Representatives.  The President, Fire Chief, Board Clerk/Secretary and any
other person authorized by the Fire Chief to act on behalf of the District shall each be an “Authorized
Representative” of the District for the purposes of structuring and providing for the execution and delivery
of the Loan Agreement, and are hereby authorized, jointly and severally, for and in the name of and on
behalf of the District, to execute and deliver any and all documents and certificates that may be required
to be executed in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Loan Agreement (including, but
not limited to, the documents referenced in this Resolution, and any other documentation required or
necessary in connection therewith, which are sometimes hereafter referred as the “Financing Documents”),
and to do any and all things and take any and all actions which may be necessary or advisable, in their
discretion, to effectuate the actions which the Board has approved in this Resolution and said Financing
Documents.

Section 3.  Significant Public Benefits.  The Board hereby finds and determines that the execution 
of the Loan Agreement is expected to result in significant public benefits to the District and its ratepayers. 

Section 4.  Approval of Loan Agreement.  The Board hereby authorizes and approves the Loan 
Agreement in substantially the form on file with the Secretary together with any additions thereto or 
changes therein (including, but not limited to, the final aggregate principal amount of the Financing and 
the corresponding final debt service payment schedule) deemed necessary or advisable by an Authorized 
Representative of the District. Each Authorized Representative, acting singly, is hereby authorized and 
directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to execute and deliver the Loan Agreement in 
substantially said form, with such changes therein as the Authorized Representative executing the same 
may approve (such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such Authorized Representative’s execution 
and delivery thereof). The Board hereby authorizes the delivery and performance of the Loan Agreement. 

Section 5.  Approval Irrevocable Payment Instructions. The Board hereby authorizes and approves 
the Irrevocable Payment Instructions in substantially the form on file with the Secretary together with any 
additions thereto or changes therein deemed necessary or advisable by an Authorized Representative of 
the District. Each Authorized Representative, acting singly, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in 
the name and on behalf of the District, to execute the final form of the Irrevocable Payment Instructions 
for and in the name and on behalf of the District, and the execution thereof shall be conclusive evidence 
of the Board’s approval of any such additions and changes. The Board hereby authorizes the delivery and 
performance of the Irrevocable Payment Instructions. 

135



DRAFT

Resolution No. 24-318       Page 3 of 3 

Section 6.  Good Faith Estimates.  Set forth below are good faith estimates of the Municipal Advisor, 
as required under Section 5852.1 of the Government Code.  The following estimates have no bearing on, 
and should not be misconstrued as, any not-to-exceed financial parameters authorized by this resolution. 

(a) The true interest cost of the Financing is estimated at 4.50%, calculated as provided in
Section 5852.1(a)(1)(A) of the Government Code. 

(b) The finance charge of the Financing, including all fees and charges paid to third parties, is
estimated at $95,000. 

(c) Proceeds of the Financing estimated to be received by the District of $1,705,000, less the
finance charge set forth in (b) above, is equal to $1,610,000. 

(d) The total payment amount (principal and interest) calculated as provided in Section
5852.1(a)(1)(D) of the Government Code is estimated at $2,607,579. 

Section 7.  Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation.  The Board hereby designates the Loan Agreement 
for purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Code as a “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation” and 
covenants that the Loan Agreement does not constitute a private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of 
the Code and that the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations issued by the District (including 
all subordinate entities of the District and all entities which may issue obligations on behalf of the District) 
during the calendar year 2024 is not reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000, excluding, however, 
private activity bonds, as defined in Section 141 of the Code (other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined 
in Section 145 of the Code) and current refunding obligations having a principal amount not in excess of 
the refunded obligation. 

Section 8. Confirmation and Direction to Proceed with the Financing. All actions heretofore
taken by the officers and agents of the District with respect to the Financing are hereby approved,
confirmed and ratified. The Authorized Representatives and all other officers of the District are each
authorized and directed in the name and on behalf of the District to make any and all assignments,
certificates, requisitions, agreements, notices, consents, instruments of conveyance, warrants and other
documents which they or any of them might deem necessary or appropriate in order to consummate any of
the actions and transactions contemplated by this Resolution and the Financing Documents. Whenever any
officer of the District is authorized to execute or countersign any document or take any action
contemplated by this Resolution and the Financing Documents, such execution, countersigning or action
may be taken on behalf of such officer by any person designated by such officer to act on his or her behalf
in the case such officer is absent or unavailable.

Section 9.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage 
and adoption. 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the Arcata Fire 
Protection District by the following polled vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  

DATED: September 10, 2024 
 _____________________________ 
 Eric Loudenslager, President 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Katie Hill, Board Clerk/Secretary 

136



SERIES 2024B INSTALLMENT LOAN PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

by and between 

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

And 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Dated as of October 1, 2024 

Relating to 

$________ 
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY  

(ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT) 
SERIES 2024B LOAN OBLIGATIONS  

(FIRE STATION ACQUISITION PROJECT) 

Attachment 2

137



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
i 

Section 1.  Definitions.................................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 2. Representations and Covenants of District .................................................................................. 7 

Section 3.  Purchase of Project ...................................................................................................................... 9 

Section 4.  Authorization, Designation, and Application of Loan Proceeds; Project Fund ........................ 10 

Section 5. Term ........................................................................................................................................... 10 

Section 6.  Termination ................................................................................................................................ 10 

Section 7.  Loan Payments ........................................................................................................................... 10 

Section 8.  Additional Payments .................................................................................................................. 10 

Section 9.  Pledge and Application of Gross Revenues; Flow of Funds ..................................................... 10 

Section 10.  Parity Debt ................................................................................................................................. 11 

Section 11.  Loan Payments to be Unconditional .......................................................................................... 13 

Section 12.  Rates, Fees, and Charges ........................................................................................................... 13 

Section 13.  Reserved ..................................................................................................................................... 14 

Section 14.  Enjoyment of Project ................................................................................................................. 14 

Section 15.  Right of Inspection ..................................................................................................................... 14 

Section 16.  Use of the Project ....................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 17. Maintenance of Project .............................................................................................................. 15 

Section 18.  Title to the Project ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 19.  Security Interest ......................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 20.  Reserved ..................................................................................................................................... 16 

Section 21.  Liens, Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges ............................................. 16 

Section 22.  Insurance .................................................................................................................................... 16 

Section 23.  Advances .................................................................................................................................... 17 

Section 24.  Financial Information  ............................................................................................................... 17 

Section 25.  Release and Indemnification  ..................................................................................................... 17 

Section 26.  Risk of Loss ............................................................................................................................... 18 

Section 27. Damage, Destruction, Condemnation; Use of Proceeds ............................................................ 18 

Section 28.  Insufficiency of Net Proceeds .................................................................................................... 18 

Section 29.  Disclaimer of Warranties ........................................................................................................... 18 

138



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
ii 

Section 30. Seller’s Warranties ..................................................................................................................... 19 

Section 31. Purchase Option; Prepayment .................................................................................................... 19 

Section 32.  Determination of Fair Purchase Price ........................................................................................ 20 

Section 33.  Assignment by Authority ........................................................................................................... 20 

Section 34.  Assignment and Subleasing by District ..................................................................................... 20 

Section 35.  Events of Default Defined ......................................................................................................... 20 

Section 36.  Remedies on Default .................................................................................................................. 21 

Section 36A Application of Funds Upon Acceleration .................................................................................. 22 

Section 37. No Remedy Exclusive ............................................................................................................... 22 

Section 38.  Tax Certifications ...................................................................................................................... 22 

Section 39. Notices ....................................................................................................................................... 23 

Section 40.  Binding Effect ............................................................................................................................ 23 

Section 41. Severability ................................................................................................................................ 23 

Section 42.  Entire Agreement ....................................................................................................................... 23 

Section 43.  Amendments .............................................................................................................................. 23 

Section 44.  Series 2024B Loan Obligations Register ................................................................................... 23 

Section 45. No CUISP Numbers; No Rating; No DTC; No Offering Document ........................................ 23 

Section 46.  Applicable Law .......................................................................................................................... 23 

Section 47.  Electronic Transactions .............................................................................................................. 23 

Section 48.  Role of Authority; No Liability ................................................................................................. 23 

Section 49. District’s Notice Filings Related to this Loan Agreement for SEC Rule 15c2-12 .................... 23 

Section 50. Captions ..................................................................................................................................... 24 

Section 51. Execution in Counterparts ......................................................................................................... 24 

Exhibit A Project Description  ................................................................................................................ A-1 

Exhibit B Payment Schedule .................................................................................................................... B-1 

Exhibit C Form of Certification of Insurance Coverage .......................................................................... C-1 

Exhibit D Essential Use Certificate ......................................................................................................... D-1 

Exhibit E Incumbency and No-Litigation Certificate .............................................................................. E-1 

Exhibit F Opinion of District’s Counsel .................................................................................................. F-1 

139



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
iii 

Exhibit G Post- Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures Certificate ......................................................... G-1 

Exhibit H Bank Qualified Certificate ...................................................................................................... H-1 

Exhibit I District’s Closing Certificate .................................................................................................... I-1 

Exhibit J IRS Form 8038- G Questionnaire ............................................................................................. J-1 

Exhibit K District Requisition No.1 for Disbursement of COI and Project Costs .................................. K-1 

Exhibit L Certificate of Acceptance ......................................................................................................... L-1 

140



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
1 

SERIES 2024B INSTALLMENT LOAN PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

THIS SERIES 2024B INSTALLMENT LOAN PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Loan Agreement”), is dated as 
of October 1, 2024, between CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, a joint exercise of 
powers authority organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the “Authority”), and the ARCATA FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT, a political subdivision organized and existing under the laws of the State of California 
(“District”), wherein the parties hereby agree as follows: 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the District desires to work with the Authority for the purpose of, among other things, procuring 
financing the Acquisition of the District’s fire station headquarters building and facilities, all as more particularly described 
in Exhibit A herein (the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has been formed for the purpose, among others, of assisting public agencies such as 
the District in the financing of public capital improvements within or of benefit to the District; and 

WHEREAS, to that end, the Authority will cause the execution and delivery of Series 2024B Loan Obligations 
in the principal amount of $________ (the “Series 2024B Loan Obligations”), and apply the proceeds of the sale thereof to 
the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the District has determined to purchase the Project from the Authority pursuant to this Loan 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the District will make installment payments pursuant to this Loan Agreement (the “Loan Payments”) 
from the Gross Revenues (as defined herein) in order to purchase the Project from the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority will assign all of its rights and interest in the Loan Agreement, including, without 
limitation, its right to receive Loan Payments pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2024 (the 
“Assignment Agreement”); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. All terms defined in this Section 1 have the meanings herein specified for all purposes of this Loan 
Agreement. 

“Accreted Value” means, with respect to any capital appreciation obligation, the principal amount thereof plus 
the interest accrued thereon, compounded at the approximate interest rate thereon on each date specified therein.  The 
Accreted Value of any capital appreciation obligation at any date shall be the amounts set forth in the accreted value table 
for the capital appreciation obligation as of such date, if such date is a compounding date, and if not, as of the immediately 
preceding compounding date. 

“Additional Revenues” means, with respect to the issuance of any Parity Debt, any or all of the following 
amounts: 

(i) An allowance for Net Revenues from any additions or improvements to or extensions of the District to be
made with the proceeds of such Parity Debt and also for Net Revenues from any such additions, improvements or extensions 
which have been made from moneys from any source but in any case which, during all or any part of the latest Fiscal Year 
for which audited financial statements are available or any 12 consecutive calendar month period (selected by the District) 
during the 18 consecutive calendar month period ending immediately prior to the issuance, incurrence or creation of such 

141



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
2 

additional Parity Debt, were not in service, all in an amount equal to 90% of the estimated additional average annual Net 
Revenues to be derived from such additions, improvements and extensions for the first 36 month period in which each 
addition, improvement or extension is respectively to be in operation, all as shown by the certificate or opinion of an 
Independent Engineer or an Independent Accountant retained by the District and reasonably satisfactory to the Authority. 

(ii) An allowance for Net Revenues arising from any increase in taxes, assessments or charges made for
service from the District which has become effective prior to the incurring of such Parity Debt but which, during all or any 
part of the latest Fiscal Year or such 12 month period for which audited financial statements are available or any 12 
consecutive calendar month period (selected by the District) during the 18 consecutive calendar month period ending 
immediately prior to the issuance, incurrence or creation of such additional Parity Debt, was not in effect, in an amount 
equal to the total amount by which the Net Revenues would have been increased if such increase in charges had been in 
effect during the whole of such Fiscal Year or 12 month period, all as shown by the certificate or opinion of an Independent 
Consultant or an Independent Accountant employed by the District. 

“Authority” means the California Municipal Public Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers authority 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and any other successor or any other entity to whom the 
rights of the Authority hereunder are assigned. Hereinafter, reference to Authority means the Authority and its assigns for 
those rights, interests, and obligations that may be assigned by the Authority. 

“Authority Issuance Fee” means $12,500. 

“Authority Annual Fee” means the greater of (i) 50 basis points times the aggregate Principal Components of the 
Loan Payments outstanding on the first day of the month in which the anniversary of the Commencement Date occurs, or 
(ii) $750.

“Authorized Representative” means (i) with respect to the District, the Chairperson, Fire Chief and Secretary, or 
any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the District by a Certificate of the District signed by its 
Chairperson or Fire Chief and filed with the Authority, and (ii) with respect to the Authority, the Chair, Vice-Chair, Manager, 
Treasurer and Secretary, or any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the Authority by a Certificate 
of the Authority signed by its Chair, Vice-Chair, Manager or Treasurer. 

“Balloon Indebtedness” means Long-Term Indebtedness 25% or more of the principal of which (calculated as of 
the date of issuance) becomes due (either by maturity or mandatory redemption) during any period of 12 consecutive months, 
which portion of the principal is not required by the documents governing such Long-Term Indebtedness to be amortized 
below such percentage by redemption prior to such date. 

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the District. 

“Bond Counsel” means The Weist Law Firm, or any other attorney or firm of attorneys acceptable to the Authority 
of nationally recognized expertise with respect to legal matters relating to municipal obligations. 

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, on which banking institutions in the 
State of California are not closed. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Commencement Date” means the date when interest begins to accrue on the District’s obligation to pay Loan 
Payments hereunder, which date shall be October __, 2024. 

“Concluding Payment” means payment in full of all remaining Loan Payments and all other payments due 
hereunder. 

142



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
3 

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or reimbursable to the District 
relating to the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement, including but not limited to District administration costs and 
expenses, fees and expenses of consultants and professionals, fees and expenses of the municipal advisor and any placement 
agents, legal fees and charges (including legal fees of the Authority), insurance fees and charges, filing costs, settlement 
costs, printing costs, reproduction and binding costs, regulatory fees, including, but not limited to, fees charged by the 
California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission, and fees for execution, transportation and safekeeping of this Loan 
Agreement, and all other charges and fees in connection with the foregoing. 

“Debt Service” when used with respect to the Loan Payments and Parity Debt, means, for any period, the sum of 
(1) the interest payable during such period on the Loan Payments and Parity Debt, (2) the principal or mandatory sinking
fund payments to be paid with respect to the Loan Payments and Parity Debt during such period, and (3) any other scheduled
payments coming due on the Loan Payments and outstanding Parity Debt in such period and not otherwise included in
clauses (1) and (2) of this definition, all of which are to be computed on the assumption that no portion of the Loan Payments
or Parity Debt shall cease to be outstanding during such period except by reason of the application of scheduled payments;
provided that, for purposes of such computation:

(a) unless a different subsection of this definition applies for purposes of determining maturities or
amortization, in determining the amount due in any period, payment shall be assumed to be made in accordance with the 
Payment Schedule and any other amortization schedule established for Parity Debt, including any mandatory sinking fund 
payments or any scheduled redemption or payment of Parity Debt on the basis of Accreted Value, and for such purpose, the 
redemption payment or payment of Accreted Value shall be deemed a principal payment and interest that is compounded 
and paid as Accreted Value shall be deemed due on the scheduled redemption or payment date and any contingencies that 
may result in a request for earlier payment shall be disregarded; 

(b) Balloon Indebtedness may, at the option of the District, be treated as if it were to be amortized with
substantially level debt service over a term of up to 25 years (which period shall be designated by the District), from the 
date of calculation, and the interest rate used for such computation shall be assumed by the District to be equal to (i) the 
interest rate in effect for such Balloon Indebtedness on the date of calculation, if the interest rate determination method in 
effect for such Balloon Indebtedness on the date of calculation provides for interest rates that are fixed for at least 12 months 
from the date such interest rates are determined or (ii) if the interest rate determination method in effect for such Balloon 
Indebtedness on the date of calculation provides for interest rates that are not fixed for at least 12 months from the date such 
interest rates are determined, the rate of interest used to calculate Debt Service shall be determined as described in clause 
(c); 

(c) if any Parity Debt bear, or if any Parity Debt proposed to be issued, incurred or created will bear, interest
at a variable interest rate, the rate of interest used to calculate Debt Service shall, for all purposes, be assumed to bear interest 
at a fixed rate equal to the higher of (i)  the then current variable interest rate borne by such Parity Debt plus 1%; and  (ii) 
the highest variable rate borne over the preceding 24 months by outstanding variable rate debt issued by the District or, if 
no such variable rate debt is at the time outstanding, by variable rate debt of which the interest rate is computed by reference 
to an index comparable to that to be utilized in determining the interest rate for the debt then proposed to be issued;  

(d) if any Parity Debt feature an option, on the part of the owners or a requirement under the terms of such
Parity Debt, to tender all or a portion of such Parity Debt to the District, or other fiduciary or agent, and to purchase such 
Parity Debt or portion thereof if properly presented, then for purposes of determining the amounts due in any period with 
respect to such Parity Debt, the options or obligations of the owners of such Parity Debt to tender the same for purchase or 
payment shall be ignored; 

(e) Loan Payments and payments on Parity Debt shall be excluded to the extent such payments are to be paid
from amounts on deposit with a trustee or other fiduciary in escrow specifically therefor, and interest payments shall be 
excluded to the extent that such interest payments are to be paid from the proceeds of the Loan Agreement or Parity Debt, 
including any investment earnings thereon, held by a trustee or other fiduciary as capitalized interest specifically to pay such 
interest; 

143



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
4 

(f) with respect to Parity Debt for which a reserve fund is in place, the calculation of Debt Service for such
Parity Debt for any period shall be reduced by the amount of investment earnings on amounts on deposit in such reserve 
fund used or expected to be used to pay Debt Service on such Parity Debt during such period, as estimated by the District; 
and 

(g) with respect to Parity Debt for which a reserve fund is in place, the amount on deposit in such reserve
fund on any date of calculation of Debt Service shall be deducted from the amount due on the final maturity or due date of 
such Parity Debt if such amount on deposit in such reserve fund would be released at such maturity or due date and, to the 
extent the amount on deposit in such reserve fund is in excess of the amount due on the final maturity or due date of such 
Parity Debt, such excess shall be applied to the full amount due on each preceding payment date for such Parity Debt, in 
inverse order, until such amount on deposit in such reserve fund is exhausted. 

“Debt Service Coverage Requirement” or “DSC Requirement” means for any Fiscal Year, or other period of 
time for which such calculation is made, that Net Revenues for such Fiscal Year, or other period of calculation, must be at 
least equal to one hundred ten percent (110%) of Maximum Annual Debt Service. 

“District” means the entity described as such in the first paragraph of this Loan Agreement, its successors and its 
assigns. 

“Enterprise” means, collectively, the entire fire and emergency services system of the District, including but not 
limited to all facilities, properties and improvements at any time owned, controlled or operated by the District for the fire 
suppression, emergency medical services, administration, technical rescue, hazardous materials mitigation, public 
education, fire investigation, and fire prevention services provided to property and residents of the District and 
corresponding service areas, and any necessary lands, equipment, rights, entitlements and other property useful in 
connection therewith, together with all extensions thereof and improvements thereto at any time acquired, leased, 
constructed or installed by the District. 

“Event of Default” means an Event of Default described in Section 35. 

“2021 Financing Agreement” means the Series 2021 Financing Agreement (including any permitted amendments 
or supplements thereto), dated as of October 1, 2021, by and between Sterling National Bank and the District. 

“2022 Financing Agreement” means the Series 2022A Installment Loan Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 
1, 2022, by and between the Authority and the District. 

“2024 Financing Agreement” means the Series 2024A Installment Loan Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 
1, 2024, by and between the Authority and the District. 

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve calendar month period terminating on June 30 of each year, or any other annual 
accounting period hereafter selected and designated by the District as its Fiscal Year in accordance with applicable law. 

“General Fund” means the fund by that name established by the District and maintained pursuant to Section 9 
hereof. 

“Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” or “GAAP” means the generally accepted accounting principles 
as presented and recommended by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants or its successor, or by any other 
generally accepted authority on such procedures, and includes, as applicable, the standards set forth by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board or its successor. 

“Gross Revenues” means for any Fiscal Year or other period, all legally available moneys, fees, rates, receipts, 
rentals, charges and income received for, received by or derived from, the District, the operation of the Enterprise or any of 

144



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
5 

its lands or facilities or any other source whatsoever, including without limitation ad valorem property tax revenues and 
other special and general tax revenues, assessments, gifts, bequests, grants, devises, contributions, moneys received from 
the operation of the District’s business or the possession of its properties, insurance proceeds or condemnation awards, and 
all rights to receive the same, whether in the form of accounts, accounts receivable, contract rights or other rights, and the 
proceeds of the same whether now owned or held or hereafter coming into being, but excluding (i) gifts, grants, devises, 
bequests and contributions designated by the maker to a specific purpose inconsistent with their use for the payment of 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Obligations or for the payment of Operation and Maintenance Costs, (ii) 
any unrealized gains and losses on investments of the District, and (iii) any income for which the District has a contractual 
or statutory obligation to pay to other Persons (for example, without limitation, amounts collected by the District in its 
capacity as agent for others, and sales taxes, use taxes and other taxes collected by the District but required to be paid to the 
relevant collection authorities). 

“Independent Certified Public Accountant” means any firm of certified public accountants appointed by the 
District that is independent according to the Statement of Auditing Standards No. 1 of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants. 

“Independent Engineer” means any registered engineer or firm of engineers generally recognized to be well-
qualified in engineering matters relating to the subject matter at issue, appointed and paid by the District, and who or each 
of whom: 

(1) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the District;

(2) does not have a substantial financial interest, direct or indirect, in the District; and

(3) is not connected with the District as a board member, officer or employee of the District, but may be
regularly retained to make reports to the District. 

“Independent Consultant” means a consultant or firm of consultants qualified in matters relating to the subject 
matter at issue, appointed and paid by the District, and who: 

(1) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the District or any member thereof;

(2) does not have a substantial financial interest, direct or indirect, in the operations of the District; and

(3) is not connected with the District as an officer or employee of the District or any member thereof, but
may be regularly retained to audit the accounting records of and make reports thereon to the District. 

“Insurance Consultant” means any nationally recognized independent actuary, insurance company or broker that 
has actuarial personnel knowledgeable with respect to insurance carried, by, required for and available to special districts 
operating facilities similar to the District, including a pooled self-insurance program in which premiums are established on 
the basis of the recommendation of an actuary of national reputation. 

“Interest Account” means the account by that name in the General Fund established pursuant to Section 9 hereof. 

“Interest Component” means the portion of each Installment Loan designated as Interest Component, as such is 
set forth on Exhibit B hereto. 

“Interest Rate” means the rate of interest to be paid on this Loan Agreement which is _.__% per annum. 

“Issuance Year” is the calendar year in which the Commencement Date occurs. 

“Loan Agreement” means this Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase Agreement and any other schedule, or 
exhibit made a part hereof by the parties hereto, together with any amendments to this Loan Agreement. 

145



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
6 

“Loan Payment Date” means the dates set forth on the Payment Schedule, being February 1 and August 1 of each 
year, commencing August 1, 2025, and continuing to and including the date on which the Loan Payments have been paid in 
full; provided that if any Loan Payment Date shall fall on a non-Business Day, the Loan Payment Date shall be the next 
succeeding Business Day and interest on such payment shall accrue to and including such next succeeding Business Day. 

“Loan Payments” means the installment loan payments payable by District to the Authority pursuant to Section 
7. 

“Loan Proceeds” means the $________ amount received by the District from the Authority or its assignee on the 
Commencement Date. 

“Material Adverse Effect” means an event or occurrence which adversely affects in a material manner (a) the 
assets, liabilities, condition (financial or otherwise), business, facilities or operations of the District, (b) the ability of the 
District to carry out its business in the manner conducted as of the date of this Loan Agreement or to meet or perform its 
obligations under this Loan Agreement on a timely basis, or the (c) the validity or enforceability of this Loan Agreement. 

“Material Litigation” means any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation against the District in any court 
or before any arbitrator of any kind or before or by any Governmental Authority, of which the District has notice or 
knowledge and which, (i) if determined adversely to the District, may have a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) seeks to restrain 
or enjoin any of the transactions contemplated hereby, or (iii) may adversely affect (A) the exemption of interest with respect 
to the Loan Payments for state income tax purposes or (B) the ability of the District to perform its obligations under this 
Loan Agreement.  

 “Maximum Annual Debt Service” means the greatest amount of Debt Service with respect to this Loan 
Agreement and any Parity Debt to which reference is made coming due in any Fiscal Year including the Fiscal Year in 
which the calculation is made or any subsequent Fiscal Year. 

“Measure H” means parcel tax measure that was approved by voters in November 2020, which is set to expire on 
June 30, 2030. 

“Net Proceeds” means the amount remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim or condemnation 
award after deducting all expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in the collection of such claim or award. 

“Net Revenues” means, for any period, all of the Gross Revenues received by the District during such period 
minus the amount required to pay all Operation and Maintenance Costs of the District which are payable during such period. 

“Operation and Maintenance Costs” means all reasonable and necessary current expenses of the District, 
including pension and post-retirement healthcare expenses, paid or accrued, of operating the District, calculated in 
accordance with GAAP and not expected to be reimbursed to the District within one year after the date of incurrence; but 
for clarity of this definition, Operation and Maintenance Costs do not include depreciation, amortization, and interest paid 
on this Loan Agreement or any Parity Debt or Subordinate Debt. 

“Parity Debt” means this Loan Agreement, the 2021 Financing Agreement, the 2022 Financing Agreement, the 
2024 Financing Agreement and other any bonds, notes, leases, loans, installment sale agreements, financing agreements, 
contracts or other obligations of the District which are secured by a pledge of and lien upon any of the Gross Revenues and 
which are payable from the Net Revenues on a parity with the Loan Payments, entered into or issued under and in accordance 
with Section 10 hereof. 

“Parity Debt Documents” means, collectively, the indenture of trust, trust agreement, installment sale agreement, 
loan agreement, financing agreement or other document authorizing the issuance of any Parity Debt or any securities which 
establishes or evidence Parity Debt. 

146



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
7 

“Parity Payments” means all payments scheduled to be paid by the District under Parity Debt Documents. 

“Payment Instructions” means the Irrevocable Payment Instructions dated as of October 1, 2024, between the 
District and Authority, relating to the wire transfer of a certain portion of the Loan Proceeds to the Seller for the purchase 
of the Project. 

“Payment Schedule” means the schedule of Loan Payments and Purchase Price set forth on Exhibit B. 

“Person” means an individual, corporation, firm, association, limited liability company, corporation, partnership, 
trust, or other legal entity or group of entities, including a governmental entity or any agency or political subdivision thereof. 

“Principal Account” means the account by that name in the General Fund established pursuant to Section 9 
hereof. 

“Principal Component” means the portion of each Loan Payment designated as Principal Component, as such is 
set forth on Exhibit B hereto. 

“Project” means, collectively, the facilities, improvements and other property constituting part of the Enterprise, 
the acquisition and construction of which are financed with the proceeds of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, as described 
more fully in Exhibit A attached hereto, as such description may be amended by the District from time to time pursuant to 
and in accordance with the terms hereto, and including all replacements, substitutions, repairs, restorations, modifications, 
attachments, accessions, additions and improvements thereof or thereto. 

“Project Costs” means the costs associated with the acquisition of the Project, or the application of the Loan 
Proceeds to the costs and expenses which are incidental or related to the acquisition of the Project, including capitalized 
interest and Costs of Issuance. 

“Project Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 4(d) of this Agreement. 

“Purchase Price” means the amount set forth on the Payment Schedule that District may, at its option, pay to 
Authority to purchase the Project. 

“Rate Stabilization Fund” means the fund by that name established and maintained pursuant to Section 5.3(e) of 
the 2021 Financing Agreement, which is intended to also serve as the Rate Stabilization Fund hereunder. 

“Resolution” means the applicable resolution of the Board authorizing the execution and delivery of this Loan 
Agreement. 

“Reserve Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 4(e) of this Agreement 

“Series 2024B Loan Obligations” means the “California Municipal Public Financing Authority (Arcata Fire 
Protection District), Series 2024B Loan Obligations (Station Acquisition Project)” represented by this Loan Agreement as 
described in Section 4, together with all other schedules, or exhibits made a part hereof by the parties hereto, together with 
any amendments to this Loan Agreement. 

“State” means the State of California. 

“Structural Deficit” means the District’s inability to satisfy the Debt Service Coverage Requirement due to the 
expiration of Measure H in 2030. 

147



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
8 

“Subordinate Annual Debt Service” means, for any Fiscal Year or twelve (12) calendar month period, the 
Subordinate Payments required to be made under all Subordinate Debt in such Fiscal Year or twelve (12) calendar month 
period. 

“Subordinate Debt” means indebtedness or other obligations (including but not limited to loans, leases and 
installment sale agreements, bonds or contracts) hereafter issued or incurred in compliance with Section 10 hereof and 
secured by a pledge of and lien on Gross Revenues subordinate to the pledge and lien securing the Loan Payments. 

“Subordinate Debt Service Coverage Requirement” means for any Fiscal Year, or other period of time for 
which such calculation is made, that Net Revenues for such Fiscal Year, or other period of calculation, must be at least equal 
to one hundred one percent (101%) of Maximum Annual Debt Service for such period of calculation. 

“Subordinate Payments” means all installment, lease or loan payments scheduled to be paid by the District under 
all respective agreements relating to the issuance of any Subordinate Debt. 

“Term” means the time during which this Loan Agreement is in effect, as provided in Section 6. 

“Seller” means the Seller of the Project as well as the agents or dealers of the Seller from whom Authority 
purchased or is purchasing the Project, as listed on Exhibit A. 

Section 2. Representations and Covenants of District. District represents, warrants and covenants for the benefit of 
Authority as follows: 

(a) The District is a fire protection district duly organized and existing under the constitution and laws of the
State. District will do or cause to be done all things to preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence as a fire 
protection district.  

(b) The District has the power and authority under applicable law to enter into the transactions contemplated
by this Loan Agreement and has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Loan Agreement and to carry out its 
obligations hereunder and thereunder.  District has provided to Authority a full, true and correct copy of the Resolution 
specifically authorizing District to execute and deliver this Loan Agreement and all documents contemplated hereby and 
thereby.  District has provided to Authority a full, true, and correct copy of an Incumbency and No-Litigation Certificate in 
substantially the form attached as Exhibit E hereto relating to the authority of the officers who have executed and delivered 
this Loan Agreement and who will execute and deliver this Loan Agreement and all documents in connection herewith and 
therewith on behalf of District. 

(c) This Loan Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of District enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except to the extent limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws 
affecting creditors’ rights generally. 

(d) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would
constitute, an Event of Default exists at the Commencement Date. 

(e) The District has complied with such public bidding requirements as may be applicable to this Loan
Agreement and the acquisition by District of the Project hereunder. 

(f) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court,
public board or body, pending or threatened against or affecting District, nor to the best knowledge of District is there any 
basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the transactions 
contemplated by this Loan Agreement or any other document, agreement or certificate which is used or contemplated for 
use in the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Loan Agreement or materially adversely affect the 
financial condition or properties of District. 

148



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
9 

(g) No consent or approval of any trustee or holder of any indebtedness of the District or of the voters of the
District, and no consent, permission, authorization, order or license of, or filing or registration with, any governmental 
authority is necessary in connection with the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the consummation of any 
transaction herein and therein contemplated, except as have been obtained or made and as are in full force and effect. 

(h) All authorizations, consents and approvals of governmental bodies or agencies required in connection
with the execution and delivery by District of this Loan Agreement or in connection with the carrying out by District of its 
obligations hereunder have been obtained. 

(i) The entering into and performance of this Loan Agreement or any other document or agreement
contemplated hereby to which District is or is to be a party will not violate any judgment, order, law or regulation applicable 
to District or result in any breach of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any lien, charge, security 
interest or other encumbrance on any assets of District or the Project pursuant to any indenture, mortgage, lease, deed of 
trust, bank loan or credit agreement or other instrument to which District is a party or by which it or its assets may be bound, 
except as herein provided. 

(j) With the exception of the pledge of the Gross Revenues under this Agreement and the Parity Debt
Documents relating to the 2021 Financing Agreement, the 2022 Financing Agreement and the 2024 Financing Agreement, 
neither the Gross Revenues nor the Net Revenues have otherwise been pledged and there are no other liens against the 
Gross Revenues or Net Revenues, senior to, or on parity with the Loan Payments. 

(k) The Project described in this Loan Agreement is essential to the function of District or to the service
District provides to its community. District has an immediate need for, and expects to make immediate use of, substantially 
all the Project, which need is not temporary or expected to diminish in the foreseeable future. The Project will be used by 
District only for the purpose of performing one or more of District’s proprietary functions consistent with the permissible 
scope of District’s authority. 

(l) During the Term of this Loan Agreement, the District will notify the Authority or its designee, within 30
days, following the date of an event that (i) could cause a default on any obligation of the District, (ii) might reasonably be 
anticipated to cause a Material Adverse Effect, (iii) might reasonably be anticipated to result in Material Litigation, and (iv) 
could have a negative material impact on the financial condition of the District. 

(m) Neither the payment of the Loan Payments hereunder nor any portion thereof is (i) secured by any interest
in property used or to be used in a trade or business of a non-exempt person (within the meaning of Section 103 of the Code) 
or in payments in respect of such property or (ii) derived from payments in respect of property, or borrowed money, used 
or to be used in a trade or business of a non-exempt person (within the meaning of Section 103 of the Code). No portion of 
the Project will be used directly or indirectly in any trade or business carried on by any non-exempt person (within the 
meaning of Section 103 of the Code). 

(n) The District will comply with all applicable provisions of the Code, including without limitation Sections
103 and 148 thereof, and the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department to maintain the exclusion of the interest 
components of Loan Payments from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 

(o) The District will use the proceeds of this Loan Agreement as soon as practicable and with all reasonable
dispatch for the purpose for which this Loan Agreement has been entered into. No part of the proceeds of this Loan 
Agreement will be invested in any securities, obligations or other investments or used, at any time, directly or indirectly, in 
a manner which, if such use had been reasonably anticipated on the date of issuance of this Loan Agreement, would have 
caused any portion of this Loan Agreement to be or become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 103(b)(2) or 
Section 148 of the Code and the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department.  

149



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
10 

(p) The District has never failed to pay payments coming due under any bond issue, loan agreement, lease
agreement, installment purchase agreement or other indebtedness obligation of District. 

(q) The useful life of the Project described on Exhibit A is not less than 20 years.

(r) The application, written statements and credit or financial information submitted by District to Authority
are true and correct and made to induce Authority to enter into this Loan Agreement, and District has experienced no material 
change in its financial condition since the date(s) of such information. 

(s) The District has provided Authority with audited financial statements through June 30, 2023. District has
experienced no material change in its financial condition or in the revenues expected to be utilized to meet Loan Payments 
due under the Agreement since June 30, 2023. 

(t) Any certificate, signed by any official of the District authorized to do so in connection with the
transactions described in this Loan Agreement, shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the District to the 
Authority as to the statements made therein. 

(u) The District will pay the excess (if any) of the actual costs of acquiring the Project over the corresponding
amount contributed pursuant to this Loan Agreement. 

(v) There has been no change in the assets, liabilities, financial position or results of operations of the District
which might reasonably be anticipated to cause a Material Adverse Effect, and the District has not incurred any obligations 
or liabilities which might reasonably be anticipated to cause a Material Adverse Effect. 

(w) All information, reports and other papers and data furnished by the District to the Authority were, at the
time the same were so furnished, to the best of the District’s knowledge, complete and accurate in all material respects. No 
fact is known to the District which has had or, to the best of the District’s knowledge, so far as the District can now 
reasonably foresee, may in the future have a Material Adverse Effect, which has not been set forth in the financial statements 
previously furnished to the Authority or in other such information, reports, papers and data or otherwise disclosed in writing 
to the Authority prior to the Commencement Date. Any financial, budget and other projections furnished to the Authority 
by the District or its or their agents were prepared in good faith on the basis of the assumptions stated therein, which 
assumptions were fair and reasonable in light of the conditions existing at the time of delivery of such financial, budget or 
other projections, and as of the date of this representation, represent the District’s best estimate of future financial 
performance of the District. 

(x) Inasmuch as this Loan Agreement represents a negotiated transaction, the District understands, and hereby
confirms, that the Authority is not acting as a fiduciary of the District, but rather is acting solely in its capacity as a conduit 
lender.  The District acknowledges and agrees that (i) the transaction contemplated herein is an arm’s length commercial 
transaction between the District and the Authority and its affiliates, (ii) in connection with such transaction, any assignee of 
the Authority and its affiliates are acting solely as a principal and not as an advisor including, without limitation, a 
“Municipal Advisor” as such term is defined in Section 15B of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 
the related final rules (the “Municipal Advisor Rules”), (iii) any assignee of the Authority and its affiliates have not provided 
any advice or assumed any advisory or fiduciary responsibility in favor of the District with respect to the transaction 
contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto (whether or not the Authority, or any 
affiliate of the Authority, has provided other services or advised, or is currently providing other services or advising the 
District on other matters), (iv) the Authority and its affiliates have financial and other interests that differ from those of the 
District, and (v) the District has consulted with its own financial, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors, as applicable, to 
the extent it deemed appropriate. 

(y) The District hereby designates this Loan Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” as defined in
Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. The aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations (excluding private activity bonds 
other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) issued or to be issued by District and all subordinate entities thereof during the current 
calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000. District and all subordinate entities thereof will not issue 

150



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
11 

or enter into in excess of $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (including this Loan Agreement, but excluding private 
activity bonds other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) during the current calendar year, without first obtaining an opinion of 
nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-exempt municipal obligations acceptable to Authority that the designation 
of this Loan Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” will not be adversely affected. 

Section 3. Purchase of Project. Authority hereby sells the Project to District, and District hereby purchases the Project 
from Authority on an installment purchase basis, in accordance with the provisions of this Loan Agreement. 

Section 4. Authorization, Designation and Application of Loan Proceeds; Project Fund; Reserve Fund.  

(a) This Loan Agreement and the Series 2024B Loan Obligations represented hereby is hereby authorized
and approved, which Series 2024B Loan Obligations are hereby designated the “California Municipal Public Financing 
Authority (Arcata Fire Protection District), Series 2024B Loan Obligations (Fire Station Acquisition Project).” 

(b) The Series 2024B Loan Obligations shall be payable as to principal and interest in legal tender of the
United States of America.  

(c) The District hereby instructs the Authority to cause (i) $_________ of the Loan Proceeds to be wire
transferred to the payees listed in the Requisition No.1 for Disbursement of Costs of Issuance and Project Costs, executed 
by an Authorized Representative of the District, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit K, for the payment of 
Project Costs, and (ii) $_________ of the Loan Proceeds to be wire transferred directly to the District for deposit into the 
Project Fund for the payment of Project Costs. 

(d) The District hereby covenants and agrees to establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate special trust
fund to be designated the “Project Fund” (herein referred to as the “Project Fund”), and to deposit therein the amount 
received by it pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii). The moneys in the Project Fund shall be held by the District in trust for the benefit 
of the District, Authority and its assignees and applied to the payment of the Project Costs. As long as there is any balance 
remaining on deposit in the Project Fund, such funds shall be subject to a first priority lien and security interest in favor of 
the Bank. Upon the earlier of October __, 2027 or delivery of the Certificate of Acceptance, the District shall use any 
remaining balance in the Project Fund to make Loan Payments as they come due until fully expended. 

(e) The District hereby covenants and agrees to establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate special reserve
fund to be designated the “Reserve Fund” (herein referred to as the “Reserve Fund”). The District will deposit an amount 
of $________ into this fund at Closing. All money in the Reserve Fund shall be used exclusively by the District for making 
Loan Payments and/or Parity Payments in the event that no other District funds are lawfully available for such payments. 
The Reserve Fund will be released from these restrictions and revert to unrestricted District funds upon the earlier of: (i) 
the resolution of the Structural Deficit, or (ii) the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 6. 

Section 5. Term. The Term of this Loan Agreement shall begin on the Commencement Date and shall continue until all 
Loan Payments and all other amounts required to be paid by District hereunder have been paid by the District, unless earlier 
terminated in a manner described in Section 6.  

Section 6. Termination. This Loan Agreement will terminate upon the earliest of any of the following events: 

(a) the exercise by District of the option to purchase the Project under the provisions of Section 31 and
payment of the Purchase Price and all amounts payable in connection therewith; 

(b) a default by the District and the Authority’s written election to terminate this Loan Agreement under
Section 36; or 

(c) the payment by District of all Loan Payments and all other amounts required to be paid by District
hereunder. 

151



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
12 

Section 7. Loan Payments and Terms. District will pay Loan Payments from all legally available funds, in lawful money 
of the United States of America to Authority in the amounts and on the dates set forth on the Payment Schedule. The Series 
2024B Loan Obligations shall bear interest at the Interest Rate of _.__% per annum (calculated on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months) from the Commencement Date to each Loan Payment Date as such is set forth in Exhibit A 
hereto, as may be amended from time to time, including any prepayment thereof pursuant to Section 31 hereof. Any Loan 
Payment not received on or before its due date will bear interest at the rate of _% per annum until the date on which such 
Loan Payment is made. 

In the event that it is determined that any of the interest components of Loan Payments may not be excluded from gross 
income for purposes of federal income taxation, District agrees to pay to Authority promptly after any such determination 
and on each Loan Payment Date thereafter an additional amount determined by Authority to compensate Authority for the 
loss of such excludability (including without limitation, compensation relating to interest expense, penalties or additions to 
tax), which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error. 

Section 8. Additional Payments. In addition to the Loan Payments required to be made by the District, the District shall 
also pay to the Authority, the Authority Issuance Fee and the initial Authority Annual Fee which fees shall be paid to the 
Authority by the District on the Commencement Date. Thereafter, the Authority Annual Fee shall be due and payable by 
the District in advance on February 1 of each year commencing with the first such date following the Commencement Date. 
The District’s obligation to pay the Authority Issuance Fee and the Authority Annual Fee shall in no way limit amounts 
payable by the District to the Authority under this Loan Agreement, including for the enforcement thereof. 

Section 9. Pledge and Application of Gross Revenues; Flow of Funds. The District hereby irrevocably pledges all of the 
Gross Revenues along with amounts on deposit in the General Fund to the punctual payment of the Loan Payments. The 
District agrees that, as long as any of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations remain outstanding, all of the Gross Revenues 
shall be deposited as soon as practicable upon receipt in the District’s General Fund. This pledge shall constitute a first lien 
on the Gross Revenues for the payment of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations in accordance with the terms hereof, and is 
on a parity with the pledge, lien and security interest which secures Parity Debt, if any. 

The District hereby covenants and agrees that all Gross Revenues, when and as received, will be received and held 
by the District in trust for the benefit of the Authority and owners of any Parity Debt, and will be disbursed, allocated and 
applied to pay when due the following amounts in the following order of priority: 

(a) Interest. On each Loan Payment Date on which the interest component of the Series 2024B Loan
Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt is payable, all moneys in the General Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the 
District for the purpose of paying interest on the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt as it shall 
become due and payable (including accrued interest on the Series 2024B Loan Obligations if purchased or redeemed prior 
to maturity pursuant to this Loan Agreement). In the event that the amounts on deposit in the General Fund on any Loan 
Payment Date are insufficient for any reason to pay the aggregate amount of interest then coming due and payable on the 
outstanding Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt, the District shall apply such amounts to the 
payment of interest on each of the outstanding Series 2024B Loan Obligations and Parity Debt on a pro rata basis.  

(b) Principal. On each Loan Payment Date on which the Principal Component of the Series 2024B Loan
Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt is payable, all moneys in the General Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the 
District for the purpose of paying the principal of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt at the 
maturity date or upon redemption, as the case may be. In the event that the amounts on deposit in the General Fund on each 
Loan Payment Date on which the Principal Component of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any outstanding Parity 
Debt is payable are insufficient for any reason to pay the aggregate amount of principal then coming due and payable on the 
Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt, the District shall apply such amounts to the payment of 
principal on each of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any outstanding Parity Debt on a pro rata basis. 

152



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
13 

(c) To the trustee or appropriate fiduciary, the amount of any deficiency in any reserve fund established for
any Parity Debt, the notice of which deficiency has been given to the District in accordance with the related Parity Debt 
Documents. 

(d) Any other payments required to comply with the provisions of this Loan Agreement and any respective
Parity Debt Documents. 

(e) After the above disbursements have been satisfied, and so long as no Event of Default has occurred and
is continuing, the District may use and apply moneys in the General Funds for (i) the payment of all Operation and 
Maintenance Costs of the District, (ii) the payment of any respective Subordinate Debt or any unsecured obligations, (iii) 
the acquisition and construction of improvements to the District, (iv) the prepayment of any other obligations of the District, 
or (v) any other lawful purposes of the District. 

Payment of the Loan Payments and the principal of and interest on any Parity Debt shall be made without 
preference or priority. If the amount of Gross Revenues on deposit in the General Fund is any time insufficient to enable the 
District to pay when due the Loan Payments and the principal of and interest on any applicable Parity Debt, such payments 
will be made on a pro rata basis. 

Section 10. Parity Debt. As set forth on the Payment Schedule, a portion of each Loan Payment is paid as, and represents 
payment of, interest. 

(a) So long as the Series 2024B Loan Obligations are outstanding, the District shall not issue or incur any
obligations payable from Gross Revenues or Net Revenues senior or superior to the payment of Debt Service on the Series 
2024B Loan Obligations.  The District may at any time issue Parity Debt payable from Gross Revenues on a parity with 
Debt Service on the Series 2024B Loan Obligations to provide financing or refinancing for the District in such principal 
amount as shall be determined by the District.  The District may issue or incur any such Parity Debt subject to the following 
specific conditions, which are hereby made conditions precedent to the issuance and delivery of such Parity Debt: 

(1) No Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing;

(2) The District delivers to the Authority prior to such incurrence a written certificate of the District
(i) certifying that the issuance or incurrence of such Parity Debt will not have any adverse effect on the tax-exempt
status of any outstanding Parity Debt, if applicable, and (ii) demonstrating that the estimated Debt Service Coverage
Requirement (calculated to include Additional Revenues but without taking into account any amounts transferred
into the General Fund from the Rate Stabilization Fund pursuant to Section 12(e) hereof) for the most recent Fiscal
Year or as shown by the books of the District for any other 12-month period selected by the District ending not
more than 90 days prior to the date of issuance of such Parity Debt, was at least equal to the Debt Service Coverage
Requirement for such period when adjusted to include approximate annual debt service for such proposed Parity
Debt as if it had been outstanding during such period; and

(3) Except with respect to the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, and at the District’s sole discretion,
there may be established from the proceeds of such Parity Debt a reserve fund for the security of such Parity Debt. 

The provisions of subsection (a)(2) of this Section shall not apply to any Parity Debt if, and to the extent that (i) 
all of the proceeds of such Parity Debt (other than proceeds applied to pay costs of issuing such Parity Debt and to make the 
reserve fund deposit required pursuant to subsection (a)(3) of this Section) shall be deposited in an irrevocable escrow held 
in cash or invested in Federal Securities for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest and premium (if any) on such 
outstanding Parity Debt, and (ii) at the time of the incurring of such Parity Debt, the District certifies in writing that 
maximum annual debt service on such Parity Debt will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on the outstanding Parity 
Debt being refunded, and (iii) the final maturity of such Parity Debt is not later than the final maturity of the Parity Debt 
being refunded. 

153



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
14 

(b) In order to maintain the parity relationship of debt service payments on all Parity Debt permitted
hereunder, the District covenants that all payments in the nature of principal and interest or reserve account replenishment 
with respect to any Parity Debt, will be structured to occur semi-annually on February 1 and August 1, in each year as such 
payments are due with respect to the Debt Service payments, and reserve account replenishment with respect to any Parity 
Debt will be structured to occur within one year, and to otherwise structure the terms of such Parity Debt to ensure that they 
are in all respects payable on a parity with the Debt Service payments on the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and all Parity 
Debt, and not prior thereto. 

(c) The Parity Debt Document under which Parity Debt is issued shall require that:

(i) An Event of Default under this Loan Agreement shall constitute an event of default under such
Parity Debt Document; 

(ii) An event of default under such Parity Debt Document shall constitute an Event of Default under
this Loan Agreement; 

(iii) Prior to exercising any remedies in an event of default under such Parity Debt Document, the
holders of such Parity Debt (or a trustee representing their interest) shall be required to cooperate with the Authority 
and vice versa;  

(iv) Remedies upon an event of default shall be substantially the same as the remedies provided in
this Loan Agreement, and, prior to exercising any such remedies, the holders of such Parity Debt (or a trustee or 
insurer representing their interest) shall be required to cooperate with the Authority to the end that the interests of 
such holders and the Authority shall be equally protected;  

(v) Interest on such Parity Debt will be payable on February 1 and August 1 in each year of the term
of such Parity Debt, and the principal of such Parity Debt will be payable annually on August 1 (or, alternatively, 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1) in any year in which principal is payable; 

(vi) An opinion of Bond Counsel delivered to the Authority that the delivery of the Parity Debt has
been duly authorized by the District in accordance with this Loan Agreement, and that the Parity Debt will be 
legally valid and binding limited obligations of the District; and 

(vii) The District will deliver to the Authority a Certificate of the District certifying that the conditions
precedent to the issuance of such Parity Debt set forth herein have been satisfied. 

(d) Any collateral given or to be given to secure Parity Debt (with the exception of Project Leases) shall also
secure the Series 2024B Loan Obligations on a pari passu basis. 

(e) The District may at any time execute any Subordinate Obligations upon satisfaction of the conditions set
forth in Section 10(a) above, but on a subordinate basis to the Loan Payments and any outstanding Parity Debt; and further 
provided that the District delivers to the Authority prior to such incurrence a written certificate of the District demonstrating 
that the estimated Debt Service Coverage Requirement for the most recent Fiscal Year or as shown by the books of the 
District for any other 12-month period selected by the District ending not more than 90 days prior to the date of issuance of 
such Subordinate Debt, was at least equal to the Required Subordinate Debt Service Coverage Requirement (rather than the 
Debt Service Coverage Requirement that is otherwise required for the incurrence of Parity Debt) for such period when 
adjusted to include approximate annual debt service for such proposed Subordinate Debt as if it had been outstanding during 
such period. 

Section 11. Loan Payments to be Unconditional. The obligations of District to make Loan Payments and to perform 
and observe the other covenants and agreements contained herein shall be absolute and unconditional in all events 
without abatement, diminution, deduction, recoupment, reduction, counterclaim, set-off or defense, for any reason, 
regardless of any disability of District to use the Project or any par thereof because of any reason including without 

154



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
15 

limitation any failure of the Project to be delivered, any defects, loss, damage, obsolescence, malfunctions, 
breakdowns or infirmities in the Project or any accident, condemnation or unforeseen circumstances. 

Section 12. Rates, Fees, and Charges.  

(a) Covenant to Maintain Gross Revenues. The District shall at all times do and perform all acts and things
permitted by law that are necessary to maintain in full force and effect its rights to receive revenues from its current sources 
of Gross Revenues and shall take no action that would result in the reduction of the amount of revenues from any such 
source.  The District shall fix, prescribe, assess, revise and collect rates, assessments, fees and charges for District services 
and facilities during each Fiscal Year, which are at least sufficient, after making allowances for contingencies and error in 
the estimates, to yield Gross Revenues sufficient to pay 100% of the following amounts in the following order of priority: 

(i) the Loan Payments during such Fiscal Year;

(ii) all Operation and Maintenance Costs estimated by the District to become due and payable in
such Fiscal Year; 

(iii) all other payments required for compliance with this Loan Agreement and the instruments
pursuant to which any Parity Debt shall have been issued; and 

(iv) all payments required to meet any other obligations of the District which are charges, liens,
encumbrances upon or payable from the Gross Revenues.  

(b) Covenant to Maintain Net Revenues. In addition, the District shall fix, prescribe, revise, assess and collect
rates, assessments, fees and charges for District services and facilities during each Fiscal Year that are sufficient to yield 
Net Revenues which, when added to other funds transferred from the Rate Stabilization Fund, and which are lawfully 
available to the District for payment of the items listed in clauses (ii) and (iii) above during such Fiscal Year, will aggregate 
an amount at least equal to Debt Service Coverage Requirement in such Fiscal Year for the Loan Payments and any Parity 
Debt which has a lien on such Net Revenues. 

(c) Transfers from Rate Stabilization Fund. For purposes of this Section 12, the amount of Net Revenues or
Gross Revenues of the District for a Fiscal Year will include amounts transferred into the General Fund from the Rate 
Stabilization Fund during such Fiscal Year. 

(d) Effect of Violation of Rate Covenants. If the District violates the covenants set forth in subsections (a) or
(b) hereof, but otherwise makes its scheduled Loan Payments in a timely manner, such violation shall not, in and of itself,
constitute an Event of Default under this Loan Agreement so long as within 180 days after the date such violation is
discovered, the District either (a) transfers enough moneys from the Rate Stabilization Fund sufficient to yield estimated
applicable Net Revenues which are at least equal to one hundred ten percent (110%) of the aggregate amount of Debt Service
on the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any Parity Debt payable from Net Revenues coming due and payable during such
Fiscal Year in compliance with subsection (b) of this Section 12, or (b) hires an Independent Consultant to review the
revenues and expenses of the District, and abides by such consultant’s recommendations to revise the schedule of rates,
assessments, fees, expenses and charges, and to revise any Operation and Maintenance Costs insofar as practicable, and to
take such other actions as are necessary so as to produce Net Revenues to cure such violation for future compliance;
provided, however, that, if the District does not, or cannot, transfer from the Rate Stabilization Fund the amount necessary
to comply with said subsection (a) or (b), as applicable, or otherwise cure such violation within two years after the date such
violation is discovered, an Event of Default shall be deemed to have occurred under Section 35 hereof, unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by the Authority.

(e) Rate Stabilization Fund. The District has the right (but not the obligation) at any time to establish a
separate fund to be known as the “Rate Stabilization Fund,” to be held and maintained by the District for the purpose of 
stabilizing the DSC Requirement.  The District shall have the right to deposit into the Rate Stabilization Fund from time to 
time any amount of funds which are legally available, including but not limited to Revenues which are released from the 
pledge and lien which secures the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and any Parity Debt as the District may determine; 

155



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
16 

provided that deposits for each Fiscal Year may be made until (but not after) one hundred eighty (180) days following the 
end of such Fiscal Year, unless otherwise agreed to by the Authority. Amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund are 
not pledged to and do not secure the Series 2024B Loan Obligations or any Parity Debt. The District may at any time 
withdraw any or all amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund and apply such amounts for any lawful purposes of 
the District.  

For the purpose of computing the amount of Gross Revenues for any Fiscal Year for purposes of the preceding 
subsection (a), or the amount of Net Revenues for any Fiscal Year for purposes of the preceding subsection (b), the District 
shall be permitted to transfer amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund to the General Fund, such transfers to be 
made until (but not after) one hundred eighty (180) days after the end of such Fiscal Year.  In addition, the District shall be 
permitted to withdraw amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund for any other lawful purpose. 

Section 13. Reserved. 

Section 14. Enjoyment of Project. Authority hereby covenants to provide District with quiet use and enjoyment of the 
Project during the Term, and District will peaceably and quietly have and hold and enjoy the Project during the Term, 
without suit, trouble or hindrance from Authority, except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Loan Agreement. 

Section 15. Right of Inspection. Authority will have the right at all reasonable times during regular business hours upon 
reasonable notice to enter into and upon the property of District for the purpose of inspecting the Project. 

Section 16. Use of the Project. District will not use, operate or maintain the Project improperly, carelessly, in violation of 
any applicable law or in a manner contrary to that contemplated by this Loan Agreement. District will obtain all permits and 
licenses, if any, necessary for the operation of the Project. In addition, District agrees to comply in all respects (including, 
without limitation, with respect to the use, maintenance and operation of each item of the Project) with all applicable laws, 
regulations and rulings of any legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body; provided, however, that District may 
contest in good faith the validity or application of any such law, regulation or ruling in any reasonable manner that does not, 
in the opinion of Authority, adversely affect the interest of Authority in and to the Project or its interest or rights under this 
Loan Agreement. 

Section 17. Maintenance of Project. District agrees that it will, at District’s own cost and expense, maintain, preserve and 
keep the Project in good repair, working order and condition. Authority will have no responsibility to maintain, or repair or 
to make improvements or additions to the Project. 

Section 18. Title to the Project. During the Term, title to the Project and any and all additions, repairs, replacements or 
modifications will vest in District, subject to the rights of Authority under this Loan Agreement; provided that title will 
thereafter immediately and without any action by District vest in Authority, and District will immediately surrender 
possession of the Project to Authority upon (a) any termination of this Loan Agreement other than termination pursuant to 
Section 6 or (b) the occurrence of an Event of Default. It is the intent of the parties hereto that any transfer of title to 
Authority pursuant to this Section will occur automatically without the necessity of any bill of sale, certificate of title or 
other instrument of conveyance. District will, nevertheless, execute and deliver any such instruments as Authority may 
request to evidence such transfer. District irrevocably designates, makes, constitutes and appoints Authority and its assignee 
as District’s true and lawful attorney (and agent in-fact) with power, at such time of termination or times thereafter as 
Authority in its sole and absolute discretion may determine, in District’s or Authority’s or such assignee’s name, to endorse 
the name of District upon any bill of sale, document, instrument, invoice, freight bill, bill of lading or similar document 
relating to the Project in order to vest title in Authority and transfer possession to Authority. 

Section 19. Security Interest. To secure the performance of all of District’s obligations under this Loan Agreement and to 
the extent permitted by law, Authority retains a security interest constituting a first priority and perfected lien and security 
interest on the Project and on all additions, attachments and accessions thereto and substitutions therefor and proceeds 
therefrom. District agrees to execute and deliver such additional documents, including, without limitation, opinions of 
counsel, financing statements, landlord-tenant or mortgagee waivers, information necessary for fixture filings, notice and 

156



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
17 

similar instruments, in form satisfactory to Authority, that Authority deems necessary or appropriate to establish and 
maintain its first priority and perfected security interest in the Project or for the confirmation or perfection of Authority’s 
rights hereunder. District agrees that financing statements may be filed with respect to the security interest in the Project. 
District, at its expense will protect and defend District’s rights in the Project and Authority’s rights and interests therein and 
will keep the Project free and clear from any and all claims, liens, encumbrances, and legal processes of District’s creditors 
and other persons. 

As further security therefor, District hereby agrees with respect thereto that Authority shall have all the rights and 
remedies of a secured party under applicable California law with respect to any and all Project hereunder. 

Section 20. Reserved.  

Section 21. Liens, Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. District will keep the Project free and clear 
of all levies, liens, charges and encumbrances, except those created under this Loan Agreement, and to pay all charges, taxes 
and fees (including any recording or stamp fees or taxes) that may now or hereafter be imposed upon the ownership, leasing, 
rental, sale, purchase, possession or use of the Project and shall give Authority immediate written notice of any of the 
foregoing. The parties to this Loan Agreement contemplate that the Project will be used for a governmental or proprietary 
purpose of District and, therefore, that the Project will be exempt from all property taxes and other similar charges. If the 
use, possession or acquisition of the Project is found to be subject to taxation in any form, District will pay all taxes and 
governmental charges lawfully assessed or levied against or with respect to the Project. District will pay all utility and other 
charges incurred in the use and maintenance of the Project. District will pay such taxes and charges as the same become 
due; provided that, with respect to any such taxes and charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of 
years, District will be obligated to pay only such installments that accrue during the Term hereof. If any of the same shall 
remain unpaid when due, Authority may pay same and add such payment to the rental payment next becoming due, as 
additional rent. District shall execute and deliver to Authority upon Authority’s request such further instruments and 
documents containing such other assurances as the Authority deems necessary or advisable for the confirmation or perfection 
of Authority’s rights hereunder or to otherwise effectuate the intent of this Loan Agreement.  

Section 22. Insurance. At its own expense, District will maintain (a) casualty insurance insuring the Project against loss or 
damage by fire and all other risks covered by the standard extended coverage endorsement then in use in the State and any 
other risks reasonably required by Authority in an amount not less than the greater of then applicable Purchase Price of the 
Project and the full replacement cost of the Project without consideration for depreciation, (b) liability insurance that protects 
Authority from liability in all events in form and amount satisfactory to Authority, and (c) workers’ compensation coverage 
as required by the laws of the State; provided that, with Authority’s prior written consent, District may self-insure against 
the risks described in clauses (a) and (b). All insurance proceeds from casualty losses will be payable as hereinafter provided. 
District will furnish to Authority certificates evidencing such coverage throughout the Term hereof. 

All such casualty and liability insurance will be with insurers that are acceptable to Authority and will contain a 
provision to the effect that such insurance will not be cancelled or modified materially without first giving written notice 
thereof to Authority at least thirty days in advance of such cancellation or modification. All such casualty insurance will 
name Authority, or its assignee, as the case may be, as a loss payee and additional insured. All such liability insurance will 
name Authority, or its assignee, as the case may be, as an additional insured. 

All such insurance shall be in form, issued by such insurance companies and be in such amounts as shall be satisfactory 
to Authority, and shall provide that losses, if any, shall be payable to Authority, or its assignee, as the case may be, as “loss 
payee,” and all such liability insurance shall include Authority, or its assignee, as the case may be, as an “additional insured.”  
District shall pay the premiums for such insurance and deliver to Authority a certification in the form of Exhibit C and 
satisfactory evidence of the insurance coverage required hereunder.  District hereby irrevocably appoints Authority, or its 
assignee, as District’s attorney-in-fact to make claim for, receive payments of and execute and endorse all documents, checks 
or drafts received in payment for loss or damage under any such insurance policy.  

157



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
18 

Section 23. Advances. In the event District fails to maintain the insurance required by this Loan Agreement, pay taxes or 
charges required to be paid by it under this Loan Agreement or fails to keep the Project in good repair and operating 
condition, Authority may (but will be under no obligation to) purchase the required policies of insurance and pay the cost 
of the premiums on the thereof, pay such taxes and charges and make such Project repairs or replacements as are necessary 
and pay the cost thereof. All amounts so advanced by Authority will become additional purchase price for the Project. 
District agrees to pay such amounts with interest thereon from the date paid at the rate of 10% per annum or the maximum 
permitted by law, whichever is less. 

Section 24. Financial Information. District shall maintain proper books of record and account in which proper entries shall 
be made in accordance with generally accepted government accounting standards, consistently applied, of all its business 
and affairs. District shall have an annual audit of the financial condition of District made by an independent certified public 
accountant promptly following the end of each fiscal year. Such report shall include statements in reasonable detail, certified 
by such accountant, reflecting District’s financial position as of the end of such fiscal year and the results of District’s 
operations and changes in the financial position of its funds for the fiscal year. District shall furnish to Authority copies of 
such audit report immediately after it is accepted by District, but not later than two hundred and seventy (270) days after the 
end of the fiscal year. If the audit is publicly available on District’s website or on the “EMMA” website maintained by the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the requirement to provide the audit to Authority will be satisfied if District emails 
a link to the posted item to Authority within such 270-day period. So long as ___________ Bank is the lender with respect 
to this Loan Agreement, the electronic audit or link may be sent to the following email address (or such other address as 
___________ Bank supplies to the District in writing):  ___________.com. 

Section 25. Release and Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, District will indemnify, protect and hold 
harmless Authority from and against any and all liability (including, without limitation, negligence, tort and strict liability), 
obligations, losses, expenses, proceedings, judgements, settlements, actions, claims and damages whatsoever, regardless of 
cause thereof, and expenses in connection therewith (including, without limitation, reasonable counsel fees and reasonable 
expenses and any federal income tax and interest and penalties connected therewith imposed on interest received) arising 
out of or as the result of (a) the entering into this Loan Agreement, (b) the ownership, possession, operation, control of any 
item of the Project, (c) the manufacturing, ordering, acquisition, use, operation, condition, maintenance, transportation, 
storage, purchase, delivery, rejection, storage or return of any item of the Project, (d) any accident in connection with the 
operation, use, condition, possession, storage or return of any item of the Project resulting in damage to property or injury 
or death to any person, (e) any claims arising under federal, state or local environmental protection and hazardous substance 
clean up laws and regulations, (f) any claims of patent, trademark or copyright infringement or (g) the breach of any covenant 
herein or any material misrepresentation contained herein, and if District shall be in default hereunder, arising out of the 
condition of any item of Project sold or disposed of after use by District, including (without limitation) claims for injury or 
death of persons and for damage to property. The indemnification arising under this paragraph will continue in full force 
and effect notwithstanding the full payment of all obligations under this Loan Agreement or the Termination hereof for any 
reason. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, District shall not indemnify Authority, or its assignees, for any liabilities, 
losses and claims resulting from Authority’s actual, proven, direct and proximate gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

Section 26. Risk of Loss. District assumes, from and including the Commencement Date, and bears all risk of loss, theft, 
destruction of or damage to the Project or any part thereof from any cause whatsoever during the Term and thereafter until 
redelivery to a location designated by Authority, and shall not be relieved of the obligation to pay Loan Payments or any 
other obligation hereunder because of any such occurrence. No such loss of or damage to the Project nor defect therein nor 
unfitness or obsolescence thereof will relieve District of the obligation to make Loan Payments or to perform any other 
obligation under this Loan Agreement. 

If (a) the Project or any portion thereof hereunder is destroyed (in whole or in part) or is damaged by fire or other 
casualty or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the Project or any part thereof hereunder is taken under the exercise of the 
power of eminent domain, District shall immediately notify Authority.  District and Authority shall cause the net proceeds 
of any insurance claim (including self-insurance) or condemnation award to be applied, at Authority’s option, to (i) the 
prompt repair, restoration, modification or replacement of the Project so affected or (ii) the payment in full of the then 
applicable Concluding Payment.  Any balance of net proceeds remaining after completion of such work or payment of such 

158



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
19 

Concluding Payment shall be paid promptly to District.  If the net proceeds are insufficient to pay the costs of such repair, 
restoration, modification or replacement or to pay such Concluding Payment in full, District shall, at Authority’s direction, 
either complete the work or pay the then applicable Concluding Payment in full and in either case pay any cost in excess of 
the amount of net proceeds, but only from legally available funds. 

Section 27. Damage, Destruction, Condemnation; Use of Proceeds. If (a) the Project or any portion thereof is destroyed, 
in whole or in part, or is damaged by fire or other casualty, or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the Project or any part 
thereof or the interest of District or Authority in the Project or any part thereof will be taken under the exercise of the power 
of eminent domain by any governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation acting under governmental authority, 
District and Authority will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance claim (including self-insurance) or condemnation award 
to be applied, at Authority’s option to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the 
Project, unless District has exercised its option to purchase the Project pursuant to Section 31, then to the payment in full 
of the Concluding Payment. Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has been completed will be paid to 
District. 

Section 28. Insufficiency of Net Proceeds. If the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in full the cost of any repair, 
restoration, modification or improvement referred to in Section 27, District will either (a) complete such replacement, repair, 
restoration, modification or improvement and pay any costs thereof in excess of the amount of the Net Proceeds, or (b) 
purchase Authority’s interest in the Project pursuant to Section 31. The amount of the Net Proceeds, if any, remaining after 
completing such repair, restoration, modification or improvement or after purchasing the Project will be retained by District. 
If District will make any payments pursuant to this Section, District will not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from 
Authority nor will District be entitled to any diminution of the amounts payable under Section 7. 

Section 29. Disclaimer of Warranties. DISTRICT REPRESENTS THAT IT HAS SELECTED THE PROJECT 
PRIOR TO HAVING REQUESTED AUTHORITY TO FINANCE THE SAME.  AUTHORITY MAKES NO 
WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO ANY 
PROJECT MATTER WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING (WITHOUT LIMITATION) THE SUITABILITY OF THE 
PROJECT, ITS DURABILITY, THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, CAPACITY, OPERATION, 
PERFORMANCE, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE OF THE 
PROJECT OR AGAINST INFRINGEMENT, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION WITH 
RESPECT THERETO. IN NO EVENT SHALL AUTHORITY BE LIABLE FOR ANY ACTUAL, INCIDENTAL, 
INDIRECT, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF 
THIS LOAN AGREEMENT OR THE EXISTENCE, FURNISHING, FUNCTIONING OR DISTRICT’S USE OR 
MAINTENANCE OF ANY PROJECT OR SERVICES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS LOAN AGREEMENT. AS 
BETWEEN DISTRICT AND AUTHORITY, DISTRICT PURCHASES AND ACQUIRES THE PROJECT “AS IS” 
“WHERE IS” AND “WITH ALL FAULTS.”  

Authority shall not be liable to District or any third party for any loss, damage, injury or expense of any kind or nature 
caused directly or indirectly by any of the Project or the use or maintenance thereof or any defect therein, the failure of 
operation thereof or by any interruption of service or loss of use thereof or for any loss of business or damage whatsoever 
and howsoever caused.  Authority makes no warranty as to the treatment of this Loan Agreement for tax or accounting 
purposes or as to the compliance of the Project with applicable government regulations or requirements.  District has selected 
both the Project and the Seller and acknowledges that Authority has not participated in any way in District’s selection of the 
Project or the Seller.  Authority has no obligation to install, erect, test, adjust, service or maintain the Project. 

Section 30. Seller’s Warranties. District may have rights under the contract evidencing the purchase of the Project; District 
is advised to contact the Seller for a description of any such rights. District hereby assigns to Authority during the Term 
hereof all warranties running from Seller to District. Authority hereby irrevocably appoints District its agent and attorney-
in-fact during the Term, so long as District will not be in default hereunder, to assert from time-to-time whatever claims and 
rights (including without limitation warranties) related to the Project that Authority may have against the Seller. District 
agrees to look solely to the Seller for any claim arising from any defect, breach of warranty, failure or delay in delivery, 
mis-delivery or inability to use the Project for any reason whatsoever and District’s obligations to Authority hereunder shall 

159



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
20 

not in any manner be affected thereby, including (without limitation) District’s obligations to pay Authority all Loan 
Payments and other amounts payable hereunder. District’s sole remedy for the breach of any such warranty, indemnification 
or representation will be against the Seller, and not against Authority. Any such matter will not have any effect whatsoever 
on the rights and obligations of Authority with respect to this Loan Agreement, including the right to receive full and timely 
payments hereunder. District expressly acknowledges that Authority makes, and has made, no representations or warranties 
whatsoever as to the existence or availability of such warranties by the Seller. 

Section 31. Purchase Option; Prepayment.  The Principal Components of the Loan Payments maturing on or before 
August 1, 20__, are not subject to optional redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates. At its option, and upon 
thirty (30) days’ notice to the Bank, the District may prepay the Principal Components maturing on or after August 1, 20__, 
in whole or in part in integral multiples of $50,000, pro rata among Principal Components, from any source of available 
funds, on any date on or after August 1, 20__, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Principal 
Components to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for prepayment, without premium. The District 
shall give the Bank notice of its intention to exercise its option not less than thirty (30) days in advance of the date of 
exercise. 

At the District’s option, and upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Bank, the Principal Components of the Loan 
Payments shall be subject to prepayment as a whole or in part on any date, from the Net Proceeds of casualty insurance or 
a governmental taking of the Enterprise or portions thereof by eminent domain proceedings, under the circumstances and 
upon the conditions and terms prescribed herein, at a prepayment price equal to the sum of the principal prepaid plus accrued 
interest thereon to the date fixed for prepayment, without premium. 

Section 32. Determination of Fair Purchase Price. District and Authority hereby agree and determine that the Loan 
Payments hereunder during the Term hereof represent the fair value of the use of the Project and that the amount required 
to exercise District’s option to purchase the Project pursuant to Section 31 represents the fair purchase price of the Project 
for each optional prepayment date set forth therein. District hereby determines that the Loan Payments do not exceed a 
reasonable amount so as to place District under a practical economic compulsion to pay the amounts set forth in this Loan 
Agreement or to exercise its option to purchase the Project hereunder. In making such determinations, District and Authority 
have given consideration to (a) the costs of the Project, (b) the uses and purposes for which the Project will be employed by 
District, (c) the benefit to District by reason of the acquisition of the Project and the use of the Project pursuant to the terms 
and provisions of this Loan Agreement, and (d) District’s option to purchase the Project. District hereby determines and 
declares that the acquisition of the Project and the leasing of the Project pursuant to this Loan Agreement will result in 
Project of comparable quality and meeting the same requirements and standards as would be necessary if the acquisition of 
the Project were performed by District other than pursuant to this Loan Agreement. District hereby determines and declares 
that the Term does not exceed the useful life of the Project. 

Section 33. Assignment by Authority. Authority’s interest in, to and under this Loan Agreement and the Project may be 
assigned in whole, but not in part (except as participation interests, as described below), without the necessity of obtaining 
the consent of District; provided that any assignment will not be effective against District until (a) District has received 
written notice of the name and address of the assignee, (b) such assignee is (i) an affiliate of Authority or (ii) a bank, 
insurance company or other financial institution, or an affiliate thereof, and (c) District receives a letter of representation 
from such assignee with representations as to its status, its sophistication, its review of District’s finances and that it is 
acquiring the rights, title and interest of this Loan Agreement for its own account and not with a present view to resell, in 
substantially the form attached hereto. Nothing herein shall limit the right of Authority or its assignees to sell or assign 
participation interests in this Loan Agreement to one or more entities listed in the preceding clause (b). District will retain 
all such notices as a register of all assignees and will make all payments to the assignee designated in such register. District 
agrees to execute all documents, including notices of assignment and chattel mortgages or financing statements that may be 
reasonably requested by Authority or any assignee to protect its interest in the Project and in this Loan Agreement and 
agrees to the filing of financing statements with respect to the Project and this Loan Agreement. District will not have the 
right to and will not assert against any assignee any claim, counterclaim, defense, set-off or other right District may have 
against Authority. 

160



 

2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
21 

Section 34. Assignment and Leasing by District. None of District’s right, title and interest in, to and under this Loan 
Agreement and the Project may be assigned or encumbered by District for any reason, except that District may lease all or 
part of the Project if District obtains the prior written consent of Authority and an opinion of Bond Counsel that such leasing 
will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest components of the Loan Payments from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. Any such lease of all or part of the Project will be subject to this Loan Agreement and the rights of 
Authority in, to and under this Loan Agreement and the Project. 
 
Section 35. Events of Default Defined. Subject to the provisions of Section 8, any of the following will be “Events of 
Default” under this Loan Agreement: 
 

(a) Failure by District to pay any Loan Payment or other payment required to be paid hereunder at the time 
specified herein; 

 
(b) Failure by District to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed 

or performed, other than as referred to in Section 35(a), for a period of 30 days after written notice, specifying such failure 
and requesting that it be remedied, is given to District by Authority, unless Authority will agree in writing to an extension 
of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the 
applicable period, Authority will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is 
instituted by District within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected; 

 
(c) Default by the District under any Parity Debt Documents. 
 
(d) Any statement, representation or warranty made by District in or pursuant to this Loan Agreement or its 

execution, delivery or performance will prove to have been false, incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect 
on the date when made; 

 
(e) Any provision of this Loan Agreement will at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on 

District, or will be declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability thereof will be contested by District or any 
governmental agency or authority if the loss of such provision would materially adversely affect the rights or security of 
Authority, or District will deny that it has any further liability or obligation under this Loan Agreement; 

 
(f) District will (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of 

District, or of all or a substantial part of the assets of District, (ii) be unable, fail or admit in writing its inability generally to 
pay its debts as they become due, (iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) have an order for relief 
entered against it under applicable federal bankruptcy law, or (v) file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or a petition or an 
answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or taking advantage of any insolvency law or any answer 
admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against District in any bankruptcy, reorganization or insolvency 
proceeding; or 

 
(g) An order, judgment or decree will be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition 

or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of District or of all or a substantial part of the assets of District, in 
each case without its application, approval or consent, and such order, judgment or decree will continue unstayed and in 
effect for any period of 30 consecutive days. 

 
Section 36. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default exists, Authority will have the right, at its sole 

option without any further demand or notice, to take one or any combination of the following remedial steps: 
 
(a) By written notice to District, Authority may declare all Loan Payments and other amounts payable by 

District hereunder to the end of the Term to be due; 
 
(b) With or without terminating this Loan Agreement, Authority may enter the premises where the Project is 

located and retake possession of the Project or require District at District’s expense to promptly return any or all of the 
Project to the possession of Authority at a place specified by Authority, and sell or lease the Project or, for the account of 

161



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
22 

District, sublease the Project, holding District liable for the difference between (i) the Loan Payments and other amounts 
payable by District hereunder plus the applicable Purchase Price, and (ii) the net proceeds of any such sale, lease or sublease 
(after deducting all expenses of Authority in exercising its remedies under this Loan Agreement, including without 
limitation, all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing the Project and all brokerage, 
auctioneers’ and attorneys’ fees) provided that the amount of District’s liability under this subparagraph (b) shall not exceed 
the Loan Payments and other amounts otherwise due hereunder plus the remaining Loan Payments and other amounts 
payable by District to the end of the Term, and provided further that any liabilities for such remaining Loan Payments and 
other amounts shall be required to be paid by District only at the times provided for the payment of such amounts under this 
Loan Agreement; and 

(c) Authority may take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to enforce
its rights as the owner of the Project and to collect the Loan Payments then due or thereafter to become due during the Term 
of this Loan Agreement, or enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of the District 
under this Loan Agreement. 

In addition, District will remain liable for all covenants and indemnities under this Loan Agreement and for all 
reasonable legal fees and other reasonable costs and expenses, including court costs, incurred by Authority with respect to 
the enforcement of any of the remedies listed above or any other remedy available to Authority. 

Section 36A. Application of Funds Upon Acceleration.  Upon the date of the declaration of acceleration as provided in 
Section 36, all Gross Revenues thereafter received by the District shall be applied in the following order: 

First, to the payment, without preference or priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of such Gross Revenues 
ratably without any discrimination or preference, of the fees, costs and expenses of the Authority, if any, in carrying out the 
provisions of hereof, including reasonable compensation to their respective accountants and counsel; and 

Second, to the payment of the entire unpaid aggregate Principal Components of the Loan Payments, and the unpaid 
principal amount of any other Parity Debt secured by Gross Revenues, and the accrued interest thereon, with interest on the 
overdue payments at the rate or rates of interest applicable to the Loan Payments and such other Parity Debt obligations if 
paid in accordance with their respective terms. 

Section 37. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Authority is intended to be exclusive 
and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be in addition to every other remedy given under this Loan Agreement 
or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any 
default will impair any such right or power or will be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may 
be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle Authority to exercise any remedy 
reserved to it in this Loan Agreement it will not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required 
in this Loan Agreement. 

Section 38. Tax Certifications. District hereby represents as follows: 

(a) The estimated total costs of the Project, together with any costs of entering into this Loan Agreement that
are expected to be financed under this Loan Agreement, will not be less than the total principal portion of the Loan Payments. 

(b) The Project has been ordered or is expected to be ordered within six months of the Commencement Date,
and the Project is expected to be delivered, and the Seller fully paid, within eighteen months of the Commencement Date. 

(c) District has not created or established, and does not expect to create or establish, any sinking fund or other
similar fund (i) that is reasonably expected to be used to pay the Loan Payments, or (ii) that may be used solely to prevent 
a default in the payment of the Loan Payments. 

162



 

2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
23 

(d) The Project has not been and is not expected to be sold or otherwise disposed of by District, either in 
whole or in major part, prior to the last maturity of the Loan Payments. 

 
(e) To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable. 

 
Section 39. Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder will be sufficiently given and will be 
deemed given when delivered or mailed by registered mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the addresses immediately after 
the signatures to this Loan Agreement (or at such other address as either party hereto will designate in writing to the other 
for notices to such party), to any assignee at its address as it appears on the register maintained by District. 
 
Section 40. Binding Effect. This Loan Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon Authority and 
District and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
Section 41. Severability. In the event any provision of this Loan Agreement will be held invalid or unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
 
Section 42. Entire Agreement. This Loan Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Authority and District. 
 
Section 43. Amendments. This Loan Agreement may be amended, changed or modified in any manner by written 
agreement of Authority and District. Any waiver of any provision of this Loan Agreement or any right or remedy hereunder 
must be affirmatively and expressly made in writing and will not be implied from inaction, course of dealing or otherwise. 
 
Section 44. Series 2024B Loan Obligations Register. The District will keep or cause to be kept, sufficient books for the 
registration and transfer of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations which shall be open at all reasonable times with reasonable 
prior notice during normal business hours of the District; and, upon presentation, the District shall, under such reasonable 
regulations as it may prescribe, register or transfer or cause to be registered or transferred, on said books, the Series 2024B 
Loan Obligations. 
 
Section 45. No CUSIP Numbers; No Rating; No DTC; No Offering Document. The Series 2024B Loan Obligations 
shall not bear CUSIP numbers, shall not be rated by any rating agency, shall not be held by The Depository Trust Company, 
and shall not be offered pursuant to any offering document. 
 
Section 46. Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State. 
 
Section 47. Electronic Transactions. The parties agree that the transaction described herein may be conducted and related 
documents may be stored by electronic means. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of 
original executed documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all 
purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law. 
 
Section 48. Role of Authority; No Liability. Authority has not acted and will not act as a fiduciary for District or as 
District’s agent or municipal advisor. Authority has not and will not provide financial, legal, tax, accounting or other advice 
to District or to any financial advisor or placement agent engaged by District with respect to this Loan Agreement. District, 
its financial advisor, placement agent or municipal advisor, if any, shall each seek and obtain its own financial, legal, tax, 
accounting and other advice with respect to this Loan Agreement from its own advisors (including as it relates to structure, 
timing, terms and similar matters). It is hereby expressly understood and agreed that the Authority shall be under no liability 
of any kind or character whatsoever for the payment of any costs associated with the Project, Project Costs or otherwise, 
and that all such costs and expenses shall be paid by the District, regardless of whether the funds deposited in the Project 
Fund or otherwise are sufficient to cover all such costs and expenses. 
 
Section 49. District’s Notice Filings Related to this Loan Agreement for SEC Rule 15c2-12. In connection with 
District’s compliance with any continuing disclosure undertakings (each, a “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) entered 
into by District on and after February 27, 2019, pursuant to SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated pursuant to the Securities and 

163



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
24 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”), Authority acknowledges that District may be required to file with the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system, or its successor (“EMMA”), notice 
that District has incurred obligations under this Loan Agreement and notice of certain subsequent events reflecting financial 
difficulties in connection with this Loan Agreement. District agrees that it shall not file or submit, or permit to be filed or 
submitted, with EMMA any documentation that includes the following unredacted sensitive or confidential information 
about Authority or its affiliates: address and account information of Authority or its affiliate, e-mail addresses, telephone 
numbers, fax numbers, names and signatures of officers, employees and signatories of Authority or its affiliates, unless 
otherwise required for compliance with the Rule or otherwise required by law. District acknowledges that Authority is not 
responsible for District’s compliance or noncompliance with the Rule or any Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

Section 50. Captions. The captions or headings in this Loan Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, 
limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Loan Agreement. 

Section 51. Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, 
each of which will be an original and all of which will constitute but one and the same instrument. 

[Signature Page to Follow on Next Page] 

164



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
25 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Authority and District have caused this Loan Agreement to be executed in their 
corporate names by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

By: ______________________________________ 

Name: ____________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________________ 

Address: 2108 N Street; Suite 5030 
Sacramento, CA 95816 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By: ______________________________________ 

Name: ____________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________________ 

Address: 2149 Central Avenue 
McKinleyville CA 95519 

165



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
A-1

EXHIBIT A  

SERIES 2024B INSTALLMENT LOAN PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT: _____________________ 

The Project may also include any other public improvements items so long as the same are approved in writing by the 
Bank (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) and the payment of the costs of such capital addition or 
replacement with moneys in the Project Fund will not, in and of itself, adversely affect the tax-exempt status of Series 
2024B Loan Obligations issued and outstanding under the Loan Agreement 

PROJECT LOCATION:  Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”), including the District’s principal location at 2149 
Central Ave., McKinleyville CA 95519.   

166



2024B INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
B-1

EXHIBIT B 

SERIES 2024B INSTALLMENT LOAN PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE(1)(2) 

Original Principal Amount: $________.00 

Interest Rate: _.__% 

Commencement Date: October __, 2024 

Loan Payments will be made in accordance with Section 7 of the Loan Agreement and this Payment Schedule. 

Loan 
Payment 

Date  
Principal 

Component 
Interest 

Component  
Total Debt 
Service(1)  

Remaining 
Balance(2)  

Premium 
Amount  

Total 
Payoff 

Totals
______________________ 
(1) District’s Loan Payments to Authority should be made from this Exhibit B.
(2) District’s option to purchase is subject to provisions of Section 31 of the Loan Agreement. 

167



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
C-1

EXHIBIT C

SERIES 2024B INSTALLMENT LOAN PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

FORM OF CERTIFICATION OF INSURANCE COVERAGE  

The undersigned, as Fire Chief of the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”), in connection with the execution 
of the Installment Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2024 (the “Installment Loan Agreement”), by and between the 
District and the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”), the installment payments (the “Installment 
Payments”) of which secure the above-captioned $________ aggregate principal amount of California Municipal Public 
Financing Authority (Arcata Fire Protection District), Series 2024B Loan Obligations (Fire Station Acquisition Project) (the 
“Series 2024B Loan Obligations”), does hereby certify on behalf of the District that: 

I have reviewed and am familiar with the insurance provisions of the Installment Loan Agreement and have compared 
the coverage provided by the District’s existing insurance policies (and existing self-insurance coverage, if any), with the 
provisions of the Installment Loan Agreement and certify that the insurance coverage carried by the District meets the 
requirements set forth in the Installment Loan Agreement and such insurance provides the required protection to the Authority 
and its successors or assignees. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this Certificate on behalf of the Arcata Fire Protection District in 
the State of California. 

Dated:  October __, 2024 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By:__________________________________
      Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

168



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
D-1

EXHIBIT D 

ESSENTIAL USE CERTIFICATE 

California Municipal Public Financing Authority, and its successors and/or assigns 
20 South Santa Cruz Ave. Suite 300 
Los Gatos, CA 95030 

Re:  Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), dated as of October 1, 2024, by and 
between the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”) and the Arcata Fire Protection District 
(the “District”) 

I, Chris Emmons, the Fire Chief for District, am qualified to answer the questions set forth below regarding the Project to 
be acquired by District in connection with the above-referenced Loan Agreement: 

1. What is the specific use of the Project?

2. What increased capabilities will the Project provide?

3. Why is the Project essential to your ability to deliver governmental services?

Very truly yours, 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

 By: _______________________________ 
Name:  Chris Emmons 
Title:   Fire Chief  

169



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
E-1

EXHIBIT E 

INCUMBENCY AND NO-LITIGATION CERTIFICATE 

The following certifications are made in connection with the execution and delivery of the above-captioned 
$________ aggregate principal amount of California Municipal Public Financing Authority (Arcata Fire Protection 
District), Series 2024B Loan Obligations (Fire Station Acquisition Project), (the “Series 2024B Loan Obligations”), 
representing the interest of the registered owner thereof in certain installment payments (the “Installment Payments”) to be 
made by the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”) to the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the 
“Authority”), under the Installment Loan Agreement dated October 1, 2024 (the “Installment Loan Agreement”), by and 
between the District and the Authority, which Installment Payments have been assigned to ___________ Bank, as the 
assignee therein (the “Assignee”), pursuant to the Assignment Agreement dated October 1, 2024, by and between the 
Authority and the Assignee (the “Assignment Agreement”). 

Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings specified in the Installment Loan Agreement. 

Each of the undersigned, on behalf of the District, hereby certify as follows: 

1. Organization and Authority.  The District is a fire protection district duly organized and validly existing
under the laws of the State of California and has the authority to execute and deliver the Installment Loan Agreement. 

2. Incumbency and Signature.  Set forth below are the names, titles and genuine signatures of certain of the
Authorized Representatives, and each such Authorized Representative hereby certifies that the signature appearing opposite 
the name of the other Authorized Representative is his or her genuine signature. 

3. Execution of Documents.  The Board President, Fire Chief and the Board Clerk/Secretary were each
jointly and severally authorized by the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”), pursuant to Resolution No. 24-___, 
adopted by the Board on September 10, 2024 (the “Resolution”), to act on behalf of the District as a designated “Authorized 
Representative” of the District for the purposes of executing and delivering any and all documents and certificates that may 
be required to be executed in connection with the purchase and sale of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, and to do any 
and all things and take any and all actions which may be necessary or advisable, in his discretion, to effectuate the actions 
which the District approved in the Resolution. 

4. Receipt for the Purchase Price.  On the date hereof, the District hereby acknowledges constructive receipt
of the sum of $________, representing the purchase price of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations.  

5. No Litigation.  There is no litigation or proceeding pending with respect to which the District has been
served or, to the best of our knowledge, threatened against the District (a) to restrain or enjoin the execution and delivery 
of the Installment Loan Agreement, the Assignment Agreement, or the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, (b) in any way 
contesting the validity of the Installment Loan Agreement, the Assignment Agreement, or the Series 2024B Loan 
Obligations, (c) in any way contesting the powers of the District in connection with any action contemplated by the 
Installment Loan Agreement, the Assignment Agreement, or the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, or (d) in which a final 

Name Signature Office 

Eric Loudenslager ____________________ Board President 

Chris Emmons ____________________ Fire Chief 

Katie Hill ____________________ Board Clerk / Secretary 

170



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
E-2

adverse decision could materially adversely affect the operation of the District or its ability to perform its obligations under 
the Installment Loan Agreement, the Assignment Agreement, or the Series 2024B Loan Obligations. 

6. Small Issuer Designation. The District does not expect that it (and including all entities that issue on
behalf of, or that are subordinate to, the District) will issue tax-exempt obligations of more than $10,000,000 (not to exceed) 
during calendar year 2024. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this Certificate on behalf of the Arcata Fire Protection District 
in the State of California. 

Dated:  October __, 2024 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By:__________________________________
      Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

171



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
F-1

EXHIBIT F 

OPINION OF DISTRICT’S COUNSEL 

[Letterhead of District’s General Counsel] 

October __, 2024 

California Municipal Public Financing Authority  
20 S. Santa Cruz Avenue, Suite 300 
Los Gatos, CA 95030 

________ Bank 
Attention:  Public Finance 
_________ Avenue,  
_______, __ _______ 

Re:  $________ 
California Municipal Public Financing Authority  
(Arcata Fire Protection District) 
Series 2024b Loan Obligations  
(Fire Station Acquisition Project) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as counsel to the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”) in connection with the $________ 
aggregate principal amount of California Municipal Public Financing Authority (Arcata Fire Protection District), Series 
2024B Loan Obligations (Fire Station Acquisition Project), (the “Series 2024B Loan Obligations”), representing the 
interest of the registered owner thereof in certain installment payments (the “Installment Payments”) to be made by the 
District to the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”), under the Series 2024B Installment Loan 
Purchase Agreement, dated October 1, 2024 (the “Loan Agreement”), by and between the District and the Authority, which 
Installment Payments have been assigned to ___________ Bank, as the assignee therein (the “Assignee”), pursuant to the 
Assignment Agreement dated October 1, 2024, by and between the Authority and the Assignee (the “Assignment 
Agreement”), and the proceedings taken by the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) to authorize on behalf of 
the District the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have 
the meanings set forth in the Loan Agreement. Based upon the foregoing examination and upon an examination of such 
other documents and matters of law as I have deemed necessary or appropriate, I am of the opinion that: 

1. The District is a political subdivision duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of
California, and has a substantial amount of one or more of the following sovereign powers: (a) the power to tax, (b) the 
power of eminent domain, and/or (c) police power. 

2. The Resolution (the “Resolution”) authorizing the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement was
adopted by the Board at a meeting that was held in compliance with all applicable laws relating to the holding of open and 
public meetings, with all public notice required by law and at which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and 
which is in full force and effect, and, has not been amended, modified, or supplemented. 

3. The District has the requisite power and authority to purchase the Project and to execute and deliver the
Loan Agreement and to perform its obligations thereunder. 

4. No litigation or proceeding is pending or, to the best of my knowledge, threatened to restrain or enjoin
the execution, delivery, or performance by the District of the Loan Agreement or in any way to contest the validity of the 
Loan Agreement, to contest or question the creation or existence of the District or the Board or the authority or ability of 

172



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
F-2

the District to execute or deliver the Loan Agreement or to comply with or perform its obligations thereunder.  There is no 
litigation pending or, to the best of my knowledge, threatened seeking to restrain or enjoin the District from annually paying 
the Loan Payments or other amounts contemplated by the Loan Agreement.  The entering into and performance of the Loan 
Agreement do not and will not violate any judgment, order, law, or regulation applicable to the District or result in any 
breach of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any lien, charge, security interest, or other encumbrance 
upon any assets of the District or on the Project pursuant to any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, bank loan or credit 
agreement, or other instrument to which the District is a party or by which it or its assets may be bound. 

5. The District has complied with any applicable public bidding requirements in connection with the Loan
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby.   

6. The Loan Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by the District.  Assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery thereof by Authority, the Loan Agreement constitutes the legal, valid, and binding 
obligations of the District, enforceable against the District in accordance with its terms, subject to any applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium or other laws or equitable principles affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights 
generally. 

This opinion may be relied upon by purchasers and assignees of Authority’s interests in the Loan Agreement. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Firm Name 

173



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
G-1

EXHIBIT G 

POST-ISSUANCE TAX COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES CERTIFICATE 
Dated: October __, 2024 

The following Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures Certificate (the “Certificate”) is delivered in connection with 
the execution and delivery of the Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), dated as of 
October 1, 2024, by and between the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”) and the Arcata Fire 
Protection District (the “District”). Capitalized terms used herein have the meanings defined in the Loan Agreement. 

Section 1. In General. 

1.1.  This Certificate is executed for the purpose of establishing the reasonable expectations of District as to future events 
regarding the financing of the fire station headquarters building and facilities currently being occupied by the District (the 
“Project”) to be acquired by Authority and sold to District pursuant to and in accordance with the Loan Agreement (together 
with all related documents executed pursuant thereto and contemporaneously herewith, the “Financing Documents”).  As 
described in the Financing Documents, the Authority shall apply $________ (the “Principal Amount”) toward the acquisition 
of the Project and closing costs, and District shall make Loan Payments under the terms and conditions as set forth in the 
Financing Documents. 

1.2. The individual executing this Certificate on behalf of District is an Authorized Representative (as defined in the Loan 
Agreement) of District delegated with the responsibility of reviewing and executing the Financing Documents, pursuant to the 
resolution or other official action of District adopted with respect to the Financing Documents, a copy of which has been 
delivered to Authority. 

1.3. The Financing Documents are being entered into for the purpose of providing funds for financing the cost of acquiring, 
equipping and installing the Project which is essential to the governmental functions of District.   

1.4 District will timely file or cause to be filed, a Form 8038-G with the Internal Revenue Service in accordance with 
Section 149(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 

1.5 The Loan Agreement is a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for the purposes and within the meaning of 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

Section 2. Non-Arbitrage Certifications. 
2.1. The Loan Payments due under the Financing Documents will be made with monies retained in District’s general 
operating fund (or an account or subaccount therein).  No sinking, debt service, reserve or similar fund or account will be 
created or maintained for the payment of the Loan Payments due under the Financing Documents or pledged as security 
therefor. 

2.2. There have been and will be issued no obligations by or on behalf of District that would be deemed to be (i) issued 
or sold within fifteen (15) days before or after the date of issuance of the Financing Documents, (ii) issued or sold pursuant to 
a common plan of financing with the Financing Documents and (iii) paid out of substantially the same source of funds as, or 
deemed to have substantially the same claim to be paid out of substantially the same source of funds as, the Financing 
Documents. 

2.3. District does not and will not have on hand any funds that are or will be restricted, segregated, legally required or 
otherwise intended to be used, directly or indirectly, as a substitute, replacement or separate source of financing for the Project. 

2.4. No portion of the Principal Amount is being used by District to acquire investments which produce a yield materially 
higher than the yield realized by Authority from Loan Payments received under the Financing Documents. 

174



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
G-2

2.5. The Principal Amount does not exceed the amount necessary for the governmental purpose for which the Financing 
Documents were entered into.  Such funds are expected to be needed and fully expended for payment of the costs of acquiring 
the Project. 

2.6. District does not expect to convey, sublease or otherwise dispose of the Project, in whole or in part, at a date which 
is earlier than the final Payment Date under the Financing Documents. 

Section 3. Disbursement of Funds; Reimbursement to District. 
3.1 It is contemplated that the entire Principal Amount will be used to pay the acquisition cost of Project to the sellers 
thereof or for any legal, financial advisory or closing costs, provided that, if applicable, a portion of the principal amount may 
be paid to District as reimbursement for acquisition cost payments already made by it so long as the conditions set forth in 
Section 3.2 below are satisfied. 

3.2 District shall not request that it be reimbursed for Project acquisition cost payments already made by it unless each 
of the following conditions have been satisfied: 

(a) District adopted a resolution or otherwise declared its official intent in accordance with Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2
(the “Declaration of Official Intent”), wherein District expressed its intent to be reimbursed from the proceeds of a borrowing
for all or a portion of the cost of the Project, which expenditure was paid to the Seller not earlier than sixty (60) days before
District adopted the Declaration of Official Intent;

(b) The reimbursement being requested will be made by a written allocation before the later of eighteen (18) months
after the expenditure was paid or eighteen (18) months after the items of Project to which such payment relates were placed
in service;

(c) The entire payment with respect to which reimbursement is being sought is a capital expenditure, being a cost of a
type properly chargeable to a capital account under general federal income tax principles; and

(d) District will use any reimbursement payment for general operating expenses and not in a manner which could be
construed as an artifice or device under Treasury Regulation § 1.148-10 to avoid, in whole or in part, arbitrage yield restrictions
or arbitrage rebate requirements.

Section 4.   Use and Investment of Funds; Temporary Period. 
4.1. District has incurred or will incur, within six (6) months from the date of issuance of the Financing Documents, binding 
obligations to pay an amount equal to at least five percent (5%) of the Principal Amount toward the costs of the Project.  An 
obligation is not binding if it is subject to contingencies within District’s control.  The ordering and acceptance of the items of 
Project will proceed with due diligence to the date of final acceptance of the Project. 

4.2. An amount equal to at least eighty-five percent (85%) of the Principal Amount will be expended to pay the cost of the 
Project by the end of the three-year period commencing on the date of this Certificate.  No portion of the Principal Amount will 
be used to acquire investments that do not carry out the governmental purpose of the Financing Documents and that have a 
substantially guaranteed yield of four (4) years or more. 

4.3(a) District covenants and agrees that it will rebate an amount equal to excess earnings on the Principal Amount deposited 
under the Loan Agreement to the Internal Revenue Service if required by, and in accordance with, Section 148(f) of the Code, 
and make the annual determinations and maintain the records required by and otherwise comply with the regulations applicable 
thereto. District reasonably expects to cause the Project to be acquired by October __, 2026, but not later than October __, 2027.  

(b) District will provide evidence to Authority that the rebate amount has been calculated and paid to the Internal Revenue
Service in accordance with Section 148(f) of the Code unless (i) the entire Principal Amount is expended on the Project by the
date that is the six-month anniversary of the Financing Documents or (ii) the Principal Amount is expended on the Project in
accordance with the following schedule: At least fifteen percent (15%) of the Principal Amount and interest earnings thereon

175



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
G-3

will be applied to the cost of the Project within six months from the date of issuance of the Financing Documents; at least sixty 
percent (60%) of the Principal Amount and interest earnings thereon will be applied to the cost of the Project within 12 months 
from the date of issuance of the Financing Documents; and one hundred percent (100%) of the Principal Amount and interest 
earnings thereon will be applied to the cost of the Project prior to eighteen (18) months from the date of issuance of the Financing 
Documents. 

(c) District hereby covenants that (i) District is a governmental unit with general tax powers; (ii) the Loan Agreement is not a
“private activity bond” under Section 141 of the Code; and (iii) at least ninety-five percent (95%) of the Principal Amount is
used for the governmental activities of District.

Section 5.   No Private Use; No Consumer Loan. 
5.1. District will not exceed the private use restrictions set forth in Section 141 of the Code.  Specifically, District will not 
permit more than 10% of the Principal Amount to be used for a Private Business Use (as defined herein) if, in addition, the 
payment of more than ten percent (10%) of the Principal Amount plus interest earned thereon is, directly or indirectly, secured 
by (i) any interest in property used or to be used for a Private Business Use or (ii) any interest in payments in respect of such 
property or derived from any payment in respect of property or borrowed money used or to be used for a Private Business Use. 

5.2.  In addition, if both (A) more than five percent (5%) of the Principal Amount is used as described above with respect 
to Private Business Use and (B) more than five percent (5%) of the Principal Amount plus interest earned thereon is secured by 
Private Business Use property or payments as described above, then the excess over such five percent (5%) (the “Excess Private 
Use Portion”) will be used for a Private Business Use related to the governmental use of the Project.  Any such Excess Private 
Use Portion of the Principal Amount will not exceed the portion of the Principal Amount used for the governmental use of the 
particular project to which such Excess Private Use Portion is related.   

5.3.  For purposes of paragraph 5.2 above, “Private Business Use” means use of bond proceeds or bond financed-property 
directly or indirectly in a trade or business carried on by a natural person or in any activity carried on by a person other than a 
natural person, excluding, however, use by a state or local governmental unit and excluding use as a member of the general 
public. 

5.4. No part of the Principal Amount or interest earned thereon will be used, directly or indirectly, to make or finance any 
loans to non-governmental entities or to any governmental agencies other than District.  

Section 6.   No Federal Guarantee. 
6.1. Payment of the principal or interest due under the Financing Documents is not directly or indirectly guaranteed, in 
whole or in part, by the United States or an agency or instrumentality thereof. 

6.2. No portion of the Principal Amount or interest earned thereon shall be (i) used in making loans the payment of principal 
or interest of which are to be guaranteed, in whole or in part, by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or 
(ii) invested, directly or indirectly, in federally insured deposits or accounts if such investment would cause the financing under
the Financing Documents to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.

Section 7. Miscellaneous. 
7.1. District shall keep a complete and accurate record of all owners or assignees of the Financing Documents in form and 
substance satisfactory to comply with the registration requirements of Section 149(a) of the Code unless Authority or its assignee 
agrees to act as District’s agent for such purpose. 

7.2. District shall maintain complete and accurate records establishing the expenditure of the Principal Amount and interest 
earnings thereon for a period of five (5) years after payment in full under the Financing Documents. 

7.3. To the best of the undersigned’s knowledge, information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable and there 
are no other facts, estimates or circumstances that would materially change the expectations expressed herein. 

176



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
G-4

7.4. The District’s Tax Identification Number is: ====== 

7.5. The District has adopted, or will adopt in a reasonable period post-closing, by resolution, separate written procedures 
regarding ongoing compliance with federal tax requirements necessary to keep, ensure and maintain the interest portions of the 
Loan Payments under the Loan Agreement as excluded form Authority’s gross income for federal income tax purposes, and 
will, on an annual basis, conduct an audit of the Loan Agreement to ensure compliance with such procedures 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures Certificate has been executed on behalf 
of District as of October __, 2024.  

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By: _________________________________ 
        Name: 

   Title:   

177



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
H-1

EXHIBIT H 

BANK QUALIFIED CERTIFICATE 

The Arcata Fire Protection Districts (the “District”) under that certain Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase 
Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), dated as of October 1, 2024, by and between the California Municipal Public Financing 
Authority (the “Authority”) and the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”), hereby designates the Loan Agreement as 
a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for the purposes and within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended.  The District hereby represents that the District reasonably anticipates that the District and other 
entities that the District controls will not issue tax-exempt obligations (including the Loan Agreement) the aggregate 
principal amount of which exceed $10,000,000 during the calendar year in which the Loan Agreement is executed and 
delivered and interest commences to accrue thereunder.  

This Certificate designating the Loan Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” is attached to and made 
a part of the Loan Agreement and inures to the benefit of the parties to the Loan Agreement and their successors and/or 
assigns.  

EXECUTED as of this __th day of October, 2024. 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By: _________________________________

     Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

178



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
I-1

EXHIBIT I 

DISTRICT’S CLOSING CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, as Fire Chief of the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”), in connection 
with the execution of the Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2024 (the 
“Installment Loan Agreement”), by and between the District and the California Municipal Public Financing 
Authority (the “Authority”), the installment payments (the “Installment Payments”) of which secure the above-
captioned $________ aggregate principal amount of California Municipal Public Financing Authority (Arcata 
Fire Protection District), Series 2024B Loan Obligations (Fire Station Acquisition Project) (the “Series 2024B 
Loan Obligations”), does hereby certify on behalf of the District that: 

A. The District is a fire protection district, duly organized and validly existing pursuant to the
Constitution and laws of the State of California (the “State”). 

B. Resolution No. 24-___ was adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the District on
September 10, 2024 (the “Resolution”), which Resolution authorized the execution and delivery of the 
Installment Loan Agreement as well as the issuance of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, is in full force and 
effect and has not been amended, modified or supplemented since its adoption. Attached hereto is a true and 
correct copy of the resolution constituting such official action. 

C. I have examined originals or copies certified or otherwise identified to my satisfaction of the
Resolution, the Installment Loan Agreement, the Assignment Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2024 (the 
“Assignment Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the Assignee, the Tax Certificate, dated as of the 
date hereof (the “Tax Certificate”), and the Non-Charter Membership Agreement, by and between the District 
and the Authority.   

D. The Series 2024B Loan Obligations and the Installment Loan Agreement (collectively, the
“District Documents”), have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District and constitute the 
legal, valid and binding obligations of the District enforceable against the District in accordance with their 
respective terms. 

E. The District has all requisite right, power and authority to enter into and perform its duties under
the District Documents and to perform its obligations under each such document or instrument, and to carry out 
and effectuate the transactions contemplated thereby. 

F. By official action of the District, the District has approved the execution and delivery of and the
performance by the District of the obligations on its part contained in the District Documents. 

G. The representations, warranties and covenants of the District contained in the District Documents 
are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the date hereof as if made on the date hereof, and the 
District has complied with all of the terms and conditions of the District Documents required to be complied with 
by the District at or prior to the date hereof. 

H. (i) As of October __, 2024 (the “Closing”), the District has taken all actions required to be taken
by it to authorize the issuance and delivery of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations; (ii) the execution and delivery 
of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations and the District Documents, the adoption by the District of the Resolution, 
and the performance by the District of the obligations contained in the District Documents, have been duly 

179



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
I-2

authorized and such authorization is in full force and effect as of the time of the Closing; (iii) the District Documents 
have been duly executed and delivered and constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of the District 
enforceable against the District in accordance with their respective terms, except as may be limited by applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws in effect for the protection of debtors 
and by application of general principles of equity; and (iv) the Board has duly authorized the consummation by the 
District of all transactions contemplated by the District Documents, the Assignment Agreement, the Tax Certificate 
and the Resolution. 

I. No consent, approval, authorization, license, order, filing, registration, qualification, election or
referendum, of or by any person, organization, State court or State governmental agency or public body whatsoever 
is required for the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the District Documents. 

J. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by
any court, regulatory district, public board or body, pending or threatened against the District in any way 
affecting the existence of the District or the titles of its officers to their respective offices or seeking to restrain 
or to enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, the application of the proceeds 
thereof in accordance with the Resolution and the District Documents, or the collection or application of 
Installment Payments, pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2024B Loan 
Obligations, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Series 2024B Loan 
Obligations, the Resolution, the Assignment Agreement, the District Documents or any action of the District 
contemplated by any of said Resolution, Assignment Agreement or District Documents, or in any way 
contesting the completeness or accuracy of the District Documents or the powers of the District with respect to 
the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, the Resolution, the District Documents or any action of the District 
contemplated by said documents, or which would adversely affect the exclusion of interest paid on the Series 
2024B Loan Obligations from gross income for federal income tax purposes or the exemption of interest paid 
on the Series 2024B Loan Obligations from California personal income taxation, nor, to my knowledge, is there 
any basis therefore. 

K. The District acknowledges and agrees that (i) the purchase and sale of the Series 2024B Loan
Obligations pursuant to the Installment Loan Agreement an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the 
District and the Authority, (ii) in connection with such transaction the Authority has not assumed a fiduciary 
responsibility in favor of the District with respect to (x) the offering of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations or the 
process leading thereto (whether or not the Authority has advised or is currently advising the District on other 
matters) or (y) any other obligation to the District except the obligations expressly set forth in the Installment Loan 
Agreement, and (iii) the District has consulted with its own legal and other professional advisors to the extent it 
deemed appropriate in connection with the offering of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations. 

L. Between the date of the Installment Loan Agreement and the date hereof, the District has not
issued any bonds, notes or other obligations for borrowed money except the Series 2024B Loan Obligations. 

M. I have reviewed and am familiar with the insurance provisions of the Installment Loan Agreement 
and have compared the coverage provided by the District’s existing insurance policies (and existing self-insurance 
coverage, if any), with the provisions of the Installment Loan Agreement and certify that the insurance coverage 
carried by the District meets the requirements set forth in the Installment Loan Agreement and such insurance 
provides the required protection to the Authority and its successors or assignees. 

180



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
I-3

N. The District covenants to comply with all other requirements contained in the Tax Certificate,
and that it will not otherwise take any action which would cause interest with respect to the Series 2024B Loan 
Obligations to be subject to federal income taxation or California personal income taxes. 

O. Any certificates, including this Certificate, signed by any official of the District and delivered to
the Authority or Assignee shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the District as to the statements made 
therein (and herein) but not of the person signing the same. 

P. The District will punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest to become due on
the Series 2024B Loan Obligations in strict conformity with the terms of the Resolution and the District Documents, 
and it will faithfully observe and perform all of the conditions, covenants and requirements of the Series 2024B 
Loan Obligations and the District Documents. 

Q. The correct billing address for Installment Payments is as follows:

Arcata Fire Protection District
2149 Central Ave.
McKinleyville, CA 95519
Attention: Fire Chief

R. The Resolution was legally adopted at a duly called and regularly convened meeting of the
Board on September 10, 2024 by motion duly made, seconded and carried, in accordance with all requirements 
of law, of which meeting all of the members of the Board had due notice and at which a quorum was present 
and acting. 

Dated:  October __, 2024 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  

By:___________________________________ 
Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

181



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
I-4

ATTACHMENT TO 
DISTRICT’S CLOSING CERTIFICATE 

COPY OF AUTHORIZATION RESOLUTION 
(per Section 4) 

(Please provide signed copy of authorizing resolution) 

182



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
J-1

EXHIBIT J 

IRS FORM 8038-G QUESTIONNAIRE 

Name of District: Arcata Fire Protection District 
Address of District: 2149 Central Ave., McKinleyville CA 95519 
Contact Person: Chris Emmons 
Telephone number: (707)825-2000
Email address: jmcdonald@arcatafire.org
District’s FEIN: 43-2054018

The Form 8038-G (the form used by government agencies to report the issuance of a tax-exempt obligation) asks specific questions 
about written procedures to: (1) monitor private use of assets financed with proceeds of a tax-exempt obligation and, as necessary, 
to take remedial actions to correct any violations of federal tax restrictions on the use of financed assets; and (2) monitor the yield 
on the investment of gross proceeds of tax-exempt obligations and, as necessary, make payments of arbitrage rebate earned to the 
United States. In addition, the Form 8038-G asks government agencies to report whether any proceeds will be used to reimburse 
itself for an expenditure paid prior to issuance. This questionnaire is designed to obtain the information necessary to complete 
Form 8038-G upon execution and delivery of the above-captioned Series 2024B Loan Obligations. 

At this time, the consequences of not having adopted written procedures to monitor private use of financed assets and yield on the 
investment of gross proceeds of tax-exempt obligations are unknown. If you have any questions, please consult your regular bond 
or legal counsel. 

Part 1 – Written Tax Compliance Procedures 
Note: If either of these questions is not answered, we will assume the District has not adopted the described procedures. 

1. Has the District established written procedures designed to monitor compliance with federal tax restrictions for the term of
the Loan Obligations? Among other matters, the written procedures should identify a particular individual within District’s organization
to monitor compliance with the federal tax requirements related to use of the financed assets and describe actions to be taken in the
event failure to comply with federal tax restrictions is contemplated or discovered.

Yes ___ No ___ If Yes, please attach a copy. 

2. Has the District established written procedures to monitor the yield on the investment of proceeds of the Loan Obligations
on deposit in an escrow account or similar fund prior to being spent and to ensure that any positive arbitrage rebate earned is paid to
the United States?

Yes ___ No ___ If Yes, please attach a copy. 

Part 2 – Use of the Project 

1. Leases. Are there or are there expected to be any leases, (either short-term or long-term) that provide a Non-Qualified User
(i.e., a private company, 501(c)(3) corporation, the federal government or any agency of the federal government) with legal rights to
use, benefit from, or otherwise lease any portion of the Project?

Yes ___  No ___ 

If your response is “Yes” to the question above, please include a copy of each lease or use agreement or information about 
the proposed lease. 

2. Management and Service Agreements. Are there or are there expected to be any agreements with Non-Qualified Users to
provide management functions or any other services with the Project?

Yes ___  No ___ 

183



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
J-2

If your response is “Yes” to the question above, please include a copy of each management or service agreement or 
information about the proposed agreement. 

Part 3 – Reimbursement of Prior Expenditures 

1. As of the funding date, were any of the proceeds of the Loan Obligations used to reimburse District for expenditures paid to
acquire the financed assets prior to the funding date of the Loan Obligations? Yes ___ No ___ If yes, please attach a spreadsheet listing 
the expenditure(s) together with the date paid, Seller paid and purpose of the expenditure or other proof of the expenditure(s)
containing this information (i.e. invoices, receipts, cancelled checks).

Items 2 and 3 need to be completed ONLY if the answer to item 1 above is YES. 

2. Please attach a copy of District’s resolution of intent to finance the financed assets, which includes date of adoption.

3. What is the amount of proceeds of the Loan Obligations reimbursed to District?  $__________

Date:  October __, 2024. 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By:_________________________________ 
Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

184



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
K-1

EXHIBIT K 

$________ 
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY  

(ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT) 
SERIES 2024B LOAN OBLIGATIONS  

(FIRE STATION ACQUISITION PROJECT) 

REQUISITION NO. 1 
FOR DISBURSEMENT OF PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned, as Fire Chief of the Arcata Fire Protection District (the “District”), in connection 
with the issuance, purchase, sale and delivery of the above-captioned $________ aggregate principal amount 
of California Municipal Public Financing Authority (Arcata Fire Protection District), Series 2024B Loan 
Obligations (Fire Station Acquisition Project) (the “Series 2024B Loan Obligations”), approved pursuant to 
Resolution No. 24-___ (the “Resolution”), adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on September 10, 
2024, and executed and delivered pursuant to the Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase Agreement, dated 
as of October 1, 2024, by and between the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”) 
and the District (the “Installment Loan Agreement”), does hereby certify that: 

(i) the undersigned is a duly Authorized Representative (as defined in the Resolution and
Installment Loan Agreement) with authority to act on behalf of the District as necessary in connection with the 
execution and delivery of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations, and as such, is authorized to disburse proceeds 
of the Series 2024B Loan Obligations; 

(ii) ___________ Bank (the “Bank”), as assignee of the Authority under the Assignment
Agreement, is hereby instructed to pay to the parties listed on Exhibit A hereto the sum listed opposite such 
parties names, as authorized by Section 4 of the Installment Sale Agreement.  These costs have been properly 
incurred, are each a proper charge under the Installment Loan Agreement against payment of either Costs of 
Issuance or Project Costs and have not been the basis of any previous disbursements; 

(iii) all payments shall be made by check or wire transfer in accordance with the payment
instructions set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto or in invoices submitted in accordance herewith, and the 
Authority and the Bank  may rely on such payment instructions as though given by the District with no duty to 
investigate or inquire as to the authenticity of the invoice or the payment instructions contained therein; and 

(iv) no event of default has occurred and is continuing.

Dated:  October __, 2024 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By:___________________________________ 
               Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

185



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
K-2

EXHIBIT A 

REQUEST NO. 1 
ACQUISITION FUND DISBURSEMENTS 

Payee Name and Address Purpose of Obligation Amount 

Arcata Fire Protection District 
2149 Central Ave.  
McKinleyville, CA 95519 

Project Costs $_______ 

California Municipal Advisors LLC 
1401 21st Street, Suite 5778 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

Municipal Advisory Services $_______ 

The Weist Law Firm 
20 South Santa Cruz Avenue, Suite 300 
Los Gatos, CA 95030 

Bond Counsel Services $______ 

TBD Bank Counsel Fees $______ 

186



2024B LOAN AGREEMENT 
L-1

EXHIBIT L 

$________ 
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY  

(ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT) 
SERIES 2024B LOAN OBLIGATIONS  

(FIRE STATION ACQUISITION PROJECT) 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

To: ___________ Bank, as assignee of California Municipal Public Financing Authority 
Email: _________.com. 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In accordance with the Series 2024B Installment Loan Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated as of 
October 1, 2024, by and between the California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”) and the Arcata 
Fire Protection District (the “District’), the undersigned, on behalf of the District, hereby certifies and represents to, and 
agrees with, ___________ Bank (the “Bank”), as follows: 

(1) All of the Project (as defined in the Agreement) has been delivered and accepted on the date hereof.

(2) The District has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Project as it deems necessary and
appropriate and hereby acknowledges that it accepts the Project for all purposes.

(3) The District is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by the Agreement.

(4) No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an
Event of Default (as defined in the Agreement) exists at the date hereof.

Dated:  _______________, 202_. 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

187



IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
- 1 -

$________ 
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

 (ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT) 
SERIES 2024 LOAN OBLIGATIONS 

(EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION PROJECT) 

IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 

These IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS (the “Instructions”) are dated as of October 1, 
2024, and are given to California Municipal Public Financing Authority (the “Authority”) and its assignee 
_________, a banking corporation (the “Bank”), by the Arcata Fire Protection District, a fire protection district, 
duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of California (the “District”); 

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the District desires to work with the Authority, for the purpose of, among other things, 
procuring financing of the District’s Acquisition of the District’s present fire station headquarters building and 
facilities (the “Project”);  

WHEREAS, the District has entered into a contract for the purchase of the Project from 
___________________ (the “Seller”), for the total purchase price of $_______ (the “Purchase Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, to finance the Project, the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) on September 
__, 2024 adopted Resolution No. 24-___, pursuant to which the District authorized and directed the execution 
and delivery of its California Municipal Public Financing Authority (Arcata Fire Protection District) Series 2024 
Loan Obligations (Station Acquisition Project), (the “Series 2024 Loan Obligations”); and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2024 Loan Obligations, in the amount of $________ (the “Obligation 
Proceeds”), are being purchased by the Authority, in immediately available funds on October __, 2024 (the 
“Closing Date”) pursuant to an Installment Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2024, by and between the 
Authority and the District (the “Installment Loan Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the meanings ascribed to them in 
the Installment Loan Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, on the Closing Date a portion of the Obligation Proceeds in the amount of $_______ will 
be transferred by the Authority directly to Seller (the “Designated Proceeds”); and 

WHEREAS, the District has full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform its duties 
under these Instructions; and 

WHEREAS, the Bank acknowledges that these Instructions constitute irrevocable instructions by the 
District to apply the Designated Proceeds as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above the District agrees as follows: 

Attachment 3

188



IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
- 2 -

Section 1. Transfer and Application to Seller. 

The Authority is hereby irrevocably instructed to wire the Designated Proceeds in the amount of 
$________ directly to Seller on or before the morning of October __, 2024, in accordance with the instruction 
set forth in Exhibit A, which are summarized as follows:  

WIRE INSTRUCTIONS: 

Bank  

Account Name:  

Bank Routing:  

Bank Account Number: 

Upon release of the wire, the District shall send an email to the Seller contact, _________ at 
_______.com notifying Seller that the payment of $_______ has been wired in accordance with the Purchase 
Contract. 

The District acknowledges that it has no right, title or interest in or to the Designated Proceeds paid to 
Seller, except as set forth herein.  Under no circumstances shall the Designated Proceeds be paid or delivered to 
or for the order of the District, except as set forth herein. The District hereby waives any rights that it may have 
to give alternative instructions as to the Designated Proceeds. 

Section 4.  Termination; Unclaimed Money.  These Instructions shall terminate when the Designated 
Proceeds have been transferred and received by the Seller, as provided herein. 

Section 5. Liabilities and Obligations of Bank. 

The Authority shall have no obligation to make any payment or disbursement of any type except from 
the Designated Proceeds, or from such other funds that the District may hereafter deposit, in strict accordance 
with these Instructions.  The Authority shall have no obligation to incur any financial liability in the performance 
of its duties under these Instructions, and the Authority may rely and shall be fully protected in acting upon the 
written instructions of the District or its agents relating to any matter or action as Authority under these 
Instructions. 

The Authority shall have only such duties as are expressly set forth herein and no implied duties shall 
be read into these Instructions against the Authority. The Authority shall not be liable for any act or omission of 
the District under these Instructions. The Authority shall not be liable for the accuracy of any calculations as to 
the sufficiency of moneys deposited with it with respect to the Designated Proceeds. 

The Authority shall have no liability or obligation to the Seller or any other person or entity with respect 
to the payment for the Project or with respect to the observance or performance by the District of the other 
conditions, covenants and terms contained in the Purchase Contract, or with respect to the investment of any 
moneys in any fund or account established, held or maintained by the District. 

The Authority may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and correctness of the opinions 
expressed therein, on any certificate or opinion furnished to it in accordance with these Instructions.  

189



IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
- 3 -

Section 6. Governing Law.  These Instructions shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California. 

Section 7. Notices.  Notices hereunder shall be made in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 
given when personally delivered or when deposited in the mail, first class postage prepaid, or delivered to an 
express carrier, charges prepaid, addressed to each party at its address below: 

If to the District: Arcata Fire Protection District  
2149 Central Ave.  
McKinleyville, CA 95519 
Attention: Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

If to the Authority: California Municipal Public Financing Authority 
20 S. Santa Cruz Ave. Suite 300 
Los Gatos, CA 95030 

If to the Bank: TBD 

Section 8. Counterparts.  These Instructions may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which when executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which when taken together shall 
constitute one and the same Instructions. 

[Signature Page to Follow on Next Page] 

190



IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
- 4 -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has each executed these Irrevocable Payment Instructions as of 
the date first above written. 

ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  

By:____________________________ 
   Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 

Acknowledged and Agreed: 

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY  

By:_____________________________ 
      Authorized Officer 

Acknowledged and Agreed: 

__________________ 

By:_____________________________ 
      Authorized Officer 

191



IRREVOCABLE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 

PURCHASE CONTRACT 

[Attached] 

192



Correspondence 
& 

Communications 

193



CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS - Item 1

194



CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS - Item 2

195



CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS Item 3 

Date: September 10, 2024 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Chris Emmons, Fire Chief 
Subject: Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 

Monthly Administrative Report 

We received payment from Rumble over the Redwoods for providing an engine for the 
event. The amount of the payment was $9,210.84. 

I would like to announce that Arly Allen was promoted to Captain effective September 1, 
2024. Her experience and knowledge will serve our district well. Congratulations to Arly. 
With her promotion we now have two openings for Fire Engineer. We have opened the 
recruitment and posted the flyer on the website and social media.  

We have extended a conditional offer to our Assistant Chief candidate. He is in the final 
phase of the process and we anticipate a start date in early to mid-October.  

District personnel participated in this year’s Annual Battle of the Badges Blood Drive 
with our own Katie Hill leading the coordination efforts for us. Our agency won 100% 
Department Participation where our name was added to a perpetual plaque housed at 
the Blood Bank. 

The Berg Foundation funded a grant through the AVFA for a skidmount pump. We are 
researching which companies will be able to build the pump module to be mounted on 
one of the vehicles, possibly converting the use of the light rescue truck that the 
Logistics Unit currently uses.  

The fire service has been re-branding “Fire Prevention” to a more holistic approach to 
Community Risk Reduction. Fire Prevention is a singular focus whereas Community 
Risk reduction takes into consideration issues such as slips, trips, and falls, child safety 
seats, disaster preparedness, as well as fuels reduction and fire prevention. Community 
Risk Reduction has more opportunity for grant funding. The Administrative Team is 
researching the concept to better serve the community.   

The Fire Chief has been attending regular meetings with City Officials which has 
generated positive feedback between agencies. On-going projects within the City that 
impact the District are being identified early. For example, discussion on bike lanes and 
roadway/traffic re-configuring in high traffic areas.  

Upcoming events: Fire Prevention Week Open House 

196



Notable Training: 
Large Animal Rescue 

Monthly Incident Activity 
August Notable Incidents 
08/06/2024 Fire at the West Village Apartments on Valley West Blvd. Significant 

damage to one apartment with one occupant experiencing smoke 
inhalation. It was a large complex in which all of our Mutual Aid partners 
played a role. Arcata Police Officers were on scene and immediately 
evacuated the structure.  

08/10/2024 Fire on the outside of a residence on Market Ave in McKinleyville, Exterior 
Damage. 

08/17/2024 RV Fire on Daffodil Ave in McKinleyville with Burn Victim, total loss of RV 
and damage to a second RV on site. 

08/17/2024 Major Medical McKinleyville Avenue. AED used. 

08/27/2024 Electric Arcing at CPH Creekside Lounge Laundry. A laundry unit had a 
failure and smoked up the Creekside Lounge at the East end of Granite 
Ave. Evacuation was conducted, followed by smoke removal.  

197



Apparatus and Equipment Report 

Apparatus Out of Service Time 
Two front-line engines were out of service for a total of 120 hours in the month of 
August.  

Apparatus Major Repairs 
August preventative maintenance has been on hold with E8211 having a pump leak and 
needing all six of its batteries replaced. The batteries were beyond their lifespan and 
had degraded. The cost of the replacement was $2,100. Engine 8219 had an electrical 
sensor in the door monitoring system fail causing alarms in the engine, however, the 
issue has continued.  The local vendor is now working with the manufacturer to obtain 
equipment for repair.  

198



Fire Prevention and Outreach 

Notable events: 
The Fire Inspector completed inspection of 428 units for the month of August.  A 48-unit 
apartment complex was inspected, with all 48 units passing. This shows the importance 
of the inspection program, which is mandated by the state. 
On-going Fire Prevention Bureau projects include direction to re-establish an effective 
County Fire Prevention Officers group and with regular attendance by Arcata Fire 
personnel. As part of the Fire Prevention Officers group, discuss county-wide standards 
with the various municipalities. The Fire Marshal was also assigned to conduct a needs 
assessment for administrative code enforcement needs and standards. This is relative 
to the frequent calls we receive for overgrown vegetation, trash dumping and vacant 
and abandoned structures to name a few.   

Public Outreach: 
Public Education (hours taught) 

-3 hours, 50 children, 43 adults
Courtesy Inspections 

-2 inspection at Cafe Phoenix, Humboldt County Resource Conservation District
McKinleyville.

Civic Group Outreach 
-Fire Chief is attending Arcata Noon Rotary meetings.

Car Seat Installation-1 installation. 

199


	Draft Agenda September 10, 2024
	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	ATTENDANCE & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT/ASSOCIATION REPORTS
	CLOSED SESSION
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	DISTRICT BUSINESS
	CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS
	ADJOURNMENT

	Title Page - Public Comment & Assoc. Reports
	September Board Report Local
	Sepember 2024 Monthly Report for the AFD Board
	Title Page - Consent
	CC1 Draft Minutes Regular August 13, 2024
	CC2 Draft Minutes Special August 22, 2024
	CC3 August Financials
	Interest Earned
	Profit and Loss Budget vs. Actual
	Statement of Cashflows
	Balance Sheet
	Expenses by Vendor Detail

	CC4 (Staff Report) OPEB GASB 75
	CC4 (Attachment 1) Arcata FPD Signed Val 2023 & 2024 GASB 75 Report
	CC5 (Attachment 2) CalTrust Resolution 24-315
	Resolution Number: 24-315

	Title Page - District Business
	DB1 (Staff Note) FY 23-24 Final Budget
	DB1 (Attachment 1) Final Budget
	DB1 (Attachment 2) Budget Resolution 24-316
	Resolution Number: 24-316

	DB2 (Attachment 1) Resolution 24-317 Approving Option Agreement 
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-317

	DB2 (Attachment 2) Option Agreement AVFA Final Reviews
	DB2 (Staff Report) Approving an Option Agreement
	DB3 (Staff Report) Station Acquisition Financing - weist edits
	DB3 (Attachment 1) REsolution 24-318
	Resolution Number: 24-318

	DB3 (Attachment) Loan Agreement--Station Acquisition-[Draft 09-05-24]
	Irrevocable_Payment_Instructions_[Draft_08-27-24]
	Title Page - Correspondence
	C&C1 Thank you to Baxley and 
	C&C1a Thank you to Alvarez, Allen, Lillard, Barron, Freeman
	C&C3 September Chiefs Report
	ADP6AE.tmp
	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	ATTENDANCE & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT/ASSOCIATION REPORTS      Pg. 4
	CLOSED SESSION
	CONSENT CALENDAR         Pg. 7
	DISTRICT BUSINESS          Pg. 76
	CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS      Pg. 188
	ADJOURNMENT




